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2020 2024

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
50,302 46,444 41,981 40,640 43,133
38,519 38,715 38,009 38,100 39,451
88,821 85,159 79,990 78,740 82,584
27,471 26,553 24,596 23,402 28,427
22,869 21,512 20,246 20,118 22,084
17,232 15,085 14,135 14,277 12,159
211 313 783 900 181
(1,332) (1,261) (490) (53) 111)
755 772 276 183 201
4,694 6,634 810 526 2,899
234 489 275 209 247
72,134 70,097 60,631 59,562 66,087
16,687 15,062 19,359 19,178 16,497
2,621 1,736 2,989 1,377 1,783
14,066 13,326 16,370 17,801 14,714

- 21,827 1,571 3,077

14,066 35,153 17,941 20,878 14,714
15.8 41.3 22.4 22.3 17.8
5.79 13.72 6.73 7.81 5.51
20.1 48.3 23.8 30.4 24.0
4.3 6.5 1.6 13.6 0.6
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20,518 19,898 17,982 18,962 18,766
* 4,424 4,543 4,009 3,652 3,347
180,104 167,558 187,378 182,018 174,894
30,651 25,881 26,886 29,985 32,635
* 24,266 22,791 21,194 23,410 23,536
4.91 4.70 4.45 4.19 3.98
29.70 28.57 29.39 28.16 24.04
) 145.05 156.74 176.65 171.07 157.38
)
2,407.3 2,533.5 2,625.2 2,632.1 2,632.8
2,429.4 2,560.4 2,663.9 2,674.0 2,670.7
( )* 138.1 131.9 152.7 141.7 134.5
*
1887
1919 (Johnson & Johnson Canada)
(Ethicon) 1941
1949 1992 (Ethicon Endo-
Surgery, Inc.) (Ethicon, Inc.)

18/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

(McNeil Laboratories, Inc.) 1959
1977 (McNeil Pharmaceutical)
(McNeil Consumer Products)
(Ortho Pharmaceutical)

(Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutical) 1993

(Janssen Pharmaceutica) 1961
(Ortho-McNei l-Janssen

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Frontier Contact Lenses) 1981 ACUVUE®
(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,

Inc.)

(Johnson & Johnson - Merck Consumer

Pharmaceuticals Co.) 1989
(Ortho Biotech) 1990
(Centocor Ortho Biotech Products, L.P.)
1993 S.A.(RoC, S.A.)
1994 (Neutrogena Corporation)
1994 (Kodak) (Clinical Diagnostics)
(Ortho Diagnostic Systems)
(Clinical Diagnostic Systems) 1997

(Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.)
2014
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(Johnson & Johnson Hospital Services)
(Johnson & Johnson
Advanced Behavioral Technologies)

(Johnson & Johnson Health Care Systems Inc.) 1995

(Cordis Corporation) 1996

(DePuy, Inc.) 1998

(Johnson & Johnson Consumer

Products Company) (S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.)

AVEENO® 1999
(Centocor, Inc.) 1999
(Centocor Ortho Biotech
Inc.)

(BabyCenter, L.L.C.) 2001

(ALZA Corporation) 2001

(Inverness Medical) 2001

VA(Tibotec-Virco Comm. VA) 2002

(OraPharma, Inc.)
2003
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(Scios Inc.) 2003
(Merck) 50 (
) 2004
DNA
(Gene Writer)
(Egea Biosciences, Inc.) 2004
X
(Artemis Medical, Inc.) 2004
(Biapharm) 2004
(BIAFINE)
(Peninsula Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Closure Medical Corporation) 2005
(TransForm Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Hand

Innovations LLC) 2006

S.A.(Future Medical Systems S.A.) 2006

(Animas Corporation) 2006
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(Group
Vendome) 2006

(Vascular Control Systems Inc.) 2006

(ColBar
LifeScience Ltd.) 2006

(Pfizer Inc.) 2006 12

(Conor Medsystems, Inc.) 2007

(Maya=s Mom, Inc.) 2007

(Children With Diabetes, Inc.) 2008

( (point-of-care)

(near-patient) ) AB(Amic AB) 2008

(Beijing Dabao Cosmetics Co., Ltd.) 2008

ENSEAL®
(SurgRx, Inc.) 2008 10

(HealthMedia, Inc.) 2008 10
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LGE (LGE Performance Systems, Inc.) 2008 12

(Human Performance Institute, Inc.)

(Omrix Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2008 12

(Mentor Corporation)

2009

(Cougar Biotechnology, Inc.) 2009

2009 (Elan Corporation, plc)

(Gloster Europe) 2009 11

2009 12
(Finsbury Orthopaedics Limited)

2010
(Acclarent, Inc.)
(RespiVert Ltd.)
(Micrus

Endovascular Corporation)

23/416



2011
N.V.(Crucell N.V.)(

RINZA®
J.B.
Pharmaceuticals Limited)

Sharp & Dohme Corp)
(SterilMed, Inc.)

2012

(Guangzhou Bioseal Biotech Co. Ltd) QuillTM
Closure Device)
(Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Corlmmun Inc.)

(Calibra Medical, Inc.)

ZYRTEC®
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DOKTOR MoM®
(J.B. Chemicals &
(Merck

(Synthes Inc.)

(QuillTM Knotless Tissue-

(Spectrum Vision LLC)

(Shanghai Elsker Mother & Baby

(Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Alios BioPharma, Inc.)

2013
(Flexible Stenting Solutions, Inc.)
Co., Ltd)
®
2014 FynomAb
(Covagen AG)
(Jagdale Industries Ltd.)
ORSL™
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2015
(X01 Limited) B
Inc.)
2016
(NeuWave Medical, Inc.)
(NeoStrata Company, Inc.)
2017 (PAH)
(Actelion Ltd.)
Laboratories)
(AMO)
(Sightbox, Inc.)
(LINXTM Reflux Management System)
(Torax Medical, Inc.)
(Megadyne

2018

(Zarbee ” s, Inc.)

(Medical Enterprises Distribution LLC)
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OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

(Novira Therapeutics,

(Vogue International LLC)

RHINOCORT®

(Abbott

(Newuravi Limited)

(TearScience Inc.)

LN

Medical Products, Inc.)

(BeneVir Biopharm, Inc.)(BeneVir)

(Orthotaxy)
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2019
(DR. CI:LABO)
FDA
(Auris Health, Inc.)
(Taris Biomedical LLC)
(JointPoint,
Inc.)
2020 (bermekimab)
(XBiotech Inc.)
(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Verb

Surgical Inc.)

2021
2022 (Abiomed, Inc.)
2022 12 22
171 380.00
35.00 ( 16 )
( CVR )
(CVR ) 165
2023 (Kenvue Inc.)
89.6
2023
9.5 2024

26/416



2024

12

2024

(Shockwave

335.00

EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

20
(Proteologix, Inc.) (
( )
(
30
16
2024
31 (CAD) (PAD)
(1VL)
Medical Inc.)(SWAV)( )

27/416

oOoOooodn

45



17

1887

(

CODM

(
138,100

28/416

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
(
) (HIV AIDS ) ) (
) ( ) (
)
REMICADE( )
SIMPONI ( )
(PIIA)
SIMPONI ARIA( )
STELARA
( )
TREMFYA( ) (HIV)
EDURANT ( ) PREZISTA(
)  PREZCOBIX REZOLSTA( ) HIV
SYMTUZA(
) CONCERTA( HCI) cli
INVEGA SUSTENNA  XEPLION(
) INVEGA SUSTENNA
INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA( )
(TRD) (MDD)
SPRAVATO( )
(CAR) T CARVYKTI(
) ZYTIGA( )
ERLEADA( ) B
IMBRUVICA( )
DARZALEX( ) AL DARZALEX
FASPRO( )
TECVAYLI(
)
(CAD) (PAD)
XARELTO(
) (PAH)
OPSUMIT( ) (PAH) QIp )
UPTRAVI( )

29/416



(CAD)

ACUVUE

(PAD)

30/416

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

PCI AMI

( )
(Shockwave))

TECNIS



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

19
DARZALEX( ) DARZALEX FASPRO(
) 2024 13.1
(Genmab A/S)
DARZALEX
2029
2031 2032
DARZALEX FASPRO
STELARA( ) 2024

11.7 2025

STELARA STELARA
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(U.S. Food and Drug Administration)( FDA
FDA
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( FDA FTC  HHS)
EU
(NIS2 EHDS Al )

Al (AD
Al

FDA

FDA FDA

FDA
FDA
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(PBM)
PBM
2022
D 2026 B 2028
( IRA ) 2023
29 (the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services)
CMS ) XARELTO STELARA
(Pharmacyclics LLC) IMBRUVICA
CMS 2024 12
IRA
CMS
2026
IRA D 2022 10 B
2023
IRA D (

) IRA
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2023 (Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(
) CMS IRA
IRA
IRA
IRA
CMS
2024
( )
IRA
EU
(
)
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2024 12 29 2023 12 31
2024 2023
C ) 139,800 134,400
« ) 138,100 131,900
C )
2024
C )
Hbisk RGeS (HEE)
20.0% 34.5%
FRRE ok
28.0% ' B i
S—Ow/ -l PIUh FITERH
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(Our Credo)

2024 73
94 36 (Our Credo)

2024 6.3

J&J Learn
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(Our Credo)

(Our
Credo)

J&J Flex
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www. jnj.com SEC SEC
www . investor. jnj.com/financials/sec-filings SEC SEC

Www.sec.gov

www . jnj.com/mediacenter investor.jnj.com www . Factsabouttalc.com

Www . jnj.com SEC

www . investor. jnj.com/governance/corporate-governance-overview
www.jnj.com investor.jnj.com

www . Factsabouttalc.com SEC
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ABD

R&D

AorTx

AUB
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CSATS

ECL7

us
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(NA)

JJbC

JOM
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PSC

PSC

A&M

USA

USA
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Pty
GmbH
Sarl
Pte
C )
GmbH
Pty
« D
C )
Pty
ApS
GmbH
B.V.
SRL
BV
AS
Pte
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GmbH
UK
AB
B
B.V.
( )
B.V.
GmbH
S.L.
S.A. C.V.
GmbH
SA
S.A. C.V.
ECP mbH
EES S. R.L. C.V.
EES S.A. C.V.
EIT GmbH
( ) GmbH
Sarl
Sarl
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FMS

GATT

GH

GMED

J&J
J&J
J&J

J&J

J.C.

S.A.

B.V.

BV

UK

S.A.

S.p-A.
SPA

C.A.

)
)
SA
GmbH
)
mbH
BV
B.V.
S.A.
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Lda

NV

B.V.

A/S

AG

AS

B.V.

Lda.
Ltda.
GmbH

NV
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JJ

JJc

JJsv

JJsv

JJsv

JJsv

INJ

JINJ

JINTL

JINTL

BV

AB

Kft.

NV

oY

Pty

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.L.

EMEA B.

GmbH

Sp. z o.

C.V.

0.

S.L.

B.V.

Ltda.

Pte

Pte

SDN. BHD.

) Pty
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S.A.
Ltda.
S.A.S.
GmbH
GT
SPC
S.A.
GmbH
( )
GmbH
( )
Pte
Kft.
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S.A.

MENA RHQ

B.V.

GmbH

S_.A. C.V.

NV
GmbH
Pty
S.A.
S.p-A.

SAS

S.A.

S.A.S.

CR

Fz

AB
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Sp. z o.0.

S.R.L.
S.E. d.o.o.

SDN. BHD.

UK

( ) Pty

Lda

S.A.

JTNL

Sarl
Sarl
S.A. C.V.
B.V.

B.V.

(UK)

S.A. C.V.
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omJ GmbH

S.A.

PT

S.A. C.V.

Pty

NV
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SaRL
GmbH
S.R.L
Lda
UK
GmbH
CR
S.L.
S.C.R.
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
S.M.P. S. R.L. C.V.
GmbH
UAB
v ( ) Pty
v
AG
2024 12 29 412
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138,100

1887
2024 12 29
27.0
81.2
* 84.4
64.2
68.2
87.8
* 2023 2023
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10
2014 2024 (
)
( CPI )
100 (2024
)
2023 CMS IRA
IRA
IRA
IRA
CMS
2024
2024
( ) 2024 12 29 2023
12 31

2022
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2024

FDA
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EU
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IRA

3408
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2026

EU



JOHNSON = S
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FDA

19



19

FDA(
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(Good Manufacturing Practices)(



EU

EU

(USPTO)
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(““at-risk”” launch)

19

2024 25
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2024

FDA

43

Al

721416

15
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100 (2024

(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
FCPA)

FCPA FCPA

2010
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2024 25 2024 172

138,100
(Our Credo)

b Y — IR R THYEYORY
(e K L) (it : B L) (Wftr L)
172 Wi
15.1
s 470
05
024 2023 2024 2023 2024 023

* PRESRURENDREST.

2023 2022 2023 12 31
2024 2023 6.5 4.3 888
« ) 2024 2023
5.9 6.8
0.0 (0.6)
(1.6) 0.9)

4.3 6.5
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2024 0.5 2023

1.5

2024 8.3 503 2023 10.6 464
2024 0.7
2024 0.5 385 2023 1.9 387 2024
0.2 2024
2.6
5.4 6.8
3.8 10
4.0 5.4 2.5
2024 0.6 0.4
1.0 2024
4.7
20.4 16.8 3.6
2.3 3.5

1.2

2024
20.5 15.6 12.3 2023
18.2 15.1 14.2

20245 B s e RITE L 8 (i - HER R L) 2024 F =Y X HRTE L (it IR E L)

$202
=i m P £31.9
ARETud

4T
FITAH
F2Uh

$138

FEER
CEEZER<)

£50.3
*E

() MR A TN TVSEENES,

)
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2024
2023 4.0
1.3
2024
0.1

4.2

570

3.

2024

8
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) 2024 2023 () ) )
17,828 18,052 (1.2) 0.4 (1.6)
REMICADE 1,605 1,839 (12.8) (11.4) (1.9
SIMPONI  SIMPONI ARIA 2.190 2.197 0.3) 45 (4.8)
STELARA 10,361 10,858 (4.6) (3.4 (1.2)
TREMFYA 3,670 3,147 16.6 18.1 (1.5)
3 11 (74.1) (74.1) —
3,396 4,418 (23.1) (22.7) 0.4
198 1,117 (82.4) (82.4) 0.0
EDURANT 1,272 1,150 10.6 10.6 0.0
PREZISTA PREZCOBIX
REZOLSTA  SYMTUZA 1,712 1,854 7.7 7.1 0.6
214 297 (27.6) (25.0) (2.6)
7,115 7,140 0.4) 1.3 (1.7)
CONCERTA
641 783 (18.1) 15.1 (3.0)
INVEGA SUSTENNA XEPLION
INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA 4,222 4,115 2.6 3.4 (0.8)
SPRAVATO 1,077 689 56.4 56.8 0.4)
1,175 1,553 (24.3) (20.7) (3.6)
20,781 17,661 17.7 19.8 2.1
CARVYKTI 963 500 92.7 92.7 0.0
DARZALEX 11,670 9,744 19.8 22.2 .9
ERLEADA 2,999 2,387 25.6 27.3 @€.7n
IMBRUVICA 3,038 3,264 (6.9) (5.2) a.7n
TECVAYLI 549 395 38.8 39.8 (1.0)
ZYTIGA
631 887 (28.8) (25.0) (3.8)
931 484 92.5 94.3 (1.8)
4,282 3,815 12.3 14.1 (1.8)
OPSUMIT 2,184 1,973 10.7 11.9 1.2)
UPTRAVI 1,817 1,582 14.9 16.1 (1.2)
281 260 7.9 (18.3) (10.4)
3,562 3,671 (3.0) (2.6) (0.4)
XARELTO 2,373 2,365 0.3 (0.3) —
1,189 1,306 (8.9) (7.8) 1.1
56,964 54,759 4.0 5.7 @a.7n
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2024 1.2 178 STELARA(
)
REMICADE( )
TREMFYA( )
2024 STELARA 67 FDA
STELARA 2009
2025 STELARA
STELARA
REMICADE
REMICADE
2024 23.1 34
2024 71
SPRAVATO( )
2024 17.7 208 DARZALEX(
) ERLEADA(
) CARVYKTI(
)
TECVAYLI( ) TALVEY(
) RYBREVANT( )
ZYTIGA( )
IMBRUVICA(
12.3 43 OPSUMIT( )
UPTRAVI(

OPSYNVI(
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BALVERSA(

) (THOR

)

CARVYKTI(

)

(CARTITUDE-4 )

DARZALEX(
) (PERSEUS

DARZALEX(
) (CEPHEUS

DARZALEX(
)

(AQUILA

)

EDURANT(

HIV
)

(

12 ) °

IMBRUVICA(
)

MCL

(Triangle )

OPSUMIT(
)

(TOMORROW )

OPSYNVI (

REKAMBYS HIV

EGFR
RYBREVANT(

) (PAPILLON

20

)

RYBREVANT(
)

(PALOVA-3 )

RYBREVANT  LAZCLUZE

(MARIPOSA ) .

RYBREVANT

(MARIPOSA-2 ) .

SIMPONI(
)

SPRAVATO(
)

(TRD4005 )

STELARA(
)

TREMFYA(
)

(QUASAR ) .

TREMFYA(

) (ASTRO

TREMFYA(

) (GRAVITI

TREMFYA(
)

(GALAXI )

TREMFYA(
)

UPTRAVI(
)

(SALTO )
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2024 6.2 1.4
2023 4.8 319 6.9 163
5.4 2.8 2.6 155
2024
1.5
( ) 2024 2023 () ) )
(Surgery) 9,845 10,037 (1.9) 0.1 (2.0)
4,488 4,671 (3.9) (2.0) (1.9
5,358 5,366 0.2) 2.0 2.2)
(Orthopaedics) 9,158 8,942 2.4 3.0 (0.6)
1,638 1,560 5.0 5.6 (0.6)
1,545 1,456 6.1 6.5 0.4)
3,049 2,979 2.3 2.9 (0.6)
2,926 2,947 0.7 (0.1) (0.6)
(Cardiovascular)( ) 7,707 6,350 21.4 22.8 1.9
5,267 4,688 12.3 14.0 1.7
1,496 1,306 14.5 14.9 0.4)
« ) 564 — * * _
380 356 6.9 8.4 (1.5)
(Vision) 5,146 5,072 1.5 3.0 (1.5)
3,733 3,702 0.8 2.6 (1.8)
1,413 1,370 3.2 4.3 (1.1)
31,857 30,400 4.8 6.2 .5
( ) (Interventional Solutions)
( ) 2024 31
* 100
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2024 2023 1.9 98
2024 2023 2.4 92 2024
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2024 2023 21.4 77

Impella 5.5 Impella RP

2024 2023 1.5 51
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2024 2023
* *

13,529 23.8 11,963 21.8

3,703 11.6 3,122 10.3
17,232 19.4 15,085 17.7
14.2 6.7

NM26 ( (Yellow Jersey) )
12.5
v (V-Wave)
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2020
) 2023
) « )
JJDC (Johnson & Johnson Innovation - JJDC, Inc.)(JJDC)
« )
2024 ( ) 19
( YO ) 2024 2023
( 5.5 6.9 1.4
( 0.8 0.3 (0.5)
( 0.3 0.6 0.3)
0.1 0.4 0.3)
0.3) 0.0 (0.3)
(0.9) (1.4 0.5
0.8) 0.2) (0.6)
( 4.7 6.6 (1.9
( ) 2024 2023 (
19 ) 2023
( ) 2024 2023 PONVORY
( ) 2024 2023
(ldorsia)
2024 2023 13 2024 2023
2024
2023 229 226 245 237
2024 2023 293 345
366 330 2024
2024 31
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) 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
18,919 18,246 56,964 54,759 33.2 33.3
3,740 4,669 31,857 30,400 11.7 15.4
( ) 22,659 22,915 88,821 85,159 25.5 26.9
5,972 7,853
)
16,687 15,062 88,821 85,159 18.8 17.7
) 17
) ( ) C D 2024
2023 51 70
2024
2023
2024
2023 33.3 33.2
NM26 12.5
2023 2024 Risperdal
2024
2024 2023
2024 2023
2024 2023

2024 2023
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2024 2023 15.7
11.5 2024
2022 12 15 (EV) 130 (OECD)
15 EU
EU 2024
2025 2024
1.0
2025 1.0
2024 2023 219 241
22
)
21.9 2023
24.3
(18.6)
G.D
0.4)
24.1 2024

2024 2023 11

94/416



243

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

141

8.4
1.7
1.6

-5
24.3

186

(4.9
(15.1)
0.7
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0.7
1.5
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31
( )
(11.8)
2.4)
11.0
0.8
0.3
1.0
G.D
( ) 2024 2023 2022
«C ) 3,815 4,722 2,158
341 236 216
4,156 4,958 2,374
2,558 3,616 2,849
6,714 8,574 5,223
( ) TCA 2024 20 2023 15
2022
2024 12 29
2024 12 29 64 121
2024 2023 293 366 2024
67
2024 31
15 116 ( 135
) (

19 )
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2023 23
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( 1PO )
( )198,734, 444 22.00
42 1PO
25
2023 13
190,955,436 314
9.5
23 43 2023 12 31 39
2023 23 116
43
12 210
28
36 36
2024 17
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( ) Tan)
2025 2,536 1,749 1,075 5,360
2026 — 1,999 1,030 3,029
2027 — 2,385 1,021 3,406
2028 — 2,275 977 3,252
2029 — 1,444 922 2,366
2029 — 22,548 8,921 31,469

2,536 32,400 13,946 48,882

19
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15

(CSA)

(100 )
2024 364

100 2025 25
(SOFR)
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2024 2023 366 293
2024 2024 (
) 2023 64 121
( ) 2024 34.0 2023
30.0 2024 28.57 2023 29.70
2024 62 2024 2023
4.70 4.91
2025 2025 18 2025
1.24
(
GAAP )
30
90
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( )
C )
2024
14,661 52,786 (51,667) 15,780
C )
634 845 (355) 1,124
6 3 (6) 3
15,301 53,634 (52,028) 16,907
33 14 (6) 41
111 1,493 (1,495) 109
15,445 55,141 (53,529) 17,057
2023
12,289 47,523 (45,151) 14,661
C D
649 332 (347) 634
1 12 @ 6
12,939 47,867 (45,505) 15,301
44 0 1) 33
110 1,386 (1,385) 111
13,003 49,253 (46,901) 15,445
« ) 2024 12 29 2023 12 31
187 165
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( )
2024
1,455 5,955 (5,986) 1,424
« )
125 543 (550) 118
25 62 (65) 22
1,605 6,560 (6,601) 1,564
133 31 (38) 126
5 92 (91) 6
1,743 6,683 (6,730) 1,696
2023
1,470 6,241 (6,256) 1,455
« D
134 555 (564) 125
43 74 (92) 25
1,647 6,870 (6,912) 1,605
125 33 (25) 133
9 96 (100) 5
1,781 6,999 (7,037) 1,743
« ) 2024 12 29 2023 12 31
704 740
GAAP
GAAP
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10
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19
JINJ 2025
114,147
JINJ 2025
114,147 2024 2023
2024 2023
163.58 154.76 180.93 150.11
158.15 143.13 167.23 153.15
168.85 144.50 175.97 155.26
166.75 142.75 160.02 144.95
$145.05 $156.74

108/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
64 9.6

( )
.................................................................................... 4,696
............................................................................................................ 4,911
...................................................................................................... 9,607

19
14
27

( )
.................................................................................... 23 2,892
........................................................................... 21 4,521
( Y ettt 7 898
......................................................... 13 1,296
........................................................................ 64 9,607

17
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(€)) (2024 12 29 )
4,320,000 3’119’8‘23 1,200,157
2,000 2,000
« ) 712,921,000
3,119,843 (
( 1.00 ) (D)
0 (
3,119,843 _
C )
« ) 712,921,000
«C )
C )
( 2,000,000
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3) (2023 12 31 )
2001 12 30 50'020 ) 3'119'8§2 (6?126.5 ) (482221.
2012 — 3’119’8213 — (485555)1.
2012 12 30 — 3’119’8‘23 — (4gé§g1.
2013 12 29 — 3’119’8‘(13 — (485%321_
2014 12 28 — 3'119'8‘23 - (435%521.
2016 — 3’119’8213 — (485%521.
2017 — 519,50 — (408,261
2017 12 31 — 3'119'8‘23 — (485%521_
2018 12 30 — 3’119’8213 — (485%%1_
2019 12 29 — 3'119'8‘23 - (485321.
2021 — 3’119’8‘23 — (4gé§g1.
2022 — 5. 119.80 — (408,261
2023 — 3'119'823 - (435%221.
« )
« )
C )

16
©))
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136G

136G
19355 229,372i559 , 9.5

100
10055 186,308,?41 , -
52 55
02111 132,996,283
5.5
C )
( ) 2024 13 SEC 136 (
) 229,372,559 219,263,309
10,109,250 2,806,101
( ) 2024 26 SEC 136 (
) 186,308,341
168,179,492 186,308,341
( ) 2024 30  SEC 136 (
) 132,996,283
84,902,678 132,904,295
2024
2024 8.9
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4.91 2023 4.70
2025 2025 18 2025
1.24
2025 15 2025 27 2025 10
1.30
€y
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(Our Credo)
(Our Credo)
(Our Credo)
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( ) (Our Credo)
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c/o Johnson & Johnson, One

Johnson & Johnson Plaza, Room WH 2133, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA

( )
(
)
LeadDirector@its. jnj.com
( ) https://secure-www. jnj.com/wps/wcm/ jsp/contactUs. jsp.
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Office of the Corporate Secretary, Johnson & Johnson, One Johnson & Johnson

Plaza, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA
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2024 12 Covington
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2024

AUD CB NCG RCS ST FIN

D I 59 2022 C
(Huntsman Cancer
M C I 70 2015 Institute)CEO C
J A
(University of California, Berkeley)
I 61 2018 (Li Ka
Shing Chancellor s Professor in
Biomedical and Health)
J CH 62 2022 C
M A
LD 71 2019 (Lockheed Martin Corporation) cx =
P A I 65 2023 (Wellesley College)
H I 65 2019 (Best Buy Co., Inc.)
M B J
(Duke-Robert J.
I 61 2013 Margolis, MD, Center for Health Policy)
A M (Xerox
I 72 2009 Corporation) ¢
M A
I 63 2019 C
(GD)
N Y I 63 2020
E A I 60 2023 Advocate Health *
2024 13
« )
« )
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(2015

(Huntsman Cancer

Institute)( )

(University of Utah)( )

(Jon M. Huntsman
Presidential Endowed Chair)

(Exelixis) (2024 )
(Huntsman
Corporation) (2011 )

(Howard Hughes

Medical Institute) (Medical
Advisory Board)

(National Cancer

Institute) (Board of
Scientific Advisors)(2018 2022
)
(National Institute of
Health)
(Advisory Committee to the Director)
(2007 2010 )
(American
Association for Cancer Research)
(2013 2016 )
(American Society
for Cell Biology) (2006 2007
)

(National Academy of
Sciences) (American
Philosophical Society)
(American Academy of Arts
and Sciences)
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(Innovative Genomics Institute)

(Laboratory for
Genomics Research)
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(2020 )

(Caribou Biosciences, Inc.)

(Intellia Therapeutics, Inc.)
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. (Connors Center for Women=s Health and
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(National Academy of Medicine)
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(2013
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(Duke University)( )
J
(Duke-Robert J.
Margolis, MD, Center for Health Policy)

(Margolis Professor of Business,
Medicine and Policy)
(University of Texas)( )
(Dell Medical

School)
(Alignment
Healthcare) (2021 )
(Cigna
Corporation) (2018 )
(Research! America)
(National Academy of
Medicine)

(Consortium for
Value and Science-Driven Health Care)

(National
Alliance for Hispanic Health)
i0 (PrognomiQ, Inc.)

(United States of Care)

(Health Care Payment Learning and Action
Network)

(U.S. Food and Drug
Administration)
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)
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(Accelerate Acquisition Corp.)
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. (Joint Staff Surgeon)
. (Nucor
Corporation) (2019 )
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(Tenet Healthcare Corporation)(2019
)
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)
. (Mount
St. Mary’'s University)
. (Bob Woodruff
Foundation)

(Smithsonian National Museum
of African American History and Culture)
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(West Point)) (Board of Visitors)
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(Advocate Health)(

(CHRISTUS Health)

(St. Joseph
Health Care for Catholic Health
Initiatives)
(2018
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Bank of Richmond) (2022 )
(American Hospital
Association) (2017 )
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(Inflammation &
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C D N
134,180 205,000 20,000 359,180
150,000 205,000 25,000 380,000
116,250 205,000 0 321,250
125,000 205,000 20,000 350,000
184,289 205,000 20,000 409,289
125,000 205,000 30,000 360,000
125,000 205,000 40,000 370,000
125,000 205,000 4,000 334,000
165,710 205,000 20,000 390,710
150,000 205,000 0 355,000
125,000 205,000 20,000 350,000

125,000 205,000 0 330,000

184/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OooooOodd
c)
2024
D)
D 2024 25
(FASB) ASC 718
205,000 2024
1,385.697
(
)
E )
E
20,000
2023 2024

185/416



2024 12 29

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2024

)

3,803

13,975

8,278

11,380

U =« = | O

> | > > O

2,928

6,621

loe)

18,302

21,993

9,351

=Z2 = =2

5,217

> | < | > =

2,804

186/416



2024

EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000(E05943)
Oooooooa

187/416

D C )
MoC

D S

J A

MoA

P A C )
H

M B

A M

MoA

N_Y C )
E A C )
« )

« )



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2024
2024 2023
2023 2022

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

J 2024 1,600,000 0 10,787,159 4,919,991 3,981,050 2,694,000 320,160 24,302,360
2023 1,584,615 0 11,182,143 4,796,990 4,378,500 6,213,000 241,992 28,397,240
2022 1,490,962 0 5,940,829 2,318,959 3,079,750 0 268,987 13,099,487
J 2024 1,212,308 0 5,774,990 2,634,006 1,773,640 1,124,000 98,624 12,617,568
EVP 2023 1,147,962 0 5,766,005 2,460,014 1,928,800 2,514,000 98,072 13,914,853
2022 1,008,462 0 4,718,897 1,841,952 1,177,800 0 75,971 8,823,082
T
EVP  WWC 2024 896,308 0 3,012,514 1,373,987 1,392,200 1,136,000 4,051,929 11,862,938
J 2024 1,192,308 0 4,670,057 2,129,987 1,909,125 1,226,000 62,568 11,190,045
Evp 2023 1,130,000 0 4,246,820 1,799,992 1,896,250 1,844,000 78,332 10,995,394
e 2022 1,008,462 0 4,764,921 1,859,958 1,094,875 0 53,316 8,781,532
J
2024 1,192,308 0 3,953,124 1,802,995 1,725,000 441,000 190,003 9,304,430
EVP 2023 840,385 5,700,000 11,699,934 0 1,720,000 374,000 313,031 20,647,350
() EW wwe
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) ) ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2024 PSU2026 0 68,383 136,766 0 9,147,115 18,294,230
2024 PSU2026 0 36,610 73,220 0 4,807,063 9,794,127
2024 PSU2026 0 19,097 38,194 0 2,554,472 5,108,944
2024 PSU2026 0 29,605 59,210 0 3,960,054 7,920,107
2024 PSU2026 0 25,060 50,120 0 3,352,101 6,704,202
( F )

2024
( G )
cLe
cLe 2019 CLC
cLC
cLe
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2024 3,220,000 761,050 3,981,050
2023 3,650,000 728,500 4,378,500
2022 2,390,000 689,750 3,079,750
2024 1,754,000 19,640 1,773,640
2023 1,910,000 18,800 1,928,800
2022 1,160,000 17,800 1,177,800
2024 1,294,000 98,200 1,392,200
2024 1,725,000 184,125 1,909,125
2023 1,720,000 176,250 1,896,250
2022 928,000 166,875 1,094,875
2024 1,725,000 0 1,725,000
2023 1,720,000 0 1,720,000
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CLC
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( ) ( ) ( )
2024 2,694,000 0 2,694,000
2023 6,213,000 0 6,213,000
2022 0 0 0
2024 1,124,000 0 1,124,000
2023 2,514,000 0 2,514,000
2022 0 0 0
2024 1,136,000 0 1,136,000
2024 1,226,000 0 1,226,000
2023 1,844,000 0 1,844,000
2022 0 0 0
2024 441,000 0 441,000
2023 374,000 0 374,000

2024 2024 10 K

10
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2024 PRI-2012  MMP-2021 5.69
2023 PRI-2012  MMP-2021 5.16
2022 PRI-2012  MMP-2021 5.42
2021 PRI-2012  MMP-2021 2.89
2022 2024
SEC
(¢ ) ) ) )
J 2024 4,084,000 (1,390,000) 2,694,000 2,694,000
2023 5,613,000 600,000 6,213,000 6,213,000
2022 4,079,000 (6,245,000) (2,166,000) 0
J 2024 1,919,000 (795,000) 1,124,000 1,124,000
2023 2,174,000 340,000 2,514,000 2,514,000
2022 2,249,000 (3,651,000) (1,402,000) 0
T 2024 1,660,000 (524,000) 1,136,000 1,136,000
J 2024 1,740,000 (514,000) 1,226,000 1,226,000
2023 1,626,000 218,000 1,844,000 1,844,000
2022 1,218,000 (2,376,000) (1,158,000) 0
J 2024 440,000 1,000 441,000 441,000
2023 374,000 0 374,000 374,000
cLC
cLC
12 (AFR) 120
SEC
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CLC
53.76
52.90
( ) (0.86)
) (1.60)
5.45
(7.05)
0.00
( 1)
2024 401(K)
2023 2022 2024 2023
( 2024 13 2023 15 )
(¢ ) (¢ ) (¢ ) (¢ ) (¢ )
J 248,160 0 72,000 0 320,160
J 36,303 0 54,554 7,767 98,624
T 212,012 3,799,583 40,334 0 4,051,929
J 0 0 53,654 8,914 62,568
J 109,733 34,378 45,892 0 190,003
(

10,000
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2024
J 145,381 102,779
248,160
J 36,303
T 198,649
212,012
(Johnson &
Johnson MedTech Asia Pacific)
(

)
J
J 43,403 32,638

33,692 109,733
12
( )
(
)
(
)
2013
RSU PSU
3,799,583
34,378
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2024 2024 PSU RSU
E F
A B ¢ D E F 6 H I 3 K L M N
¢ ) ( )
« 7
C ) ) ) (@D) (@D) ) C ) (@D) ) ( ) ( )
J 0 2,800,000 5,600,000
2024 2024
sy 5 0 68,383 136,766 9,147,115
RSU 0 11,046 1,640,044
10,787,159
202415 177,816 157.92  157.92 4,919,901
J 0 1,525,000 3,050,000
2024 2024
e osu 15 0 36,610 73,220 4,897,063
RSU 2024 5,913 877,927
15
5,774,990
202“15 95,197  157.92  157.92 2,634,006
T 0 1,125,000 2,250,000
2024 2024
2026 PSU 15 0 19,007 38,194 2,554,472
RSU 202415 3,085 458,042
3,012,514
202415 49,658 157.92 157.92 1,373,987
J 0 1,500,000 3,000,000
2024 2024
sy 5 0 20,605 59,210 3,960,054
RSU 2024 4,782 710,003
15
4,670,057
202415 76,081  157.92  157.92 2,129,987
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( ) (¢ )
/
) ) (C ) ([@D) ) (@D) C ) ([@D) ) C ) )
0 1,500,000 3,000,000
2024 2024
2026 PSU 15 0 25,060 50,120 3,352,101
RSU e 4,048 601,023
3,953,124
202415 65,163 157.92 157.92 1,802,995
( D F )
D F 2024
G
( G 1)
G | 2023 2024 PSU
( J )
J 2023 2024 RSU
( K M)
K M 2023 2024
( N
N 2024 PSU RSU
D E
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2024 15 PSy RSU
2024 2026 EPS RSU  PSU
EPS TSR 2024 2026 PSU
TSR
PSU
PSU RSU
2024 15
(
157.92
)
3.10
2024 RSU 148.474
2024 2026  PSU
2024 2026 EPS 50 143.896
2024 2026 TSR 50 123.630
PSU 133.763
2024
157.92
(
4.15
)
(
17.85
)
C X
7.00
)
27.669
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2024 RSU  PSU
B D E F G H I J K
)
) ) ) ( )
2015
126,369 100.06 2025
2016
125,824 101.87 20%
2017
13 123,201 115.67 2027
13
2018
12 105,307 129.51 zoig
2019
11 110,868 131.94 Zoii
2020
10 133,516 151.41 2030
10
2021
114,776 164.62 2031
2022
14 0 99,811 165.89 2032
14
2023
13 57,417 114,833 162.75 zoig
2024
15 0 177,816 157.92 zoig
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RSU
2022

14 5,053 732,938
2023

13 6,939 1,006,502
2024

15 11,046 1,602,222
PSU
2022

14 19,296 2,798,885
2023

13 0 0 51,768 7,508,948
2024

15 0 0 46,055 6,680,278
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)
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )

2015
13,015 100.06 202

2016
16,820 101.87 2026

2017
13 19,241 115.67 2027
13

2018
12 12,066 129.51 2028
12

2019
1 66,386 131.94 2029
11

2020
10 88,219 151.41 2030
10

2021
80,976 164.62 2081

2022
14 0 79,280 165.89 2032
14

2023
13 20,445 58,880 162.75 zofg

2024
15 0 95,197 157.92 2oig
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RSU
2022

14 4,014 582,231
2023

13 3,558 516,088
2024

15 5,913 857,681
PSU
2022

14 15,327 2,223,181
2023

13 0 0 26,547 3,850,642
2024

15 0 0 24,657 3,576,498
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)
( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
2016
15,571 101.87 2026
2017
13 13,625 115.67 2027
13
2018
12 8,998 129.51 2028
12
2019
1 11,070 131.94 2029
11
2020
10 22,527 151.41 2030
10
2021
21,574 164.62 2081
2022
14 0 17,431 165.89 2032
14
2023
13 4,130 8,258 162.75 Zofg
2024
15 0 49,658 157.92 2034
15
RSU
2022
14 1,765 256,013
2023
13 998 144,760
2024
15 3,085 447,479
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PSU
2022

14 2,808 407,300
2023

13 0 0 3,102 449,945
2024

15 0 0 12,861 1,865,488
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( ) ) ( ) ) ( )
2015
58,504 100.06 2025
2016
56,471 101.87 2026
2017
13 43,712 115.67 2027
13
2018
12 43,391 129.51 2028
12
2019
11 67,397 131.94 2029
11
2020
10 91,324 151.41 2080
10
2021
82,127 164.62 2031
2022
14 0 80,055 165.89 2032
14
2023
13 21,545 43,089 162.75 zofg
2024
15 0 76,981 157.02 2034
15
RSU
2022
14 4,053 587,888
2023
13 2,604 377,710
2024
15 4,782 693,629
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PSU
2022

14 15,477 2,244,939
2023

13 0 0 19,425 2,817,596
2024

15 0 0 19,938 2,892,007
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2024
15 65,163 157.92 2034
15
RSU
2023
50,510 7,326,476
2024
15 4,048 587,162
PSU
2024
15 0 0 16,878 2,448,154
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2023 13 RSU
2023 13 RSU PSU
100 PSU
( H )
PSU  H
(
J)
PSU
TSR 2023 2025 PSU 0.0 EPS 2023
2025 PSU 161.0
TSR 2024 2026 PSU 0.0 EPS 2024
2026 PSU 134.7
( 1 K )
I K RSU  PSU
2024 12 27 (2024 ) 145.05
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2024

2024

2024 PSU RSU
(@) ( ) (@) ( )
J 130,969 8,685,864 45,313 7,128,237
J 0 0 31,301 4,923,634
T 0 0 8,199 1,288,646
J 59,397 3,908,661 31,243 4,914,233
J 0 0 25,255 3,651,620
2024

2024 2024

(@) (@) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
J 35 62 1,955,000 24,865,000 26,820,000 0
J 26 62 1,220,000 9,841,000 11,061,000 0
T 31 62 1,230,000 4,555,000 5,785,000 0
J 19 62 1,060,000 7,895,000 8,955,000 0
J 1 66 85,000 730,000 815,000 0

2024
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RVP( 2024 345,000
RVP( )
2024
B c D E F
( ) ) (¢ ) ) ( )
0 56,475 (53,481) 0 9,096,995
460,000 39,029 123,786 0 1,437,558
179,262 24,809 10,750 0 1,435,590
1,886,154 38,129 1,707,674 0 13,172,516
0 38,129 3,115 0 65,723
( B )
B (EIDP) (DCP)
50 100
F
2023 EIDP 50
100 2023 11 EIDP
DCP EIDP DCP 2024
50 100% DCP EIDP
EIDP
EIDP DCP
EIDP  DCP
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D EIDP DCP D cLC
cLC
EIDP DCP
G
cLC G
CLC
C ) C )
(¢ ) (¢ ) (¢ ) (¢ )
0 79,819 (133,300) (53,481)
95,682 31,544 (3,440) 123,786
9,636 18,314 (17,200) 10,750
1,692,618 47,306 (32,250) 1,707,674
0 3,115 0 3,115
( E )
2024
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DCP  EIDP F cLe
)
cLe
CLC
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

0 897,495 8,199,500 9,096,995

907,356 318,602 211,600 1,437,558
188,898 188,692 1,058,000 1,435,590
10,651,367 537,399 1,983,750 13,172,516

0 65,723 0 65,723

214/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

CLC

CLC

53.76

52.90

(0.86)

215/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

2024

2024 2024

2024
2024

2024
2024

2022

216/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oOoOooodn

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
0 2,153,846 0 0 0
123,000 128,000 123,000 65,000 131,000
20,329,773 20,329,773 0 20,329,773 20,329,773
20,452,773 22,611,619 123,000 20,394,773 20,460,773
0 1,220,000 0 0 0
185,000 191,000 185,000 97,000 224,000
11,606,321 11,606,321 0 11,606,321 11,606,321
11,791,321 13,017,321 185,000 11,703,321 11,830,321
0 1,073,077 0 0 0
237,000 241,000 237,000 122,000
3,570,985 3,570,985 0 3,570,985 3,570,985
3,807,985 4,885,062 237,000 3,692,985 3,845,985
0 1,200,000 0 0 0
141,000 147,000 141,000 75,000 165,000
9,613,769 9,613,769 0 9,613,769 9,613,769
9,754,769 10,960,769 141,000 9,688,769 9,778,769
0 1,200,000 0 0 0
0 20,000 0 11,000 33,000
3,035,316 3,035,316 0 10,361,792 10,361,792
3,035,316 4,255,316 0 10,372,792 10,394,792

( RIF ) PSU
2023 13 RSU 2024 12 29

(qualifying separation)

RIF
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) (@) (@) (@) (@) ( )
1,600,000 35 70 52 70 2,153,846
1,220,000 26 52 52 52 1,220,000

900,000 31 62 52 62 1,073,077
1,200,000 19 38 52 52 1,200,000
1,200,000 1 2 52 52 1,200,000
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2024 12 29 2023 12 31
( ) 24,105 3,467,986 21,859 3,144,854
( ) 417 59,994 1,068 153,653
023 166167 (23(5;‘5026 ))) 14,842 2,135,319 14,873 2,139,779
( ) 12,444 1,790,318 11,181 1,608,610
4,085 587,709 4,514 649,429
55,893 8,041,326 53,495 7,696,326
( ) 20,518 2,951,925 19,898 2,862,725
( ) 37,618 5,412,102 34,175 4,916,757
( ) 44,200 6,359,054 36,558 5,259,599
( ) 10,461 1,505,024 9,279 1,334,970
11,414 1,642,132 14,153 2,036,192
180,104 25,911,562 167,558 24,106,569
( ) 5,983 860,774 3,451 496,495
10,311 1,483,444 9,632 1,385,756
8,549 1,229,945 10,212 1,469,200
17,580 2,529,235 16,001 2,302,064
4,126 593,608 3,993 574,473
( ) 3,772 542,678 2,993 430,603
50,321 7,239,682 46,282 6,658,591
( ) 30,651 4,409,759 25,881 3,723,499
( ) 2,448 352,194 3,193 459,377
( 10) 7,255 1,043,777 7,149 1,028,527
( ) 390 56,109 2,881 414,489
17,549 2,524,775 13,398 1,927,570
108,614 15,626,296 98,784 14,212,054
« 19
( 2,000,000 ) — _ _ _
1.00 ( 12)
( 4,320.000,000 3,110.843,000 ) 3,120 448,874 3,120 448,874
«C ) ( 13) (11,741) (1,689,178) (12,527) (1,802,259)
155,791 22,413,651 153,843 22,133,392
¢ 12 75,680 10,888,082 75,662 10,885,492
(712,921,000 712,765,000 ) ’ 10 ’ 200
71,490 10,285,266 68,774 9,894,515
180,104 25,911,562 167,558 24,106,569
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2024 2023 2022
88,821 | 12,778,677 85,159 | 12,251,825 79,990 | 11,508,161
27,471 | 3,952,253 26,553 3,820,180 24,596 | 3,538,627
61,350 | 8,826,425 58,606 8,431,645 55,394 | 7,969,535
22,869 | 3,290,163 21,512 3,004,931 20,246 | 2,912,792
17,232 | 2,479,168 15,085 2,170,279 14,135 | 2,033,602
211 30,357 313 45,031 783 112,650
1,332)|  (191,635) (1,261) (181,420) (490) (70,496)
) 755 108,622 772 111,068 276 39,708
) 4,694 675,326 6,634 954,434 810 116,535
( 20) 234 33,666 489 70,352 275 39,564
16,687 | 2,400,759 15,062 2,166,970 19,359 | 2,785,179
) 2,621 377,083 1,736 249,758 2,989 430,027
14,066 | 2,023,675 13,326 1,917,212 16,370 | 2,355,152
¢ 2w — — 21,827 3,140,250 1,571 226,020
14,066 | 2,023,675 35,153 5,057,462 17,941 | 2,581,172
15)
5.84 840 5.26 757 6.23 896
— — | s8.62 1,240 0.60 86
5.84 840 13.88 1,997 6.83 983
5.79 833 5.20 748 6.14 883
— — | 8.52 1,226 0.59 85
5.79 833 13.72 1,974 6.73 968
15)
2,407.3 2,533.5 2,625.2
2,429.4 2,560.4 2,663.9
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2024 2023 2022
14,066 2,023,675 35,153 | 5,057,462 17,941 | 2,581,172
(
1,708 245,730 3.221)|  (463,405) @,796)|  (258,391)
) 2 288 26 3,741 (24) (3.453)
2 288 26 3,741 24) (3,453)
( (154) (22,156) (149) (21,437) (160) (23,019)
« ) 541 77,834 (1,183)|  (170,198) 1,854 266,735
— — 23 3,309 — —
62 8,920 (90) (12,948) 111 15,970
449 64,598 @,399)|  (201,272) 1,805 259,685
(511) (73,518) 422 60,713 454 65,317
(862) (124,016) (569) (81,862) (348) (50,067)
(1,373) (197,534) 147) (21,149) 106 15,250
( 786 113,082 @,741)|  (682,088) o1 13,092
14,852 2,136,757 30,412 | 4,375,374 18,032 | 2,594,264
2024 2023 ( )
((1,583) ) 797 (114,664 (460) ((66,180)
) 12,373 (1,780,104 ) (289) ((41,578) )
(66,324 (365) ((52,513) ) (39) ((5,611)
) 30
2023 2022
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C )
2022 74,023 123,060 (13,058) 3,120 (39,099)
17,941 17,941
( 4.45 ) (11,682) (11,682)
2,466 (974) 3,440
(6,035) (6,035)
C ) 91 91
2023 76,804 128,345 (12,967) 3,120 (41,694)
35,153 35,153
( 4.70 ) (11,770) (11,770)
2,193 (336) 2,529
(5,054) (5,054)
(25) (25)
1PO( 21) (23,786) 2,451 5,181 (31,418)
( ) (4,741) (4,741)
2023 12 31 68,774 153,843 (12,527) 3,120 (75,662)
14,066 14,066
( 4.91 ) (11,823) (11,823)
2,004 (295) 2,389
(2,407) (2,407)
« ) 786 786
2024 12 29 71,490 155,791 (11,741) 3,120 (75,680)
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( )( )
C )
2022 10,649,689 17,704,642 (1,878,654) 448,874 (5,625,173)
2,581,172 2,581,172
( 640 ) (1,680,689) (1,680,689)
354,783 (140,129) 494,913
(868,255) (868,255)
« D 13,092 13,092
2023 11,049,791 18,464,995 (1,865,562) 448,874 (5,998,516)
5,057,462 5,057,462
( 676 ) (1,693,350) (1,693,350)
315,507 (48,340) 363,847
(727,119) (727,119)
(3,597) (3,597)
1PO( 21) (3,422,092) 352,625 745,390 (4,520,108)
« ) (682,088) (682,088)
2023 12 31 9,894,515 22,133,392 (1,802,259) 448,874 (10,885,492)
2,023,675 2,023,675
( 706 ) (1,700,975) (1,700,975)
301,264 (42,442) 343,705
(346,295) (346,295)
« ) 113,082 113,082
2024 12 29 10,285,266 22,413,651 (1,689,178) 448,874 (10,888,082)
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( )( )}
2024 2023 2022
14,066 2,023,675 35,153 5,057,462 17,941 | 2,581,172
7,339 | 1,055,862 7,486 | 1,077,011 6,970 | 1,002,774
1,176 169,191 1,162 167,177 1,138 163,724
405 58,267 1,295 186,312 1,216 174,946
1,841 264,865 483 69,489 — —
— — | (20,980 (3,018,968) — —
(226)|  (32,515) 1|  (16,833) 380)| (54,671)
(2,183)| (314,068)| (4,194)| (603,391)] (1,663)| (239,256)
11 1,583 — — an (2,446)
4o6)|  (58,411) ©20)| (89,775  (1,290)| (185,592)
1,128)| (62,285) (1,323)] (190,340)] (2,527)| (363,559)
1,621 233,213 2,346 337,519 1,098 157,969
« ) 1,717 247,025 (3,480)| (500,668) 687 98,839
« ) 33 4,748 5,588 803,946 (1,979)| (284,719)
24,266 | 3,491,149 22,791 | 3,278,941 21,194 | 3,049,181
(4,424)| (636,481)| (4,543)| (653,601)| (4,009)| (576,775)
675 97,112 358 51,505 543 78,121
( 18) (15,146)| (2,179, 055) — — | @7,652)|(2,539,593)
( 18) (1,783)| (256,520) @70  (67,619) — —
(1,726)| (248,320)| (20,906)| (1,569,046)| (32,384)|(4,659,086)
2,462 354,208 19,390 | 2,789,639 41,609 | 5,986,287
1,517 218,251 (2,963)| (426,287) 249)|  (35,824)
) ( | (25,083) 12 1,726 (229)|  (32,946)
( (18,599) (2,675,838) 878 126,318 | (12,37D)](1,779,816)

(11,823)] (1,700,975)|  (11,770)| 1,693,350y (11,682)](1,680,689)
2.432)| (349,892)| (5,054)| (727,119)| (6.035)| (868,255)
15,277 | 2,197,902 13,743 | 1,977,205 | 16,134 | 2,321,199
(9,463)| (1,361,442)| (22,973)|(3,305,126)|  (6,550)| (942,349)

6,660 958,174 — — 2 288

(1,453)] (209,043) (1,551)| (223,142) (2,134)] (307,019)

838 120,563 1,094 157,394 1,329 191,203

272 39,133 (219) (31,508) (28) (4,028)

(Shockwave) (970)| (139,554) — — — —

— — 8,047 | 1,157,722 — —

— — 4,241 610,153 — —
— — | @,1149)] (160,271) — —

(38) (5,467) 269)| (38,701) 93 13,380

3.132)| (450,601)| (15,825)| (2,276,743)|  (8.871)|(1,276,271)

89)|  (41,578) 12|  @6,113) G12)|  (44,887)

« ) 2,246 323,132 7,732 | 1,112,403 360)[  (51,793)
21,859 | 3,144,854 | 12,880 | 1,854,340 | 13,309 | 1,914,766

— — 1,238 178,111 1,178 169,479

( ) 21,859 | 3,144,854 | 14,127 | 2,032,451 | 14,487 | 2,084,245

24,105 | 3,467,986 21,859 | 3,144,854 12,889 | 1,854,340
—_ — —_ — 1,238 178,111
( ) 24,105 | 3,467,986 21,859 | 3,144,854 14,127 | 2,032,451
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1,990 286,301 1,836 264,145 982 141,280
1,911 274,936 1,766 254,074 933 134,231
6,714 965,943 8,574 | 1,233,541 5,223 751,433
1,551 223,142 1,435 206,453 2,114 304,141
16,001 | 2,315,012 - - 18,710 | 2,691,808
(1,632)|  (234,796) — — @,058)| (152,214)
(  18) 14,459 | 2,080,216 — — 17,652 | 2,539,593
2023 2022
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7,100 — 7,100 7,100 —
6,123 — 6,123 6,123 —
@ 1,045 — 1,045 1,045 —
17,306 — 17,306 17,186 120
6,815 1 6,816 6,796 20
176 — 176 83 93
224 — 224 40 184
©)) 7,215 1 7,216 6,919 297
24,105 417
2023
)
3,340 — 3,340 3,340 —
@ 522 — 522 174 348
4,377 — 4,377 4,377 —
@ 338 — 338 189 149
4,814 — 4,814 4,814 —
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14,053 — 14,053 13,556 497
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5 — 5 1 4
237 — 237 43 194
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@
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— — — 275 —
C )
— — — 156 —
X (156)
2024 12 29 2023 12 31
) 2024 2023 2024 2023
12 29 12 31 12 29 12 31
7,935 8,862 (1,132) (1,216)
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2024 12 29 2023 12 31
( )
C ) « )
2024 12 29 2003 12 31
« ) 8 (60)
2024 12 29 2023 12 31
( )
) C ) )
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 29 12 31 12 29 12 31
282 (131) ( _ —
955 642 ( _ —
( )
2024 12 29 2023 12 31
2023 2024 " 2254
( ) 12 31 @ 122
(¢D)
« 4,473 ) (4,005) 451 451
696 (197) 274 773 773
2023 2023 " 2253
( ) @ 23
(¢D)
* 576 (368) 4,265 4,473 4,473
613 1 82 696 696
(€))
)
* 2023 12 31 9.5
2024



2024 15 36

2024 12 29 2023 12 31

27

ASC 820

171
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2024 12 29 2023 12 31
2024 2023

) ®
— 660 — 660 539
@) — 1,484 — 1,484 088
— 2,144 — 2,144 1,527
— 794 — 794 624
@) — 3,753 — 3,753 5,338
_ 4,547 — 4,547 5,962
— 50 — 50 64
— 17 — 17 75
® 451 — — 451 4,473
©) — 7,216 — 7,216 8,874
) 1,217 1,217 1,092

) 2024 2023
2,194 1,591
(2,172) (1,575)
22 16
4,564 6,037
(4,412) (5,604)
152 433
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) 2024 2023 2022
1,092 1,120 533
88 29 (194)
(6) 112 — 792
(75) ) 11)
) 1,217 1,002 1,120
(1) 2023 4,473 1,092
@
©)
©)
(5) 2024 12 29 2023 12 31 2023 1,217
1,092 1,116 2023
(6) 2024 105 2022
704
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( ) 2024 () 2023 ()
%ggo 22?411090)(3) — - 8l ® 0.68
?égg 20241.2756)(3) - - 637 @ 6.75
2.625 2025 750 2.63 750 2.63
0.55 2025 999 0.57 950 0.57
2.46 2026 1,999 2.47 1,997 2.47
2.95 2027 927 2.96 900 2.96
0.95 2027 1,458 0.96 1,419 0.96
1.150 2028

(750 1.0401)(2) 77 @ 1.21 828 ® 1.21
(750 1.1090)(3)

2.90 2028 1,498 2.91 1,497 2.91
6.95 2029 298 7.14 208 7.14
4.80 2029 1,146 4.83 — —
1.30 2030 1,646 1.30 1,630 1.30
4.90 2031 1,145 4.92 — —
?%gg 1.3235)(2) 25 @ 3.21 - -
4.95 2033 499 4.95 499 4.95
4.375 2033 854 4.24 854 4.24
4.95 2034 846 4.96 — —
1.650 2035

(15 1.0401)(2) 1,550 @ 1.68 1,652 @ 1.68
(15 1.1090)(3)

?égg i(.)gim)(z) 821 @ 3.37 - -
3.587 2036 869 3.59 864 3.59
5.95 2037 994 5.99 994 5.99
3.625 2037 1,358 3.64 1,357 3.64
5.85 2038 697 5.85 697 5.85
3.40 2038 993 3.4 993 3.42
4.50 2040 541 4.63 541 4.63
2.10 2040 845 2.14 849 2.14
4.85 2041 297 4.89 297 4.89
4.50 2043 496 4.52 496 4.5
iig5 L oigﬁ(z) 1,030 @ 3.58 — —
3.73 2046 1,978 3.74 1,977 3.74
3.75 2047 822 3.76 832 3.76
3.500 2048 744 3.52 743 3.52
2.250 2050 808 2.29 826 2.29
5.25 2054 843 5.26 — —
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) 2024 () 2023 ()
2.450 2060 1,058 2.49 1,073 2.49
83 — 69 —
32,400 @ 3.36 @ 27,350 @ 2.98 ®
1,749 1,469
30,651 25,881
@
(2) 2024 12 29
(3) 2023 12 31
(4) 2024 2023 20 10
2024 2025 25
364 100
SOFR
2024 2023
2024 60
35 2024 2023 17
15
2024 12 29 4.46
41 2023 12 31 5.37
20
2025
2029
) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
1,749 1,999 2,385 2,275 1,444 22,548
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) 2024 2023 2022
2,200 2,705 2,274
2,604 3,090 2,295
4,804 5,795 4,569
(2,539) (3,440) (1,990)
356 (619) 410
(2,183) (4,059) (1,580)
2,621 1,736 2,989

2024 2023 2022 21

) 2024 2023 2022
(458) (2,033) 4,606
17,145 17,095 14,753
16,687 15,062 19,359
21.0 21.0 21.0
(€)) 5-2) 6.1 (5-0)
1.0 (3.0) —
@ (2-6) 0.3 (1.1
1.5 1.0 0.3
(0.6) 0.8) 1.4
0.6 1.7 1.6
15.7 11.5 15.4

o
@
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2024 2023 4.2
2024 2023
2024 51 2023 70
19 )
2024
)
2024 ( IRS
2023
2022 3.9
2023
3.0
2023
« )
( )
21.1 70

19 )
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2024 2023
2024 2023
372 586
717 686
(833) (902)
(3,261) (1,252)
4,398 3,595
4,444 3,816
371 359
2,298 2,145
1,931 (1,492) 1,801 (1,695)
(1,589) (2,731)
1,212 831
1,083 (O]
16,826 (7,175) 13,819 (6,584)
(1,638) (1,149)
15,188 (7,175) 12,670 (6,584)
2025
2024 2023
1,149 775
451 355
— (116)
(46) 25
( ) 84 110
1,638 1,149
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( ) 2024 2023 2022
2,485 3,716 3,210
176 239 523
129 244 143
147) (781) (148)
(583) (880) o
(40) (53) 11)
2,020 2,485 3,716
2024 12 29 20
IRS 2016 2017 2020
2024 IRS
2013
12
12 200
2024 2023 2022 217 99 136
2024 2023 274 264
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2024 2023
) 2024 2023
2,968 3,129
1,920 1,963
2,910 2,527
49 68
7,847 7,687
502 538
7,255 7,149
2024 2023 6,046 4,992
10
2015
(
) 2014
( )
2021 2026
2026
2024 2023

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 2023 2022
) 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
948 893 1,319 277 264 320
1,402 1,437 908 209 214 104
(2,560)  (2,716)  (2,756) @ ®) ()
(184) (184) (184) 0} 0 )
« ) 174 (199) 650 53 23 122
@ 93 1 — 5) —
« ) (222) (676) (62) 530 487 533
«
( )
10
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2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
4.39 4.85 2.46 5.09 5.40 2.59
4.95 5.25 2.80 5.12 5.43 2.64
3.70 3.71 4.02 4.22 4.22 4.21
7.25 7.21 7.25
4.95 4.58 5.01 5.54 5.11 5.42
3.70 3.69 4.00 4.22 4.22 4.21

2024 2023
9.33 13.90
( 4.02 4.00
2048 2048
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2024 2023
2024 2023 2024 2023
31,744 29,390 4,108 4,192
948 893 277 264
1,402 1,437 209 214
75 73 — —
— (6) — —
«C ) @ (1,245) 2,068 398 469
0) — (352) — 1
(121) (238) — (332)
®) (1,801) (2,122) (556) (702)
(685) 601 1) 2
30,317 31,744 4,425 4,108
33,607 31,496 86 78
« ) 2,113 3,951 15 16
229 268 548 694
75 73 — —
(114) (176) — —
@ — (509) — —
®) (1,801) (2,122) (556) (702)
(714) 626 — —
33,395 33,607 93 86
3,078 1,863 (4,332) (4,022)
6,046 4,992 — —
(136) (119) (453) (416)
(2,832) (3,010) (3,879) (3,606)
3,078 1,863 (4,332) (4,022)
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) 2024 2023 2024 2023
3,903 4,962 691 354
C ) (1,051) (1,236) 0 (®)
2,852 3,726 687 348
28,883 30,139
(1) 2024 2023 C )
@
(3) 2024 2023 (U.S. Salaried Pension Plan)
400 800
) 2024 2023 2024 2023
« ) (222) (676) 530 487
( ) (807) 711 389 136
(172) 199 (53) (22)
« ) — @ — —
« ) 184 185 2 2
(79) 103 1 —
¢ ) ( ) (874) 1,195 339 116
(1,096) 519 869 603
2006 (Pension Protection Act of 2006)
2024 122 107
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
22,250 22,298 — — 11,145 11,309 — —
18,146 19,152 1,990 2,037 10,069 10,431 112 124
17,726 18,557 1,949 1,982 9,115 9,498 93 102
C )
4,104 3,146 (1,990) (2,037) 1,076 878 (112) (124)
4,524 3,741 (1,949) (1,982) 2,030 1,811 (93) (102)
2024
58 61 32 2023 58 61
31
2030
) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 5034
1,480 1,503 1,604 1,702 1,797 10,401
464 478 432 445 462 2,537
2030
) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
2034
133 135 140 145 150 815
( )
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2024 2023 2025
2024 2023 2025
55 58 54
45 42 46
100 100 100
NAV
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NAV
NAV
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
@
( ) ( ) ( )
) 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
— 12 511 829 — — — — 511 841
— — 7,885 5,985 — — — — 7,885 5,985
— — 2,321 3,899 — — — — 2,321 3,899
7,144 7,764 — — — — — — 7,144 7,764
— — 5,004 4,967 37 43 6,190 6,672 11,231 11,682
— — 88 49 128 92 4,087 3,295 4,303 3,436
7,144 7,776 15,809 15,729 165 135 10,277 9,967 33,395 33,607
@
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 93 86
( )
2024 12 31 13

2023 12 31 14
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11
401(K)
2024 2023 2022
282 263 257
12
( « ) )
2022 490,878 39,099
(20,007) (3,440)
35,375 6,035
2023 506,246 41,694
(15,521) (2,529)
31,085 5,079
(  21) 190,955 31,418
2023 12 31 712,765 75,662
(15,027) (2,389)
15,183 2,407
2024 12 29 712,921 75,680
2024 2023 2022 3,119,843,000
2023 4.70 2022 4.45 2024
4.91
2025 2025 18 2025
1.24
2022 14 50
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13 ( )
)
( ) )
) C )

2022 (10,017) 3) (2,702) (336) (13,058)
2022 (1,796) (24) 1,805 106 91
2023 (11,813) @n (897) (230) (12,967)
2023 (3,221) 26 (1,399) (147) (4,741)

1PO 4,885 — 296* — 5,181
2023 12 31 (10,149) Q) (2,000) @377) (12,527)
2024 1,708 2 449 (1,373) 786
2024 12 29 (8,441) 1 (1,551) (1,750) (11,741)

C ) )
10
)
14
( 100
)
( )
2024
2024 2023 2022 13
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« ) 2024 2023 2022 214
366 286
15
2024 12 29 2023 12 31 2023
) 2024 2023 2022
5.84 5.26 6.23
— 8.62 0.60
5.84 13.88 6.83
2,407.3 2,533.5 2,625.2
7.7 94.1 140.1
(55.6) (67.2) (101.4)
2,429.4 2,560.4 2,663.9
5.79 5.20 6.14
— 8.52 0.59
5.79 13.72 6.73
)
54.1 43.0 0.0
16
2024 12 29 2022
2012 2022
2012 2022 26
( ) 2022
2022
150 110 40
40 40

2022
2024 111
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2024 1,176 2023
1,087 2022 1,028
2024 251 2023 221
2022 177
2024 2023 2022 94 126 267
2024 1,002
2023 907 2022 866 2024 2023 2022
1.81 1.80 1.80
10
2012
2022
2024 2023 2022
10
( )
2024 27.67 2023 27.85 2022
23.23
2024 2023 2022
4.15 3.74 1.98
17.85 17.69 18.00
« ) 7.0 7.0 7.0

3.10 2.90 2.70
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2024 12 29
(G ( ) ( )
2023 12 31 112,238 139.88 2,239
13,917 157.92
(10,771) 107.06
(2,755) 162.45
2024 12 29 112,629 144.69 1,129
2024 2023 2022 560
729 1,228
2024 12 29
C )
o
100.06 -101.87 13,016 0.8  101.29 13,016  101.29
115.67 -129.51 18,252 2.6 122.49 18,252 122.49
131.94 -151.41 25,624 4.6 142 .87 25,624 142.87
157.92 -162.75 26,391 8.6 160.33 4,269 162.75
164.62 -165.89 29,346 6.6  165.29 13,522 164.64
112,629 5.3  144.69 74,683  135.72
o
2023 12 31 2023 112,238 ( 5.5
) 118,672 ( 5.8 ) 2023 12 31 2023
66,998 ( 123.39 ) 63,661 ( 113.06 )
( )
200
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2024 12 29
C D
2023 12 31 12,938 2,037
6,331 906
(5,454) (808)
778) 122)
2024 12 29 13,041 2,013
2024 2023 2022
147.51 152.63 153.67
2024 2023 2022
833 605 591
2024 2023
133.76 145.17 170.46
2024 2023 2022
146 140 94
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17
2023
( CODM )
CODM
( ) CODM
)
) 2024 2023 2022 22333 zgégz

11,355 11,539 11,036 (1.6) 4.6
6,473 6,513 5,899 (0.6) 10.4
17,828 18,052 16,935 (1.2) 6.6

REMICADE
1,000 1,143 1,417 11.7) (19.3)
98 147 204 (33.0) (28.0)
497 549 722 (9.5) (23.9)
1,605 1,839 2,343 (12.8) (21.5)

SIMPONI_ SIMPONI ARIA

1,082 1,124 1,166 (3.8) (3.6)
1,108 1,073 1,017 3.3 5.4
2,190 2,197 2,184 (0.3) 0.6

STELARA
6,720 6,966 6,388 (3.5) 9.0
3,641 3,802 3,335 (6.4) 16.7
10,361 10,858 9,723 (4.6) 11.7

TREMFYA
2,443 2,147 1,844 13.7 16.5
1,227 999 824 22.8 21.2
3,670 3,147 2,668 16.6 17.9
3 11 17 (74.1) (33.8)
0 0 0 — —
3 11 17 (74.1) (33.8)
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)
2024 2023
) 2024 2023 2022 2023 2022
1,354 1,500 1,680 (9.8) (10.7)
2,042 2,918 3,769 (30.0) (22.6)
3,396 4,418 5,449 (23.1) (18.9)
CovID-19
0 0 120 — *
198 1,117 2,059 (82.4) (45.8)
198 1,117 2,179 (82.4) (48.8)
EDURANT
(rilpivirine)
31 35 36 (10.0) 3.7
1,241 1,115 972 11.2 14.8
1,272 1,150 1,008 10.6 14.1
PREZISTA PREZCOBIX
REZOLSTA SYMTUZA
1,311 1,446 1,494 (9.4 3.2
401 408 449 @.7n 9.2
1,712 1,854 1,943 a.7 (4.6)
11 19 30 (41.0) (34.5)
203 278 289 (26.7) (3.8)
214 297 318 (27.6) (6.7)
4,398 4,065 3,570 8.2 13.9
2,718 3,076 3,323 (11.6) (7.5)
7,115 7,140 6,893 (0.4) 3.6
CONCERTA
(methylphenidate)
134 230 151 41.7) 52.5
507 554 493 (8.4) 12.2
641 783 644 (18.1) 21.6
INVEGA SUSTENNA XEPLION
INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA
3,125 2,897 2,714 7.9 6.7
1,097 1,218 1,426 (9.9 (14.6)
4,222 4,115 4,140 2.6 (0.6)
SPRAVATO
929 589 328 57.8 79.7
148 100 46 48.2 *
1,077 689 374 56.4 84.1
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)
) 2024 2023 2022 zgggg 22322
210 349 376 (39.8) (7.3)
965 1,204 1,358 (19.8) (11.3)
1,175 1,553 1,734 (24.3) (10.4)
10,854 8,462 6,930 28.3 22.1
9,926 9,199 9,052 7.9 1.6
20,781 17,661 15,983 17.7 10.5
CARVYKTI
869 469 133 85.2 *
94 30 — * *
963 500 133 92.7 *
DARZALEX
6,588 5,277 4,210 24.8 25.4
5,082 4,467 3,767 13.8 18.6
11,670 9,744 7,977 19.8 22.2
ERLEADA
1,282 1,065 968 20.3 10.0
1,717 1,322 913 29.8 44.8
2,999 2,387 1,881 25.6 26.9
IMBRUVICA
1,020 1,051 1,390 (3.0) 4.4)
2,018 2,214 2,394 (8.8) (7.5)
3,038 3,264 3,784 (6.9) 13.7)
TECVAYLI
418 334 12 25.3 *
131 61 3 * *
549 395 15 38.8 *
ZYTIGA
34 50 74 (32.2) (32.1)
597 837 1,696 (28.6) (50.7)
631 887 1,770 (28.8) (49.9)
643 215 144 * 49.3
288 269 280 7.1 (3.9)
931 484 423 92.5 14.4
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)
2024 2023
) 2024 2023 2022 2023 2022
3,143 2,697 2,346 16.5 15.0
1,140 1,117 1,071 2.0 4.3
4,282 3,815 3,417 12.3 11.6
OPSUMIT
1,520 1,292 1,132 17.7 14.1
664 681 651 Q.4 4.6
2,184 1,973 1,783 10.7 10.6
UPTRAVI
1,511 1,326 1,104 13.9 20.1
307 255 218 20.1 17.3
1,817 1,582 1,322 14.9 19.7
112 79 110 41.8 (28.6)
169 182 202 (6.9) (10.3)
281 260 313 7.9 (16.7)
2,866 2,906 3,042 1.4 (4.5)
696 765 845 ©.1) .4)
3,562 3,671 3,887 (3.0) (5.5)
XARELTO
2,373 2,365 2,473 0.3 4.4)
2,373 2,365 2,473 0.3 4.4)
494 541 569 (8.8) (5.0)
696 765 845 9.1) 9.4)
1,189 1,306 1,414 (8.9) (7.6)
33,970 31,169 28,604 9.0 9.0
22,994 23,590 23,959 2.5) (1.5)
56,964 54,759 52,563 4.0 4.2
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)
) 2024 2023 2022 zgggg zgégz
@
4,513 3,633 2,169 24. 67.5
3,194 2,717 2,131 17. 27.5
7,707 6,350 4,300 21. 47.7
2,738 2,458 2,036 11. 20.7
2,529 2,230 1,901 13. 17.3
5,267 4,688 3,937 12. 19.1
&)
1,213 1,066 31 13. *
284 240 — 18. *
1,496 1,306 31 14. *
(€))
442 — — *
122 — — *
564 — — *
@
120 109 102 10. 6.7
260 247 230 5. 7.3
380 356 332 6. 7.1
5,689 5,525 5,321 3. 3.8
3,470 3,417 3,267 1. 4.6
9,158 8,942 8,587 2. 4.1
1,057 996 943 6. 5.6
581 564 571 3. 1.2)
1,638 1,560 1,514 5. 3.0
922 896 851 2. 5.3
623 559 508 11. 10.2
1,545 1,456 1,359 6. 7.1
2,013 1,949 1,882 3. 3.6
1,036 1,030 989 0. 4.1
3,049 2,979 2,871 2. 3.8
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)
2024 2023
2024 2023 2022 2023 2022

1,696 1,684 1,645 0.7 2.4
1,230 1,263 1,198 (2.6) 5.4
2,926 2,947 2,843 0.7) 3.7
4,003 4,031 3,897 0.7) 3.4
5,842 6,006 5,793 Q.7 3.7
9,845 10,037 9,690 (1.9) 3.6
1,838 1,833 1,784 0.2 2.8
2,650 2,837 2,785 (6.6) 1.9
4,488 4,671 4,569 (3.9) 2.2
2,165 2,198 2,113 (1.5) 4.0
3,192 3,168 3,008 0.8 5.3
5,358 5,366 5,121 0.2) 4.8
2,128 2,086 1,990 2.0 4.8
3,018 2,986 2,859 1.1 4.5
5,146 5,072 4,849 1.5 4.6
1,684 1,626 1,522 3.6 6.8
2,049 2,076 2,022 (1.3) 2.7
3,733 3,702 3,543 0.8 4.5
444 460 468 3.4) (1.8)
969 910 837 6.5 8.6
1,413 1,370 1,306 3.2 4.9
16,332 15,275 13,377 6.9 14.2
15,525 15,125 14,050 2.6 7.7
31,857 30,400 27,427 4.8 10.8
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)
2024 2023
) 2024 2023 2022 2023 2022
50,302 46,444 41,981 8.3 10.6
38,519 38,715 38,009 (0.5) 1.9
88,821 85,159 79,990 4.3 6.5
* 100
o
(2) 2022 12 22
(3) 2024 31
) 2024 (3) 2023 (4)
56,964 31,857 54,759 30,400
14,036 13,345 13,715 12,722
10,906 10,812 9,842 10,476
13,529 3,703 11,963 3,122
W (426) 257 993 (589)
18,919 3,740 22,659 18,246 4,669 22,915
@ 5,972 7,853
16,687 15,062
) 2022 (5)
52,563 27,427
14,066 10,397
9,714 9,537
11,642 2,493
a 1,494 553
15,647 4,447 20,094
@ 735
19,359
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) 2024 2023
57,070 58,324
84,322 74,710
141,392 133,034
®) 38,712 34,524
180,104 167,558
) 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
1,710 1,653 1,374 3,760 3,847 3,687
2,443 2,372 2,120 3,237 2,943 2,302
4,153 4,025 3,494 6,997 6,790 5,989
— 162 303 — 383 641
271 356 212 342 313 340
4,424 4,543 4,009 7,339 7,486 6,970
Q)
) 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023
50,302 46,444 41,981 70,670 54,832
20,212 20,410 20,664 27,267 31,616
( ) 4,714 4,549 4,108 1,728 1,491
13,593 13,756 13,237 1,454 1,500
88,821 85,159 79,990 101,119 89,439
1,217 1,192
77,768 76,927
88,821 85,159 79,990 180,104 167,558
2024
20.5 15.6 12.3 2023
18.2 15.1 14.2
2022
18.9 15.0 13.8
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RISPERDAL
2020

COVID-19

(Acclarent)

COoVID-19

2020
(M710)

2023

COVID-19
2020

(InJ-T7474462)
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51 70

2023

12.5

(Momenta Pharmaceuticals)
10
(Momenta Pharmaceuticals)
15
(XBiotech, Inc.)
) ( HS )
AD
AD HS
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2023
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©)
)

18
2024

2024

2024

2024 2023
2024 2023
1TCI) 132.00
(CNS)
151

(Ambrx Biopharma, Inc.)(

(

(Shockwave Medical Inc.)(

(Proteologix, Inc.)
20

30

2024

45
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20,518 19,898
81,818 70,733

(Intra-Cellular Therapies, Inc.)

)

2024

12 (
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2024 31 (SWAV)
( CAD ) ( PAD )
( VL )
335.00
2024
2024
( ) 2024 31 2024 12 29
1.1 1.1
7.5 7.6
5.3 5.3
0.6 0.6
0.5 0.5
0.5 0.4
15.5 15.5
1.5 1.5
* 1.0 1.0
*ox 0.4 0.4
2.9 2.9
12.6 12.6
2024 31 12.6
1.1
0.6
* 1.0
2024 30 13.1
* 2024

**k
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2024
« )
CAD PAD VL
14
50
9.0
2024
(ADC)
20 ( 18 )
28.00
23 (
19 ) ( )
40 70
17
2024
2023
2022 177 ( ) 2022
(Abiomed, Inc.)( )
2022 12 22
171
380.00
35.00 ( 16 ) ( CVR

) (CVR ) 165
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CVR
a.
37
b ST
7.50
C.
2029 12 31
2023
(
66 11
14
9.5
2024 2023 2022

GAAP

2027
(
2028
PCI(
)
)
« )
2024 2023
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STEMI )
FDA(

10.00
2023

111

Impella®

2022
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2029

Impella®
)

STEMI Impella®

(

201

30
20

2024

70
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2024 v (V-Wave Ltd.)
v ) NM26 (

)
2024 10 v

11 i

2024 11
(Numab Therapeutics AG)
AD NM26
12.5 12.5

2023 (Laminar Inc.)

2023
(AFib) (LAA)

2022

2024
(Ponvory)
2023
2023 ( )
2024
2022
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( JOHNSON = S )
2020
(Ingham v. Johnson & Johnson, et al.) 2018 47
( ED 207476 ( ) 21
2021
2021
25
2014 (Mississippi Consumer Protection
Act) JOHNSON = S JOHNSON = S (2012
)
2020
42 2024
2024
2021 10 (Johnson & Johnson Consumer
Inc.)( JJCI ) ( 2021 )
JJCI (a)
(LTL Management LLC)( LTL ) (b
LTL (Royalty A&M LLC)( RAM
) (©
( JJCI ) JJCI
JJacl (
)
( )
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2021 10
11
( LTL ) LTL  JJcr  JJcl
( )
LTL LTL
2022
LTL
2023 30 LTL
2023 LTL
LTL
11 ( LTL
) LTL 362
LTL JJCI JJCI
( )
2023
( LTL ) LTL
2023 2023
LTL
2023 LTL
2023 2023 LTL
2023 LTL
2023 10 LTL 2024
LTL
2023 10 ( )HLTL
)
)
)
2023 12 LTL
(LLT Management LLC)( LLT
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LTL
(MDL)
2024
2024
2024 11 (
)
(
) 64.75 (
80 4.4 ) 25
99.75
2024 LLT €)) (Red
River Talc, LLC)( ) (O (Pecos
River Talc LLC)( ) © ( ) (New
Holdco (Texas) LLC)
2024
11 ( )

17.5
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11
2024
2024 10
11 2024 10 2024 12
2025
15 2024
2024 10
2025 18
95
2024
50 2024 12 29
2024 116 ( 135 ) 10
2019 (Imerys Talc America,
Inc.) (Imerys Talc Vermont, Inc.)
(Imerys Talc Canada, Inc.) ( )
11 ( )
( )
11 ( )

(TDP)
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2021 (Cyprus
Mines Corporation)( ) 11
( )
2023
(
)
2024 ( )
11
( )
2024
11
2024 10 (
) ( )
2025 13 2025
2025

2025
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2018

2019 12

2023

2024

2024

23(f)
23(f)

2014

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(

( NAS

2021

JP1

390
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2019
LTL 2022
2023 12
23()
2024 2024
2024
2024 2025
2025
(Janssen
) DURAGESIC  NUCYNTA NUCYNTA ER
3,500
50
70 2024
2024
JPI 35
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(Janssen Inc.) 2025

2024 2024 10
2019 11

2024

ASC 450-20-25
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2024 12 29
( JOHNSON = S ) 62,830
ASR XL (DePuy ASR XL Acetabular System) ASR 60
(DePuy ASR Hip Resurfacing System)
PINNACLE (PINNACLE Acetabular Cup System) 910
5,990
PHYSIOMESH (ETHICON PHYSIOMESH Flexible Composite Mesh) 130
RISPERDAL 7
ELMIRON 2,170
ASR XL ASR
2010 (DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc.)(
) ASR XL ASR (
ASR )
( )
2013 11 ASR
ASR (
) 10,000 ASR
ASR
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2019
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2022

PINNACLE

(Ethicon, Inc.)(
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PHYSIOMESH
2016 PHYSIOMESH (
)
( )
(MCL)
(C.R. Bard, Inc.)
Proceed Proceed (Proceed Ventral Patch)
(Prolene Hernia Systems)
2021
3,600 ( 4,300 )
2021 3,729
PROCEED (PROCEED Mesh) PROCEED
2019
PROLENE (PROLENE Polypropylene Hernia System)
2020
2022 10 Proceed Proceed Prolene
PHYSIOMESH PROCEED PROCEED PROLENE
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RISPERDAL
RISPERDAL
RISPERDAL
2019 10
80 ( 2020 6.8 )
2021
ELMIRON
ELMIRON
ELMIRON
2020 12
ELMIRON

ELMIRON
ELMIRON
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( ANDA )
FDA ANDA (
) FDA
)

( )
2011 (2011 America Invents Act) ( USPTO

(IPR) ANDA
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XARELTO

2021 (Bayer
Pharma AG) (Bayer AG)

(Bayer Intellectual Property GmbH) XARELTO
ANDA
(Dr. Reddy ” s Laboratories, Inc.) (Dr. Reddy ~s
Laboratories, Ltd.) (Lupin Limited) (Lupin
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (Taro Pharmaceutical
Industries Ltd.) (Taro Pharmaceuticals U.S.A_,
Inc.) (Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.)
(Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.) (Mylan Inc.)
(Mankind Pharma Limited) (Apotex Inc.)
(Apotex Corp.) (Auson Pharmaceuticals Inc.)

(Shanghai Auson Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd.)
(Cipla Ltd.) (Cipla USA Inc.)

(InvaGen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Prinston Pharmaceutical, Inc.) (Ascent Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.) (Hetero Labs Limited) 2024 10
2024 11
2025 (
9,539,218 ) 9,539,218 10,828,310
10,828,310 USPTO 2023
USPTO 2023
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INVEGA SUSTENNA
2018 (Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)
INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA
(Mylan Laboratories Limited)
(Pharmascience Inc.) (Mallinckrodt PLC)

(Specgx LLC) (Tolmar, Inc.) (Accord Healthcare,
Inc.) (Qilu Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.)
(Qilu Pharma Inc.) 9,439,906

2020 10
9,439,906
2024
2024 11
9,439,906
2025 2024
9,439,906
2018
INVEGA SUSTENNA ANDS
( )
2,655,335
2024 2024

2,655,335
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INVEGA TRINZA

2020
(Janssen Research & Development, LLC)
INVEGA TRINZA ANDA
(Mylan Institutional LLC) 10,143,693
2023
2025
SYMTUZA
2021 11 (Janssen Products, L.P.)
(Janssen Sciences Ireland Unlimited Company)
(Gilead Sciences, Inc.) (Gilead
Sciences lIreland UC) SYMTUZA
ANDA
(MSN Laboratories Private Ltd.)
(MSN Life Sciences Private Ltd.)
(MSN Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
10,039,718 10,786,518 2025
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ERLEADA
2022 (Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( )
(Sloan Kettering Institute for Cancer Research)(
SK1 ) (The Regents of the University of California)
ERLEADA ANDA
(Zydus Worldwide DMCC)
( ) (Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA), Inc.)
(Zydus Lifesciences Limited) V(Hetero Labs Limited
Unit V) (Hetero USA, Inc.) 9,481,663 9,884,054
10,052,314 ( RE49,353 ) 10,702,508 10,849,888 8,445,507
8,802,689 9,388,159 9,987,261 RE49,353 11,963,952
2024 10 SK1
% 2024 11
( )
SPRAVATO
2023
SPRAVATO ANDA
(Hikma
Pharmaceuticals Inc. USA) (Hikma Pharmaceuticals PLC)
(Alkem Laboratories Ltd) 10,869,844

11,173,134 11,311,500 11,446,260
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INVOKANA
2024
ANDS

(Jamp Pharma Corporation)

2025 12

2016 (Abiomed, Inc.)(
Cardiovascular LLC)( )
7,022,100 ( 100 )
9,561,314 9,597,437 )
2021

2023
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INVOKANA

(
2,534,024 2,671,357
2025
)

(Maquet
Impella (
8,888,728 9,327,068 9,545,468

100

100
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2018 (CADE)

(Johnson & Johnson do Brasil Indlistria e Comércio de Produtos

para Salde Ltda) 30
(
DOJ ) (Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act) DOJ
2023 DOJ
(False Claims Act)
(Johnson & Johnson
Surgical Vision, Inc.) (Johnson & Johnson
Vision Care, Inc.)( J&J ) J&J
J&J D0J
2016 HIV PREZISTA INTELENCE
2012 12
2021 12 2022
2024 2024 13
2017 ( JBI ) REMICADE
SIMPONI ARIA
2019 JBI

2019
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(Superfund)
(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act)
(
)

2017 10

(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)

2020
2022
2023 2024
2024 11
2024 (
)
2024
(Employee Retirement Income Security Act)(ERISA)
2025
2020 10 (Fortis Advisors LLC)(
) (Auris Health Inc.)( )
( )
2019
2021 12
2024 2024
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2019 10
BWI )
2025
2019 ( FTC
)
FTC
2022 FTC
) REMICADE
FTC
2018 10
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.)
Pharmaceuticals U.S., Inc.)
Research, Inc.)(
TRACLEER
TRACLEER
2023 12
STELARA
20

2024
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(Innovative Health, LLC)

(Biosense Webster, Inc)(

BWI
) (
REMICADE
(
2025
(Actelion
(Actelion
(Actelion Clinical
)
2019
2024
2026
( )
STELARA
( )
24 2024
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2018 12 (Janssen Oncology,
Inc.)
( )
ZYTIGA
2021 12
20
2023
2023
(RSV) HIV
2024
2023
2024
2023
2024
2023

2025
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2024 2023
( ) 2024 2023
(€)) 102 479
@ 167 319
269 798
(1) 2024 102 2023
449 30
(2) 2024 132 35 2023
40 279
2024 12 29 2023 12 31
21
(
) 2023 23
2024 15 36 36
2024 17
182,329,550
« )
2023 ( 1PO ) 0.01
( ) 22.00 198,734,444
42 1PO
25 1PO
89.6 2023

13 2023
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190,955,436

2023 23
12 31
( TMA
TSA
24
TMA
2024 2023

2023 12

31

9.5 2023
2023 23 116
210
28
TSA
TMA
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80.1
1,533,830,450
314
23 43

2023

43
12
2023

IPO

( TSA )

I1PO
T™MA

TSA TMA
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(
2024 145
2023 2022 986
1,089
2022

) 2023 (1) 2022
10,036 14,953
4,369 6,494
5,667 8,459
3,085 4,519
258 468
(117) —
199 —
C ) 1,092 1,060
( (20,984) —
— 46
22,134 2,366
307 795
21,827 1,571

@ 2023 23

) 2023 (1) 2022
383 641
162 303
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@
2002 404
2024 12 29
— (2013 ) (C0S0)
2024 ( )
( ) 2024
12 29
2024 2024
SEC
2024 12 29
2024 12 29
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Johnson & Johnson and subsidiaries consolidated balance sheets
At December 28, 2024 and December 31, 2023
{Dollars in Millions Except Share and Per Share Amounts) (Mote 1)

Bt 01
Assals
Current asseis
Cash and cash equivalents (Mofes 1 and 2) £24 105 21,858
Marketable seouribes [MNoles 1 and 2| 417 1,088
AZcourts rocoivable rade, ks alleeancss S167 (2022, 51665 14,842 14573
Irremrignes (Notes 1 and 3) 12,444 10981
Prepaid expenses and ather recavables 4,085 4514
Total current assets 55,093 53,495
Pragrty. placl 8% apapmient, nel [Pl 1 snd 4] 20518 10,598
Irdangible asscts, el [Notes 1 and 5 37 g8 4,975
Geadadl (Notas 1 and 5) 44,200 38,558
Dirlorred taxes on income [Hobe B) 10,481 8,278
Obast stants 11,414 14,153
Tatal assets 180,164 187,558
Liabilities ahd Shaneholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Lianifrs and nobed payabls (Mobs T 55,883 3451
Accaurds payable 103N B&x2
Arcnsed Eabilites B84y 0212
Acorued nobates, rebums and promotions 17 240 18,001
Aconssd compensation and employss relsied obiigatons 4139 1533
Acotund lanes on neoma (Mote B) 3772 2583
Tatal current liakbilities 50,321 45,2462
Leng-term debd (Nate Th 30,851 25,8481
Dlerned fnxes on income (Mobe 8) 2448 3193
Emrpleyen retetod obligascr (Nalos & and 10} 1255 749
Liengg-term lasog paymbis (Male 1) 350 2881
ke liahiltins 17 548 13,358
Total liabilities 108,814 98,754
Commstmonis and Contingoncies (Mobe 18)
Shareholdeds’ squily
Preferied siock — wihout par walhes (suthonzed and unissised 2,000, 000 shanss| — —
Common siock = par valse $1.00 per shane (Mobe 12) {authoized 4,120 000,000 shares; issued 3,118 843, 000 shares) 3130 3120
Acoumudated otfer comprehenshee income (loss| [Nobe 13] {11,741} 12,537T)
Rolained eamings and Adddtional-paid-n-capital 155,791 153,843
Leta comman siock Fold in treasuny, ol coal (Nebe 127 (712,921 000 shares and 712, TES (00 sharea) 75,680 75662
Tatal shareholders” equity 71,450 68,774
Taotal linbilities and shareholders” equity §1080, 104 167,550

Soe Mates fo Consoidaled Financ' Siatemants

Fry dahnsaonSdohnson

312/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

Johnson & Johnson and subsidiaries consolidated statements of earnings
{Dollars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) (Note 1)

024 23 m22
Sales to customers $58,821 85,150 70,980
Co#t of products solo 24N 26,553 24566
Gross prodl 51,380 58,606 55,364
Salng, marketing and adminéstrative axpenses 22868 21,513 20,248
Ressarch and development axpansa 17222 15,085 14,135
In-process mesearch and development impairments 211 313 TE3
Irilerest ncome 11,332} {1.261) (480}
Irteres] eapanse, mel of portion capilaized (Mol 4) 755 L 276
Cbher {incoims) Bxpense._ neld 4 604 6634 a10
Restructuwing (Note 30) 234 44 275
Eamings bafone provision for aes on income 16,667 15,062 19,359
Provision far taces on income (Mote 8] 283 1,738 2,989
MNet samings from continuing cperations 14 085 13,336 16,370
Met eamings rom discontnued operations, net of tax (Nole 21} - aner 157
Ml earnings F14.068 35,1583 17849
Med earnings per share (Notes 1 and 15}
Cenlinuing aparations - basic 5564 5.78 6.23
Discontinued oparations - basic - 882 0.0
Total net earnings per share - basic §5.84 13,88 6,83
Conbnuing operabcns - ciuied 5.9 220 614
Discommnued operatons - diuted —_— B.52 EI.E_Q
Total net earnings per share - diluted 3519 1372 873
Average shares outstanding (Motes 1 and 15)
Basic 24073 28316 2E282
Diluted 24704 2, 5E0.4 26838
Zee MNotes fo Consobdated Financiad Stdemants
2074 Annual Repon 45

313/416



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Johnson & Johnson and subsidiaries consolidated statements of comprehensive

income
{Dollars in Milliona) (Mete 1)
2024 2023 2022
Met gamings $14.065 35,153 17.941
Cthes comprehirsane income (loss), net of tax
Foteign cumency tansiason 1,708 13,221) {1,796)
Sacurilies:
Unrealized holding gain (loss) ansng during panod ) 16 (24)
Riclassifications 1o eamings = — —
Nt chanps 2 i 24)
Employes benedil plans:
Prior service enedit (cost), nel of amanization (154} (145 [180]
Gain (loss), net of amorizabicn a1 1.183) 1.854
Cansumer settiement’ curtailment — 23 —
Effect of sxchange rates E2 (96 m
Nat changs 449 {1,290 1,805
Deerivatives & hedges:
Unrealzed gain (0ss) arksing during period (511} 437 454
Reclassifications o eamngs (B&Z) (SEa) [348)
ot changs 11.373) (147) 106
Ofher comprehersie ncome (1945 TE8 T 81
Comprehensive income §14.862 30412 18,022

Thee kax costibensiil) effects in other comprehenshe income for the fecal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 respectively; Foreign Curency Transtation, $(1.1) bilion,
ST97 milion and 5{460) milicn; Employes Senefit Plans: $86 milion, 5{28%) milon and 3461 milion, Dervatves & Hedges: 5(355) milicn, ${3%) milion and 530

milicen
Soe Notes fo Consoidaled Financia! Siatemans

Amounts pressaled for 2023 and 2022 have nof been recast fo exciude discontinved operations

i dahnsondohnson
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Johnson & Johnson and subsidiaries consolidated statements of equity

{Dollars in Millions) (Note 1)
Actained
Earnings snd Accusmulated Commsn
Other Stock Treasury
paidin  Gomprehensive Isnued Stack
Total capital Ingomse (Lois) Amsun Al
Balance, January 2, 2022 574021 123,060 13088 3120 (3s.0em)
Met eamings 17841 171
Cash oricends paid (54 45 per share) |11,682) i11,682)
Empioyes compensation and siock opbion plans 246t (8ra) 4440
Repurchase of common stock [6,03%) (6,035)
Chee comprehansie incoma (1a55), net of tnx -1 il
Balance, January 1, 2023 76,804 128,345 (12,967 3,120 (41,694)
Mt aamings 35153 35,153
Cash civicends paid (34 70 per share) 111,77 m,7ro
Emplayes compensalion and stock option plans 2,153 {338) 2588
Repurchase of comman stock (5,054 (50%4)
Cther [25) {25}
Kemwue Separation /IPO [Nole 21) [23.7846) 2451 5181 (31.418)
Cffies comprehensas incams (1ass), net of tax (4,741} {4,741)
Balance, December 31, 2023 ) BE.7T4 153,843 (12.527) 3.120 (T5.862)
Met samings 14,066 14,066
Cash onicends paid (54 97 par share) 111,823 INQ NPl
Empiayes compensalion and slock opbion plans 2094 (285) 2383
Repurchase of comman siack {2,407} {2407}
Ohed comprehirmang incoma (loss), net of B 188 [fi:]
Balance, December 29, 2024 571,490 155,791 1.74%) EREY (75.650)
Sae Nates fo Cansoldaled Financial Slialemanls
2024 Annual Repon a7
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Johnson & Johnson and subsidiaries consolidated statements of cash flows
{Dallars in Millions) (Mote 1)

2024 023 022
Cash Fows from operaling aclivities
Med gamings $14,068 35,153 17841
Adjustmants i meconcle net samings o cash fiows from cpera®ng activities
Depredalion and amorlizaton of property and intangiles T8 T80 6.870
Stock based compensalion 1178 1,182 1,138
Asse| wibe-downs 403 1,285 1218
Charges for scquired insprocess research and development assets 1841 483 T
Gain on Keneue separation - [20.984) —
el gain on sahe of Bisslabusiness s [226) [RLEN (380}
Diaferred Lax provitaan (2.183) (4,104 (1.883)
Credil losses and BLCOUNIS recsivable alraances 1 —_ (17}
Changes i assals and liabdities. nel of aflects rom Bcqusibons and dvestiures:
Increase in @coounts receivable [(406] [G24) (1.290)
Increa s in InvEntones 11.528) 11.323) |2.52T)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued llabiibes 1821 2,346 1.068
Decreasei|increase ) in other curnent and non-current assats 1.7 (3.480) ..o
_IncrenseDeciease) i olher cument and noncurrent ssbiltes _» 5568 1197
Mel cash Mlews fnom operating aclivities 4,266 227N 21,194
Cath lows from investing sctivilies
Addlicns o prapeny, plan! nd equipment 14.424) 14,543 14,009
Procesds from the disposal of assets/businesses. nel 675 L] 543
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired [Male 18) [15.846) - (17 652}
Acquired Inprocess ressarch and development assets (Hole 18) 11.TE3) [470) —
Purchates of ivvestments {1.728) [10,906) {32.384)
Sales al irvesimanis 2462 18,380 416009
Credd suppom agreamants aclivity, nel .57 (2.963) (249
Other {incisding capitaiized licarmas and miesiones ) (174) 12 (228}
Mot cash [used byfrom investing activities [18.698) e (12.371)
Cash Aows 1'mm Timancing activities
Dividenes to sharehciders 111.823) (n.770) |11.682)
Repurchass ol sommen siack 12.432) 15.054) (B.035)
Procasds from sharl-term dakt 15217 13,743 16124
Repayment of short-letm debi (BLAE3) (22.873) {6,550
Progesds from kong-Serm dedil, net of issuange costs BBED - 2
Rapayment of keng-term dabl 11.453) {1.551) (2,134}
Progeeds from the sxerdse of siock options/employes withholding ey on stock swards, ned a8 1,084 1328
Credt support agreemants activity, net a2 (219} {28}
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2024 023 o]
Seftlement of cormrertible debl scquired from Shockware (8T — —
Procesds of shori and bong-iesm debt, net of iesiance cosl, related o the debt that ranslerred lo Kenvue at
separation e B04T —
Procesds from Kemue inilial pubkc offenng — 4241 —_
Cash ransfemed 0 Kenvue at separation - (1.114) —
Other {38) (268) e}
Mot cash used by financing activities 13,132) (15.825) {B871)
Effect of @xchange rale changes an ¢ash and cash equivalents (268} 112 (312}
Increasef{Decrease | in cash and cash equivalents 2246 T2 [0}
Cash and cash equivalents from comtinuing operations, beginning of period 21,859 12,889 13,309
Cash and cash ecuivalents trom discontinued operations, beginning of penod - 1238 1,178
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (Note 1) 21858 14,137 14,487
Cash and cash eguivalenis from contnuing operations, end of peniod 24105 21859 12,869
Cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations, &nd of pericd —_ - 1.238
Cash and cash equivalents, end ol year Note 1) 524,105 21,859 I
Supplemental cash low data
Cash paid during the year for
Indereat %1880 1828 q§2
Interest, net of amount capitakzed 1,811 1. T8E 933
Incame taxes, inchesive of discontinued operations B.T14 8574 5223
Supplemental schodule of nen-cash iIMvesting and financeng acivities B
Treasury siock Siued for employes compendalion and stock oplion plans, net of cash proceeds) employee
withhosding tox on siock awards. 5155 1,435 2114
mfi—hlnm
Fair value of assels acquined £16.081 - 18,710
Fair yaiue of liahiites assumed {1.632) - (1.058)
Mot cash paid for acqusiions (Mate 18) £14.450 = 7852
Sew MNotes fo Consoidaled Financia! Siatemants
Amaunts presented for 2023 and 2022 have not been recast fo sxcivde dizconiinued cperations.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consalidation

The conaokdated financial stalements include the accounts of Johnson & Johraon and its subsidiaress (the Compary). Inbercompany accounts and transactions
ane shiminated Colmng and rows within tables may not add dus o roundng. Percentages have besn calculaled sing aclual, ran-reunded Rgunes.

Description of the company

The Company has approimately 138, 100 employeess worldwide engaged n the 1 and development, manufadure and sale of a bioad mnge of products in
the healthcare feld. The Company conducts business in vitually all countres of the world and Ihprlnmyfna.l: is on products related to human health and well-

Bieing.

Kenvue IPO/separation and discontinued operations

On May 8, 2023, Kenvue, completed an nitial pubdic offenng (ihe IPO) resultng in the Bsuance of 198,734 444 shares af ks comman siock, par value $0.01 per
share {the “Kenvue Common Siock®), at an iniial public offering of 523 00 per share for not procescs of $4 7 billon. The axcess of the nat proceeds from 1he PO
over the et book valus of the Johnson & Johmson divesled inberest was 525 bilion and was recorded o addibonal pald-n capital As of the dosing of the PO,
ahnsen & Johnson ewned approaimately B9.6% of the tola outsianding shares of Kenvue Comimon Stock and ot Jly Z, 2023, the

mor-conirolling inberast of 51.3 bion aseocialed with Kenwe was reflecied in equity atiribulabie o non-contrelling inberesls n tha consoldated balance sheal in
the fiscal se-cond quarter of 2023,

O August 23, 2023, Jobnaon & Jolnash complobod he diaposition of on sddtanal B0 1% owndrahip of T shanes of Kenvod Ehrough on axchangs ofar
Foilicrsing the sxchange offer, the Company awned 9.5% of the shares of Kenvue which wens accountad for a5 an equity investment camried at fair valus within
conbinuing cperabians. The histoncal results of the Consumer Health business (which previously represenied the Consumer Health business segment) are
refiecied as daconlinued opamtions in the Company’'s Corsalidated Financial Ststements through the dale of the sxchangs offer (see Mobe 21 for addiional
dekails) Unless olherviss indssaled, the information en the noles o e Consaldated Fanancial Stalements refer anly 1o Jobneen & Johnson's contnuing
operalions,

In the fiscal second guarter of 2024 the Company compleled a debt for equity exchange of the retained stake in Kenvue. Uipeon completion of the debt far equity
exchange, the Company no langer cwrs any shares of Kerue Comman Stock,

Business segments

The Company is organaed inlo bwo business segmants; Innovatve Medicine and MedTech. The Innovative Medicine segment is focused on the foliwing
thasapeulic sreas Irmunchogy, Infectious Dusasss, Neurssciance. DRcalogy, Pulmanary Hypetentian, and Card lar and Malabolic. Praducts in this
segmenl are cistributed dirsclly o retalers, wholesalers, distributars, hospials and healthcare professionals for preseripban use The MedTech segment inthudes
& beoad portiolio of products used in fie Orihopaedic, Swgery. Cardiovascular (previousty referred 1o as interventionsl Solulions) and Vision Selds. Thess
products ane cistribuled o wholesalars, hospitals and redailers, and used principally in the professional feids by physicians. nurses, hospials, sye cane
professionats and dinics.

New accounting standards

Recently adopled accounting standards
ASU 2023-07: Segment Reporting (Topic 280) = Improvements o Reporiable Segment Disclosures

The Company adopied the standard in the fiscal year 2034, which reguires expanded annual and intenim dsclosures for signifcant segment exponses thal we
reguiary pravided ta the chief aperabng decision maker and inciuded within each repamed measure of segmenl piafl of loss. The standard was applied
retfospecively o al pericds presented in the financial atatements. As this accounting standard only impacts declosures, i ded nol have a materal impact on e
Company’s Consebdated Financial Stalements. See Nela 17 Tor the requined disciopures.
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Recently issued accounting standards

Mot adopted as of December 28, 2024

ASU H0EA-03: Incomia Slatement — Reporting Compeefensive ncome - Expense Desaggregation Disclosures {Subiopic 220401 Dsaggregabon of Incoma
Sinbemand Expenses

This update requires disclosure of disaggregated information aboul cartain income statement expense ina ilams on an Annual and inkerim basis. This update will
be eflecive for iscal years beginnirg afler December 15, 2026, and intarim periods wilhin fiscal years beginning afler Decemiber 15, 2027. Early adoption is
pormified, As tis accounting standard only impacts disciosures., il wil not have a material impact oni the Company's Consciidated Finandal Statemants:

ASU 2073000 Income Taxes [Topke T20) - mprovements @ iIncome Tax Disclosunes

Thes updiate standasdiaes calegoras % (v effectve Lax rate reconcilation, requires disagoregason of income taxee and additional incoma tax-relaled
disciosures, This updale is requined o be afective dor the Company for fiscal periods heginning after December 15, 2024, As this accounting standard cnly
impacls Ssclogures, § wil ngt have a matenal mpact on he Compary’s Consobdated Financal Salements

Cash equivalents

The Company classifies all highty liquid invesimants with stabed malurities of three morths o less from date of purchase as cash sgurvalenis and ad Fghly liguid
imesiments wilh slated mabuities of grealer Man three mons om e dale of puichese as current markelable securiies. The Company has a policy of making
imeastmanis only with commarcial inshifutions that have af least an mastmaent grade credil ratng. The Company invests its cash primanly in govemmant
securiiis and obligaSons, corporate debt securlies, money market funds and revarse repurchase agreements (RRAS),

RRAS are colylornized by copobis in the Torm of Governmenl Secunties and Obligaticns for an amaunt nol leas than 102% of their valuee, The Comparny coas
niok record an assel or Babligy as e Company ks nof permittad 3o sall or repladge the associated collateral Tha Company has a policy that the colateral has at
lesast an A (or squivalem) credit rating. The Campany utilizes & hind panty cuitadian o manage (he exchangs of [unds 8nd ensune 1Rak collaberal recahoed b
mairained at 102% of the valws of the RRAs on a daily basis. RRAs with staled matunties of greates than three months from the date of purchase are classified
A% marketable secuninies

Investments

Imiestments olassified as held to matunty investments are reported at amortized cost and realized gains or losses are reported in camings, Investments classified
as avalable-for-sale debl securkies are carried at estmabed fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded as a compenant of accumulated other
camphelsishe income. Avalable-Tor-sake secutiies avalable for cument operabons afe classified as curren] assets, otherwise, they ane classifed &s bong tarm.
Managemenl debermines the appropdate dassificalion of its imvesiment in debl and squilly securitss al ke Ime of putchass and fe-evalusles such delesminatian
&l sach balance sheel date. The Company révienws its investments for impairment and adjusts these investmenis 1o Tair value frough eamings, & reguined.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and squipment are stated af cost, The Compary wilizes the straight-kne methad of deprociation aver e estimated usehl lives of e asssts;

Buiding and busidirg eguipmaent 30 years
Land and loaschold improvements 10 - 20 years
Machinery and equipment 2-13 yeors
Tha Company capializes cerain compuber saftwane and development costs, included in machinery and eguipmant. whaen incurred in connection with deveioping
or obtaining comg software for | use, Copitalized software costs are amorlized over the estrnated useful ves of the software, which generally range
freem 3 1o B years.
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The Company reviews long-iived assels (o assess recoverabilty using undscounied cash Sows, When céftain evenls of changes in operaing or eoonamic
«condtions accur, an impaiment assessment may be performed on the recoverabiity of the carmying valus of these assets, If the assel is delermined o be

impaired, e loss is measured based on the difference bebwesn the assel’s faif value and its carrying valus, i quoted markel prices are not available, the

Company wil estimaie fair valus using a discountad vals of essmated future cash lows.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when obligabions under the terme of a conbract with the customar are satisfied; generally, this ooours with
the transter of control of this goods to customers. The Company’s giobal payment lerms ars typically batwesn 30 ba B0 days. Provisions for certain rebates, saiss
incantives, ade promolions, coupans, prodict relms, cecounts o cusiomess and goverrmenial dawback provsons ane accounted for & varabie
conaideralion and recorded as & reduction in sales. The lability is recognized within Accrsed rebates, relums, snd premotians on he conscldated baance sheel

Produd dscourds granbed are based an the lems of arangements with direct, indirect and other maret padicipants, & well a5 makel conddons, ncluding
congideraton of compalinor pricing. Rebates and discounts are eslimates based on contrachial erms, hisloncal expanends, patient outcomes, rend analysis and
projeched markel condioans in thi vanous marets sened. A significant porion of the lakilty relabed f2 rebates s from the sake of the Company™s phamaceutical
products within the U5, pimarily the Managed Care, Medicame and Medicaid programs, which amounted to $12.3 bdlion and 511 5 billion as of Decomnber 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The Company evaluates marke? conditions for products or proups of products primarily through the anaiysis of
whaleaalsr and alber thirdparly ssb lrough and marke! research data, as well as inlemally garerated information.

Zales miums ame astimated and recorded based on historical saées and mehems information. Products that hawe st patent exclusivity, or that otheowise schibit
unisual sales or rehun patems due 16 daling, competiticn or ofher marketing matiens are specficaly imvestigated and analyred as par of (he acoounting far
sales retum acorua’s.

Sales returns Bliowances represent 8 ressrve for products (hat may be retumned dus (o expirstian, destruction in the Beld, o in specfic areas, prodict recall, in
accordance with the Company's Bicounting policias, the Company generally issues chedt 10 customers Tor relumed goocs. The Company's sales retums
redbrves afe aesounted lar in Bocordancs with the U5 GAAP guidancs fo revenue recognilion wiven nght of return exisls. Sales rehuns resenes are ecorded
al full sales value, Sales returns in the Innovative Medici gmant are almast Tealy nod lable. Sales ratums flor cartain fanchises in e MedTech
segmant ane bypicaly resaiable bul am nol material, The Company nfrequently exchanges products fom inveniony for retumaed products. The sales retums
resarve for the tatal Company has been sppraximalely 1.0% of annual nat irade asiss during asch of the fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022

Promaticnal progeams, such as product listing alcwances am recorded in the same petiod s related sales snd inclede
volume-based sales incentive programs, Volume-based ive proge are based on fhe estmaled sales volumes (or the incentive pariod and ame reconded
& products are sold. These arangements are evalusted 1o delerming the appropriate amounts 1o be deferred of recorded as a reduction of revenwe, The
Company alao sams prolil-shane payrenis thiough colabaralive amangements of cefain products, which ane incuded in Saes 1o cushomens. Profl-enae
paymenis were less Mhan 2.0% of the tolal revenues in the fiscal year 2024 and 2023, respactively, and less than 3.0% of hotal revenues in the Nscal year 2022
and are included in sales o customens.

See Nate 17 o the Consoldaled Financal Stalements fer further disaggregation ol revenus

Shipping and handling

Shipping and handling costs incurred were 50 8 bilion, 309 bilion and $0.8 bilicn in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are inclisded in seliing,
masksting and sdminisiralve opense. The amount of devenue received for shipping and handing is less than 1 0% of sales 1o custaomirs for all perods
prasanied.

Inventories
Imyenioties are stated at the lowor of cost or ned realizablke value determined by the first-in, fistout mathod
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Intangible assets and goodwill

The authoriaive lerature on LS. GAAP requires hal goodwill anc intangible assels with indefinfe lives be Bssassed annually for mpaiment. The Company
compleled its annual imparment lest for 2024 in the fizcal fourth quarier, Future impairment tests will be performed annually in the fscal fourth quarter, or sooner
if warranbed. In-process ressasch and development purchased as part of a businesa combinatian is accounted for as an definite Ived intangible asset untd the
uncerhying project is compisted, at which point the intangible asset will be accounted for as a definile ved inlangible assel If waranbed the purchased in-process
research and devesapment could e witten of or partially imgaFed Bepanding on the underiying program.

Intangitle sreats thal have finibe veahul s continue 10 e amortized over thir ussful lves and sfe reviewed fof Impairment whn warranied by soonamic
condiions Sea Mole 5 far turther details on Intangible Assets snd Goodwil

Financial instruments

A required by U5, GAAP. all dervative instruments. ane recorded on the balance sheet at fair vahse. Fair valus s the exil price that would be received o se an
assel or paid ko transher a labity. Fair value is a markel-based measuremenr? determined using assumplions that market participants would use in pricing an
assel of lisbslity, The auihomative Beralune eslanishes a Mieelevel hiraichy o pricdilize the inputs used in measuring fair value, with Level 1 faving the highast
pricyity and Level 3 having the iowest Changes in the Tar value of devivatives ade recoeded aach period in cunent eamings of ofer COmMprehenshe Incoms,
dopanding on whather the dorvalive is designated as part of a hedge bansaction, ond f sc, tha type of hedge transpction,

The Company documents all relabionships betwesn hedged thems and derivatives. The cverall risk managemeant sirategy inchides reasons for underaking
transactions and enterng inle defivaiives. The objectives of this strategy are: (1) minimize foreign cumency exposure’s impact on te Company's financel
perfoernance; [2) profect the Company's cash flow from adverse movements in foreign exchange rales; (3] ensure the appropriateness of financial nstruments;
and (4] manage the enterprise risk astociabed with fnancal nstihdions. See hots & for add@ional information on Financial Instrumarnis.

Leases

Thee Company delemminges whelhes &n arrangament i & lesse al contract incsption by eslablahing i e coniset conveys (e rghl 1o contrel the use of ientiied
property. planl, or equipmant for a perdcd of time in sxchangs for comskdoration. Right of Use (ROU) Assals and Lease Liabilities for cperating ases anm included
in Dtier assats. Accrusd labilties. and Other labl&es on e consolidated balance sheel. The ROU Assets represent Bre right to use an undeslying assal for the
lease lerm and ease liabilties represent an obigalion to make |ease paymenis arfsng fom the lease. Commilments under fnance leases are nol sgnificant. and
afe included in Praperty, plant and squipment, Loans and noles payable, and Leng-benm debl on the consclidated balance shesl

RO Assets and Leass LiabilSes ae recognized at fhe lsass commencement dabe based on fhe prosend value of all minimum lease payments ower the laase
tenm. The Company wses (ks incremental bormowing rale based on he information availabie &1 commencement dage in detérmining Ihe present value of lease
paymenls, when the implict rate is nat readify deterninable. Lease barma may include opions o axtend of bsrminale the lsase. These opticna are incuded in the
lease larm whan it & reasonably cestain Tad the Company will exercise that cplion. Operating lease expenss i recognized on a siraight-bne bass over the lease
term. The Company has eleched the following policy elections on adopbion; use of portfolio approach on leases of assets undes masier senvice agreements,
exdusion of shor lerm leases on 1he balance sheel, and not separaling lease and non-sase components

Tha Company primanly has oparabing lease for space, vehicies, manufacturing equipment and data processing eguipmant. The ROU assed partaining o lsases
from contnuing oparations was 51.1 bilion and $1.0 bilion in fiscal years 2024 and 2023, mspactyvely. The lease llabidy from conbinuing cperations was

1.2 bilion and 31.1 bilion in $scal years 2024 and 2023, iespeclively. The operaling kease costs from continruing operations wene $0 2 bilion in Sscal years
2024, 2023 ard 2022 Cash pasd for amounts induded in the measenement of lease liabdilies from conlinuing oparaicns wsre 50.2 bilion in iscal years 2024,
2023 and 2022
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Product liability

Accrunts for product kability claims am recorded. on an undscourted basis, when A s probabie that a labily has been incurred and e amount of the kabdity
can be reasonably estimated based on sxisting information and actusnsly defermined satimates whiere apolcable, The acoruals are adjustsd pericdically as
addtonal nformation besomes available. The Company accnues an eslimate of the legal delense costs needed [o defend each matter when thase costs are
probable and can be reasonably estimated. To the exlent sdversa verdicts have been rendered agains! the Compary, the Company does rot resord an accrual
untl a kass 5 determined (o be probatie and can be reasanably ashmated

Thi Company has self insursncs (vough & wholly-owrad copiive IREUFINGE coMmMpany. Inadditien te pceruals in She salf insuronce pregram, cloims that excoad
the inaurance coverae are accrissd when losses are probable and amounts can be reasonably eslimatsd

Research and developmant

R :h and devedor L expenass ans expensed a8 incwemed in sccordance with ASC T30, Research and Development. Upfron and milestons payments.
made 1o third parties in conmechion with reseach and devalopment collaboratians are expensed as ncured up to the peinl of regulatary appioval Payments
made 1o third parties subsecuent bo reguiatory spproval ane capilalized and amerized over e remaining useful life of the related produc!. Amounts captaliped
for such paymenis are included in other intangibies. ned of acoumulated amortization.

Tha Comparny anleds inte collabarative arrangemants, lypically with other pharmacautical of bialechnolsgy campanies, o develop and commercialize drug
canddates or inlellectial property. These amangements Eypically invaiva byvo [or more) pames whi ahe sitive parficipants n the collaboration and are exposed 1o
significant risks and rewards dependent on the commercial success of the aclivities. These colaborations usually invaive vanous aciivities by cne or mare
parties. including h and dewelopment, marketing and ssiling and disiibution, Ofien, these oollaborations requine upfront, milestone and royalty o profit
share payments, centingand wpon the ocourrence of catain fubure events linked fo the success of the asset in development Amounts due fram collabor ateie
pariners related 1o development activiies are generaly refiected &s a reduclion of research and development espense becalrss the performance of cardract
development sendoes B ot central 1o the Company’s opedalions. In general, e ncome slatement presentation for ihese collaborations & as follows

Mature/Type of Collabaration Statement of Earnings Presentation
Thirdh-party sahe of product & proft shate payments recewed Sabes [0 cuslnmen

Rojyaltws/miestones paid to colaboratve partner {posi-neguiatony appraval]® Cest of products sald

Royativs recehved from collaborative pariner Qhar incoma {expanse|, nat

Upfront payments & miestones paid to colaboratve partner (pre-regulatory Rescarch and dovelopment expenss

appaoval)

Radgarch and development payments to colaborative parner Reaearch and divelapmant expenss
Ressarch and development payments received from collaborative partnar of Reduction of Reseatch and development expenss
gavedTemant antity

" Klilesiores ore as maseis & d o cosd of products sodd over The uselul e,

For all yoars presented. them wirs no indnidual project thal reprosented greater than 5% of the tatad annual consclidated research and developmant sgpense
alher than the acquired in-process ressarch & development axpanss of $1.25 badlion 1o secune the global rights 1o the NM28 bispecific antibody (Yellow Jersey
atgunition) in fscal year 2024,

The Company has & number of poducts and compounds develapsd in ccllaberation with sirategic partners inchuding XARELTD, co-developed with Bayer
HealinCare AG, IMBRUVICA. deveiaged in ealisbaration and ce-manketed with Prarmacyelics LLC, an ABbViE company and CARVYKT]. Scensad and developed
in eollaborabon with Legend Bictech USA Inc. and Legend Biotsch reland Limited

Separalely, the Company had 8 number of icensing amangemants for produch and compaunds inchiding DARTALENX, licensed from Genmab A'S
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Advertising

Costs associated with advertising ane expansed in Se year incurmed and ang incuded in selling, marketng and admmnisirative expenses. Adverising expenses
woeicwids, which comprised television, radio, prnt medin and Internet adverising, wene S$006 biltlion, 50.5 bdlion ard $0.7 bilian in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and
2022, respeciively

Income taxes
Income {ames ahe recoided based on amourts refundable or payable for the curment year and Rchide the resulls of any differsncs between ULE. GAAP acoounting
and tax reporting, recorded as defermed tax assets or |k The Company daferred By assats and liabdiies based on enacted tax regulations and

rabes. Fulume changes in fax 1aws and rales may affec recorded delemed hax assets and abilities in the futune

The Company has unrecognized oy banefts for uncedtain ke positons. The Company Toliows U5, GAAF which prescribes B recognition threshokd and
measirement aftribule for the financial statement recognition and mesdurement of a tax pesiion taken of expechsd o be taken in a tax rétuin. Management
believes that chanpes in these would not hawe a malevial effect on the Company’s results of operabions, cash fiows or financial position.

In 2017, the: Uniled Siates enacied inko law new U5, tax legisiation, the US. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCIA). This law induded provisions for a comprehensive
overhaul of the corporate ncome tax code, indluding a reduction of the statutony corporale tax rale from 35% to 21%. effective on January 1, 2008 The TCJa
imciuded @ provision far B 183 on all previously Lundatrbubed eamings of U S, companies lcaled in Tomsign jurisdictons. Undiatiibuted sarmings in (he karm of cash
and cash equivaients ware taxed at & rate of 15.5% and &ll cther earmnings wine 1amed 8t 8 rate of 8.0%. This tax |8 payable gver 8 years and will nal sccrue
inkeresl These payments began in frscal year 2018 and will continug Mnough 2025, The final payment of 52.5 Wlan will ba made v iscal year 2025,

The TCIA sias includes provisions for 8 tax on global intangiie krw-taxed meoama (GILTI. GILT is descrbed &8 the extess of & LS. sharehalders kol net
Toreign incoma cver B deamed relum on tangele assets, a8 peovided by tha TCA In January J018, he FASH issued guidance thal aliows companies o elect 8
an accounbing policy whathar 1o record the tax effacts of GILTI in the pariad the tax liabdity is genarated (Le., “pariod cost] or provide for defermed fax asseds and
linbwlities related 1o basia differences lhal exist and are axpeclied to affect the amount of GILTE inclusion in fulure years upon reversal (ie “defermed melhod™). The
Company has sacled o actoun] fof GILTI under the defermed methad The deferred tae amounts recorded are based on the svaleation of smporary diferences
Ihat are expectsd 1o feverse a8 GILTI & incured in fubune penocs.

The Company has recorded defesred tax liabilities on all uindistributed saminge prices ta Decamiber 31, 2017 from ils iMernational subsidaniss. The Company has
rot prosided dedermec tanes on Me urdsinbuted eamings subsequent io January 1, 2018 fom canain inlemational subssdiaries whers e samings are
considerad 1o be indefinitaly reinvesied. The Company inbends 1o conlinue S0 reirvest these earnings in these intemational cperations. If the Company decides. al
@ lobor daie o repatriate thase eamings 1o the ULS.. the Company would be requined 1o provide for 1o not lax offects on ase amaunts. The Company astimates
that the tax eflect of this repatiiation would be approxmately 80 5 billion under currenly enacted tax lvws and regulations and at current curmency exchange fdes
This amount does nol include the possible benefit of US, toneign tax credéts, which may substantially offsel this cost,

Son Note B io the Consolidated Fmnancial Statemants fior further infarmation regarding Income taxes:

Met earnings per share

Basic eamings per share |s computed by dividing nel eamings availabde o common sharehalders by e weighled average rumber of common shates
cutianding for the pencd. Dilvied eamings per shane reflects the polential Glution that could ccowr If secunbes were exercisad of canvenad inlo common shack
using the freasury stock mamod.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidaled fnancial slalements n conformity wilh accounting principles generaly accepld in the LS. requires managemant bo make
estmales and assumpbons thal aflect ihe amounis reported Estimates are ised whisn astounting for sales discounts, rebates, sbowances and moenlves.

product liabdibes, income taoes, withholding taxes, depreciaton, amortzation, employes beneflits, contingencies and inlangible asset and liabdity valuatons
Actual resulls may or may not difer from those estimates
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Thie Company folows the provisions of U.S. GAAP when recosding liligation related contingencies. A liabdity is recorded when a loss is probable and can be
reasonably estimatec. The best estimale of a loss within a range is acorued, however, if no estimate in the range is better than any other, the minimum amound is
acorued.

Supplier finance program abligations

The Company has agreemnents for supplier fnance programs with third-party financial insStutions. Trese programs provide participaling suppliers: the abiity to
finance payment obligatiors from the Comparny with the thirg-party fnancial nsttutions. The Company s nol @ party to the arangements betwoen the suppliors
and ihe Wird.pasty inancial intRutions. The Company's obfigalions ba its suppéers, incheding armeunts due, and scheduled payment dates (which have general
paymenl berms af 90 days), are nod afected by & paibspatng supplers decsion b paricipate in the pragram.

Confirmed obligations wnder the program as of Decamber 28, 2024, and December 31, 2023, wese 50.8 bilion and $0.7 bdlion, respectively. The obligafons are
presented & Ancounts payable on the Conaskdated Balance Shests.

The rofforwand of the Company's walid cbligatons under the program were as foliows

2014
[Daollars in Milliges)
Confirmed cbdigations - beginning of the year T4
Irvnices conlimed durng ihe year 3,048
Confirmed invoices pad during the year 2964
Confired cbligaticns - end af the year STEA

Annual closing date

The Company folows the concept of a fiscal year, which ends on the Sunday nearesi ko the end of the month of December, Narmally each fescal year consats of
52 weeks, bt ewery Tive of &ix years e ecal year conssts of 53 wesks, and theralore includes additional shipping days, 8 was the cate in fiscal year 2020,
and wil be the case again in fscal year 2026
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2, Cash, cash equivalents and current marketable securities
At the ond of the Sscal year 2024 and 2023 cash, cash equivalents and curnent marketable socunties comprisad

2024
Curent
Carrying Ukieeagaed d Cash & Caah Muiketabile
[Dollars in Millions) Amgeant Gain Fair Vahse Equivalents Eecurilies
Cath 52,018 - 2,018 2818 —
Med-UL 5. Sovedeign Seountas!’ 120 - 120 —_ 120
LL%5. Reversa repurchase agresmants T.100 - r.a00 r.00 —
Money market Aunds 8,123 = 6,123 8113 =
Tima deposis’ 1.045 — 1.045 1.045 —
Sublotal 517,206 — 17,306 17.186 120
LS. GovT Secuntes 56,615 1 8,616 6,706 20
Cther Sovereign Securites 176 - 176 B3 el
Corporabe and ohar debd secyuntes 24 = 24 40 164
Sublotal avallable for sale™ 87.115 1 T.218 6,919 297
Todal cash, cash equivalents and current marketalsl
secufilies 24,108 a7y
203
Carrand
Carrying Unnecognited Eatimated Fair Cash & Canh Wsihstsbin
[Duollars in Millioms] Aamaoaint Loss Valiss Equivalents Securities
Cash 53,340 - 3,340 3,340 —_
Men-U S, Sovereign Secuntas!' £22 — 522 174 348
U S Roversa repurchase agreemants 4,377 — 4377 4317 —
Corporate debt secuntes’” 38 - pxl} 188 148
Money markia! funds 4814 -_ 4 8 4804 =
Time doposits B2 — 5 BE2 —_
Saibdatal 14,053 - 14,053 13,556 497
L5 Gow'T Secunies 88,5682 - 8.562 8.250 303
L5 Govl Agencies T {1 To —_ m
Cther Sovereign Securities 5 - 5 1 4
Corporate and ather debi secuntes ar nr 43 164
Sublotal available for sale™ SHETE {1) BETY 8,303 &M
Total cash, cash equivalonts and current marketabi o o - -
securilies £21,859 1.088

" Hagld 1 sty imvesiimeenis 008 reporind Bl armonized cosl ond resied Qo of Iosss S50 dopoiied in aafmings.

¥ Avadabin for sale debt seosites ans reporied ot far valug wih uneoaliized gains and losses reporiod net of taxes in other comprehonsses inoome.

Fair valum of gowernmant securities and obligabions and corporate dob! secunties wers astmated using quoted brosar pricos and significar? cther obsarvabia
inputs,
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The confraciual matrities of the availabie for sale debl securities al December 28, 2024 are a3 follows:

[Dollars in Millioms] Cost Basis Fan Value
D wilhin one year S04 1208
Do after one year ibrough fve years LE| 1
Dure after Sve yoars thiough ten yaars - -
Total debt securities ' §7,215 7218

The Company invests s excess cash in both deposits with major banks throughout the world and olher high-guality money market instruments. The Company
has & policy of making inyestments aaty with commerial instilutons thal have ab least an investimenl grade credit raling

3. Inventories

At the end of fiscal years 2024 and 2023, inveniories comprised

{Dollars in Millioms) 024 023
Raw materials and supplies 2027 2355
Goods in process 2815 1,852
Firiahed goods LT _urm
Total inventories £12,444 11,181

4. Property, plant and equipment
Althe erd of fiscal pears 2024 and 2073, property. plard and equipment at cast and accumulated depraciaton werne:

fDollars in Millions) 04 FLrE]
Land and iand improwemants EMa TEn
Buidings and building equipment 1237 123756
Machinery and equipment 29,444 28,878
Conslruchion in progress 258 5627
Total property, plant and equipment, gross 543,768 47,778
Less apcumulated depreciation 28,250 2T ATR
Total proporty, plant and equipmant, net 520,618 18,898

T Gompany copiaizes mises expense 08 part of the cost of construction of facsites and equipment. inlerest expanss capholized in fSscal yoars 2024, 2023
and 2022 was 579 milion, 570 mdlion and 349 milion, respecively.

Degrecialion expenss, inchading the amortization of capitaiped inletes! in fecal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 was 52 8 bilion, 526 bllien and 52 4 bilion,
respacIvaly.
Lipam ratiremant of olher dapasal of propery, plant and squipment, (e cowls and related amaunts of ceumulsled depdaciaton o AMantizatan are siminaled

froem the asset and pcoumulated depreciation accounts, respactively, The dfference,  any. between the nel asset value and the procseds ane recorded in
eamings
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K. Intangible assets and goodwill
At the end of fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the gross and net amounts of intangibie assels wene:

[Daliars in Millioas) 2024 Hi23
Intangibe assets with definite lives:

Palents and rademarks — gross'’ 544 595 40417
Less accumilated amofization (26,124) {24 BOR}
Palents and rademarks — net $18.5T1 15,809
Customer relationsnips and oiher intangibles — gross §20.01¢ 2032
Less accumulaied amamzation {13,544 {12 885)
Ciiomer relationghips and ofher infangibi@s = net™ S6. TG T.637
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Trademarks™ — 1.714
Purchased in-process ressarch and developmaent 12,281 8215
Total intangible assets with indefinite lives §12.281 10,829
Total intanglble assols — net $a7.618 34,175

" In Soglember 2124, the Compary anngunces changes o is MedTech brand idonlity and the 51.7 bilion of Wndamarks asscciated with e DePuy Sy busingss wone
reclxssfiod from incefings Ied 1o dofreto eoad sed will b amontized owor @ 2% yoar panod.

& Tha maiority s <ot r ipe

Inreovative:
(Rallars in Millior) Bedicine el Tech Tedal
Goodwill 8 January 1, 2023 510,184 25883 38,047
Goodwill, refated 0 acquisibons - - -
CGoodwill, retaled 1o orvesiiures - _ _—
Currency ransistonomer _m ma | sn
Googwill 31 Decembar 31, 2023 a7 26,131 3.ona
Goodwill, relaled o acquisibons 8440 1563 B20a
Goodwill, refated o civestiores - 158] 154)
AN AR RO - KRR L {511]
Goodwill 81 Decamper 28, 2024 31092 33508 44200

" includes porchase prios aliocston odj o b

The weighted awerage amodtization pericd for patents and imdemarks is approximaiely 12 years. The weighled average amodization perad for cusiomer
relationships and othar intfanghis assels i approzimately 18 years. The amortization expense of amorizable assets inchuded in Cost of products sold was $4.5
Bilicn, 4.5 billion and $3.9 billion bafone tac, for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, Dacember 21, 2023 anrd Janwary 1, 2023, respecively. intangbs
assat wiilg-cowns are included in Other (incoma) axpanse, net

The estimated amoriizaton expenss related 1o inlangible ss5eis for Bpproved products, Defore 1ax, for e five SUCCERON] YEAFS B Approximatsly:

[Bollars in Milliers]

15 2026 T 2038 139
24 000 3,400 2400 2.200 2200

Soa Not 10 10 the Contolitated Finandal Saatermants Tof addfonal details nelated 10 stquititions. and drostitune
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6. Fair value measurements

The Company ises fanward Tafeign axchangs contracls 16 manage ls sxpoduins ta e vanabilly of cash fows, primanly ielaled 1o the foraigh exchange rale
changes of future iMercempany products and third-pary purchasss of materals denominated in & farelgn currency. The CAMpany LSES eross 7 inlerest
rabe swaps ko manage curmency risk primanty relabed bo bormowings. Bath types of denvalives ar dessgpnated as cash Now hedges.

, the Company uses inlerest rale swaps a3 an msirument bo manage inferest rabe rsk related 1o fwed rale bosrowings, These denvalives are
designalad as fair vahse Redges The COMPany USes GIoss CLTENCY Inberest rate swaps ard forward fareign exchange conlracts designaled as nel invesiment
hecges. Additionally, the Company uses forward foreign exchange contracts fo offset #s exposure ta certain foreign curency assets and iiabiites. These forward
foreign exchange contracts are nod designated as hadges and therefore, changes in the fair values of these dervatives are recogrized in eamings, theweby
offsetting the cument earnings effed of the relaled foreign curmenicy asssls and liabifties.

The Company toes not enler into desivative financal instruments. for irading or speculalive purposes, o Tad conlain crecd risk relaled coniingent fealues. The
Company maintaing eredit suppad agresmants [CSA) with certain defvative courferpartios establishing collateral tireshalds based on respeclive credit rafings
&nd natling agréamants. As. of Decamber 20, 2024 and Decambar 31, 2023, he 1otal amounl of cash colateral paid by the Company unded the CSA amounted 1o
52 2 billlon and 540 bilion rel respectively, relaled o net ivestmant and cash Bow hedges. ©n an ongoing Dass. (he Company moniton counter-pany credi
rangs. The Company considers crecit non-performance risk 1o be low, becauss the Company pomarily anters inlo agresmants with commercal instibations that
havve a2 lmast an investment grade credit rating. Refer o the table on significart fimancial assets and kabilfies measured at far value conlained in is footnote for
recefvabies and payabies wilh these commarcial nstilutions. As of Decembaer 28, 2024, the Company had notianal amounts guistanding for forsard forsign
erchangs eonlracts, croas curency inleres! rate swape and inlerest rate swapa of $45 1 Bilien, 540.5 bilkon and 59.0 billan, respectively. A of Decamber 31,
2023, the Company had nobienal amounis outstanding for forward foreign exchange confracts, oross curnency inberest rale swaps and interest rate swaps of
$42.0 bilion, 530.7 bilkon ard 5100 bilion, respeciively.

Al dervalive instnaments are recorded on the balance sheet af far vakie, Changes (n the falr vales of genvalives ane recorded each penied In cument eamings o
ciher compaehenshe income, depending on whether te dedvative i designated a3 past of @ hedge Tansaction, and if 80, the fype of hedge tranaaction. Cash
axchanged for derivatives is primarly in cash lows from operating achivities

Tree dealghation &8 & cash Now Nedge s Mmade at the entrancs cate of Ihe derlvative conlrael AL inception, all Servatives are axpacled o ba Righly afective.
Foreign eachange contracts designated as cash fiow hedges are accounded for under the forward method and &d gainsfiosses associated with these contracts will
be recognized in the ncome slatemant when the hedged lem impacts sarnings. Changes in the fair va'ue of these derivalives are recorded in ascumulated gthar
comprehensive income until the underying transaction aSects eamings, and are then reclassified lo earnings in the same account as the hedged transaclion,

Gains and losses associaled with inberest rale swaps and charges in fair value of hedged debt afiributable 1o changes in inleres mies ane recorded 1o nbenest
axpense in the petiod in which thay occur. Gains and losses on net investment hedges ane accounted throwgh the curency translation account within
actumuiated other comprehensie incomse The padion excluded fom efectiveness lealing & recorded through inlenest (income) expense Lging Ihe spat method
On &n ongoing basis, e Company assesses whelher aach derivalive continues 1 be highty efective in offseling changes of hedged fems. If and when a
darrvative & no longer axpecled bo be high'y efective. hadga accounbing ia dicondinieed

The Company desigrated its Euro denominaled notes with dus dabes ranging from 2024 to 2044 a5 a net invesiment heage of the Company’s investments in
cartain of its intemational subskalaries that use the Eure as teir funcional curmency in cider o recuce the voralilty caused by changes in exchange rates

Ay of Decernbar 29, 2024, tha balance of defered net oas oh derhvalives included in accumulabed olher comprehensie income was 31.7 billan afer-tax. For
addtonal nfarmation, see the Consaolidated Slatements of Comprahensive Income and Nabe 13, The Comparry expects thal substanSally all of the amaunts
related o fonwaid foresgn exchange contracts will Ba reclassfied into samings avar the next 12 months as a resuf of transactions. hat ame axpeched fo occur ovar
thai period. The maxmum length of time over which the Company s hedging ransacon exf =18 hs, exciuding i esl refe o and nel
imresiment hedges, The amount ultmately realzed in samings may diffor s foresgn exchange rales change. Realized gains and losses are ullimately delormined
by actual exchange rales b matuily of e deduative

&0 Jdohnson g dohnson
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The fallowng table is a summary of Bhe activity re‘aled lo dermatives and hedges for the fiscal years ended Decernber 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, nel of
Lax:

Decembss 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Cost of Indenest Crbser Coat af Iriterest Orher

Producis RAD {income] {Incoma) Producks RED {incoene | {income)

[Dollars in Millioms) Sales Sold Expenae Expense Exparse Sailey Sold Expense Expense Cxpenee

Ther efects of fair value, net

insestment and cash Now

hedging:

Gain (Loss) on fair value

hedging relaticnship:

Interest rate swaps confracks:

Hedged itams L - - -] - - - -— 168 -

Darivathes designaled as

hedging instruments — — - B4} — — - - {188} _

Gain (Loss) on nat investmant

hedging relaticrship:

Cross cumency indarest rate

aWnps coniracts:

Amaund of gain of (loss)

recogrized in incame on

denvalive amount eacluded from

eflaciveness lesting — — — 148 — — — —_ 130 —
Amound of gain or (loes)

recogrssd 5 ADCH — —_ — 148 — — — —_ 130 —
Gain {Loss| on cash flow

hiedging relationship:

Forward foreign exchange

coniracts:

Amound of gain or (loss)

reciassited from ADLC inka

income 2 L bl B —_ & T 166 137 - a8

Amount of gaimn or (ioss)

recograpad i ACCI 7l (15E) B — 21 10 447 18] — a
Cross cumency mierest rate

swaps contracts:

Amound of gain or (loss)

reclassiied from AQC) ink

Ireame = = == 247 == — — — 275 .
Amncund of gain of (loss)

rocagrenad in ACCI 3= - = (6a7T] = — = - {156} —

2024 Annual Repart E1
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#As of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the following amounts were recarded on the consolidated balance sheel relaied o cumudative basis
adjustment for 1air vales hedges:

Cumutatres Amour of Fair Valse Bedgirg

Line item in the Consclidated Balance Shest Adjustment Included in the Camyirg
in which the hedged dem is inchuded Carrying A of the Hedged Liabilty Amount of the Hedged Liabslity
[Dollars in Millions) December 73, 2034 Decemwber 31, 2023 December 28, 2024 December 21, 2022
Lang-ierm Det 57,035 55 882 1,132) 1.2116)

The following fable is the effect of derivabmes not designated as hedging instument for the fiscal years ended
Dscirirines 28, 2014 and December 31, 2023,

Lescation of Gain Loss) GaimlLoss]

Recognized in Income on Recognized In
[Dallars in Millioas] Daireative Ineome an Derivative
Dértvirivna ot Disionaied as edging hestraments S— Demsmbor: 3, 204 Bacarsher 81,204
Fareign Exchange Comracts Other (Incomes | experss 58 (60}

The fallowing lable s the efect of ned investmant hadgas far (he facal years ended Dacember 28, 2024 and
Decamer 31, 2023

[Loss) Reclasyfed Gan'|Loss|
| L&) frorn Accumilaed Ot Reclagsified from
Recogmired in Comprehansive Incoms Inio Accumulated OG)
Accumulated OC) Income Into Income
[Dollars in Milliors) December 28, 2024 Decembser 31, 2023 December 28, 2024 Decembes 31, 2023
Dl 5182 (131] Wnbenest (incoma ) axparss — —
Cross Curency infterest 3855 642 Wnterest (ncome | experse -— -

rabe swaps

The Company hokls equly investments with readly determinabie Tair values and equity investments without readsy detamminabée far values. The Company
measures equity mvestiments thal do nol have readity celerminable fair values al cosl minus impairment. if any. plus of minus changes rnesulting from obserdable
plice changes in orderty transaclions far he identesl of a similar investment of Ihe Same issusr.

Tha following table is a summary of the activity reated o equity imvestments for the fiscal years ended December 29, 2024 and December 31, 202%

December 31, 2023 Decamber 2§, 2024
Changes in Fair Saben/
Valus Reflecied in Purchases! Non-Gurtem
[Dollars in Millioms) Carrying Valus et Incoma’!! Other™ Camying Valus Dther Atas1s
Eqjuity Irvesimants with readidy 54473 (AL (%,005} a5t 451
detemirable value *
Equety Investmenis without readiy 6595 [107) 74 T3 T7a

determirable value
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Janary 1, 2033 Ducamber 31, 323
Changes in Fair Sakenl

Walus Reflected in Purchassal Nosn e
[Dollars in Millions) Garrying Yalue Het Income ™! Other™ Carrying Valus ‘Daher Asseis
Equity Investmanis wilh readdy
dotermirable value * 578 (368 i 255 4473 4 4T3
Equity Investmenis wilhout readiy
coterminable volue 5813 1 B2 a6 GG
" Recomded in Other ncomp/Espanis
& Oher includes. iInpact of ourency
= The Deosmbe 31, 2023 e 85% g stasn in K . A deblfor-aguty exchange was completed in F fiscal second quarior of 2024

On May 15, 2024, the Company isswsed £3 8 bilion aggregate principal amount of commencial paper and recened $3.8 bilion of et cash proceeds o be wsed for
peneral corporate purpases On May 17, 2024, the Company completed a Debl-fan-Equty Exchange of fs remainong 182,328,550 shares of Kervue Camimon
Sinck for the outstanding Cemmersnl Paper Upen eompsstion of the Debl-lor-Equity Exchangs. the Commersal Papsr was salished and discharged, and the
Company na longar cwns any shares of Kenvue Common Stock. This exchange resuted in a loss of approxdmately $0.4 blion recorced in Other {incomsa)
BEpEnNEE

For the fiscal yoars ended December 20, 2024 and Decomber 31, 2023 Tor egquiy investments without repdiy determanabie market volues, 3771 milsan and $1
millicn, espectively, of the changes in fair value reflected in net income were e result of impadments. Theee wers impacts of $26 million and 527 million,
respocively, of changes in the fair value reflected in net income due ko changes in chservable prices and gains on the disposal of invesimaonts

Fair valum is tha sxt price thal would be received (o soll an asset or paid bo transfer a liabilty Far value is a market-based measuramani debermined using
assumpbons tnal marked pafsopanis woull use in pricing an assel or bty In accordancs with A5G B20. a threse-evel hierarchy o pnontize tha Inputs used in
measuring fair vakie The levels within the hietarchy are dessribed below with Level 1 hawing e highest priority and Level 3 having the lowesl.

The Fair value of o derivative Bnancial instrument {i.e., farward foreign exchange conlracts, inberest rale contracts) is the aggregation by curmency of all fulue cash
fiows discounted 10 s present value ot the prevaling marke! interest rates and susequenty comaeried to the LS, Dollas &t the current Spat farelgn exchange
rate. The Comparny does not bebeve that fair valuss of (hese defvative irstruments matenaly dilfes fram the amounis that coud be realred upan setBameant o
maninity, o that the changes in fai value will have a material effec on he Company's resulls of operalions, cash Brws or fnancial position The Company also
holds equity Imvesiments which are classified as Level 1 and dedl securilies which are classified as Level 2. The Compary holds acquéisibon reiated contingent
linbslities based upon certain reguiatory and commercial events, which are classfied as Level 3, whoss values are determined using diecounted cash flow
mathodologies ar similar bechmiques dar which the detemination of far valkue requires significant judgment or estimations

The foliowng theee levels of inputs ane used to measure Eair valee;

Level 1 — Qualed prices in aclive markeds for idealical assess and Nablites.
Level 2 — Significant other observabie Inputs.

Level 3 — Significant unabservabie inputs.
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The Company's significant Snancial assels and liablities measuted af fair value as of the fscal year ended December 28, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as

folkows:
2024 b ]
[Dollars in Millioas) Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 1 Tobsd Tataf*
Davivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Aszels:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3— G6ED - 680 S8
Iriletest rabe conbrads™ — 1464 — 1,484 a8s
Tola! ' 5= 2,144 - 2,144 1,527
Liabilities:
Frrwrard foseign exchangs contracts — T4 — T4 a4
Irledesd rabe conlrects™ —_ 3153 —_ 3,753 5338
Totsl B — 4,547 P 4,547 5,982
Derivalives not designated as hedging instruments:
Agsels:
Fronward foreign exchange contracts F— =0 - 50 ]
Liatsilithes:
Frnward foreign exchange contracls - 17 - 17 [
Available For Sale Other Investments:
Equity investments 451 - — 451 4472
Diebil securties™ 7218 - T.218 BATL
Other Liabilites
Contingent Conaideration™ s 1,217 1,217 1,082
Groas to Met Derivatnes Reconciliaton 24 2033
(Deiars i Milone)
Total Gross Assals 32,104 1,501
Credit Support Agreements (C5A) 2ATH (1.57%)
Total et Asset 2 16
Total Gross Linbities 4 B4 B,037
Credil Buppodt Agresments [CSA) [4412) (5,504
Total Met Liablities 5152 433
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Summarged information about changes m Eabilities for contingen! consideralion is as follows:

2024 2023 2022
{Dallars in Milliors)
Beginning Halanos §1,082 1,120 533
Changes in eatrmated far vahie &8 28 (184)
szl 1z = T2
PaymentsCithas 75} (57) (11}
Ending Balance™ 51217 1,2 1,120

1 023 nuzaty and lintditioe are ol classied as Lewel 2 with the awcaption of souly imvestmants of $4, 4T3 millen which are clasafied as Level 1 snd contingart considambion of
51,092 mikon, dassifod as Level 3.

= INGAiDS CIOSS CLITENGy inforosd rade swaps and imerest abe seaps.

i Ciassfed o ror-curen other assels.

e Classfiod a8 cosR SoUIVaNTS 3nd cUment Parkmi i

* \ngiudos 31.217 milon, $1.092¢ mihon and §1, 118 milson, clasafied as ron-cunent other labibes o of Decomber 29, 2024,
December 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023, resgsctnnaly, Inchudes 34 millon clasified ot corent Lakitien o of January 1, 2023,

™ | fiscal year 2024, the Compamy reconded 5105 milicn of g v revéaiod b P loge. in fiscal year 2022t Compary recorded $T04 milon of contingant
rodabad to A

See Nales 2 and T for Snancial assels and liabdities heid a1 carrying amouni on he Consclidabed Balance Sheal

2024 Annual Repar ES

333/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

7. Borrowings
Tha componanis of leng-term dabl am as follows:

Effective Effective
Rate Rata
[Dallars in Milliors) 2024 % 2023 *
0.650% Moles due 2024
(TSOMM Euwra 1100017 — —-% e 083 %
5.50% Motes due 2024
[500MM GBP 1.2756)" - - gar 675
2625% Notes dus 2025 750 283 750 263
0.55% Mates dus 2005 484 057 oS0 057
2 45% Motes due 2026 1989 4T 1,837 247
2.05% Motes due 2027 BT 284 B30 264
0.85% Motes due 2027 1458 0.848 1410 08s
1,150% Moles due 2028
(TSOMM Eusra 1.0407/ W 750MM Eurn 110900 e 1.2 BB ™ 12
2.00% Motes due 2028 1.468 7% 1,487 28
B.55% Motes due 2009 28 714 298 714
# B0% Debentures due 2029 1,148 4,83 . -
1.30% Notes due 2030 1648 1.3 1,630 1.30
4.80% Debeniures due 2001 1,145 492 = =2
3.20% Debenlure cue 2032
(TOOM ELIR 1 D401y T an =2 —
4 95% Dobentues due 2033 484 485 498 485
4 3TE% Moles due 2033 BE4 434 BE4 41
4 5% Debentures dus 2004
B 405 — s
1.650% Moles dus 2035
{1.58 Eure 1.040117% 1,58 Euna 110801 1,550 1.648 1,852 ™ 163
3.35% Debeniues dus 2056
(BOOMM EUR 1.0401)7 BT 337 = -
3 587% Moles due 2038 5ea 383 B4 383
5.95% Notes due 2037 o84 584 234 583
3.625% Males due 2037 13848 a4 1,357 384
£ 5% Dabertures dus 2008 BG7 5.85 BT 585
3 40% Motes dus 2008 L 342 §03 342
4 80% Dabarhures dus 2040 5419 463 541 4E3
2.10% Motea due 2040 845 204 BB 2
4 B5% Notes due 2041 267 4.8 297 483
4 50% Mobes due 2043 488 452 498 452
3.55% Debertures due 2044
{18 EUR 1.04015% 1030 358 - —_
3,73% Notes due 2048 1978 374 1,877 374
3.75% Mabes dus 2047 822 378 B3 378
3.500% Nobes due 2048 Tad 3.52 743 352
2 250% Males due 2050 Bea 2 BIe 229

BB Johnsongdohnaon
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5 25% Dabenhaes dus 2054 B3 526 - =
2.450% Moles dus 2060 1,058 148 1,073 248
Oher iz — 1] -
Subtotal 32,400 336 % 27,350 258 %™
Less curent portion 1,740 1460

Todad long-erm debt 530,681 525,881

" \Weghied pvirage effectine rate

@ Trariaton rate ot Decomber 20, 2024

™ Tramsiaon rate ot Decomber 21, 2023

¥ The excoss of the camyng wakue over e fair value of dobt was 3320 bilion and $1.0 bilkon a2 the end of fiscal year 2024 and fscal year 2023, respecirvely.

Fasr value af the long-leim dabl was eslimated using markel prices, which were cormobarated by quoled brokier prices and significard other absarvable inpubs

The Company has access to sustanbal sources of funds 3t numerous banks woridwide, In June 2024, the Company secured a new 364-day Credit Faciity of
510 bilkon, which expires on Jume 25, 2025, Imeres charged on bormowings under the credd line agreement is based on either the Term 50FR Relerence Rate or
wiher applicabie markel rabes as allowed undes tha berms. of te agreemenl, plus spalicable marging. Commitrment fees under the sgreements ame nol mabesial

Throughout fscal years 2024 and 2023, the Company continued 1o have access o liguidiy through the commescial paper markel, Shorl-lemm borrowings and e
curent pedicn of leng-tarm debl ameurtad b spproxmately 58 0 bilisn ard 3.5 bilisn ot the end of fiscal years 2024 mnd 2023, respactively. The curent
portion of the long-berm debl was §1.7 bilion and $1.5 bilkon in 2024 and H023, respeclively, and the remainder s commential papet and |local borowing by
irkernational subsicianes.

The cuntent debl balance as of Decamber 28, 2024 inchedes 541 bilion of commercial paper which has a weighled averags interesf rale of 4 46% and a
wisighbed average mahuity of approximalely v monthe, The current dabl balance a8 of Decamber 31, 2023 includes 320 bdlion of commercial papsr which has
a waighted average interesi rate of 5.37% and a weighted average mahuity of approdmatedy two months.

Aggregate maluriies of lang.barm debl abligations commandng in 2025 ane!

[Doilars in Millions]
2028 For maT m FL) After 2028
51,749 1,000 2335 2378 1,444 22,548
8. Income taxes
Ths me‘l for taxes OfY NCOmeE an I:ﬂ'lm'llh'lﬂ q!lﬂ“!- oot of
[Dollars in Millions] 2028 Wz 022
Currently payabhis:
U5 faxes 52200 2,705 2274
Inismaticnai taxes 2604 3,090 2295
Total curently payabie 480 5,785 4,569
Deferred:
LS lmxes {2.539) (3,440} 11,090}
Irrinrationsl e e {518 b}
Total defamed {3, 183) {4,053y (1,580
Provision for Laxes on income $261 1,736 2,959
2074 Annual Repon 67

335/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

A comparison of income lax expense at e US statutory rale of 21% in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, 10 the Company's efMective lax rafe s as follows:

[Dwollare in Millioma) m ikl M2
us Sy {2033 4606
Intermationst 11145 eSS s
Eamings balods tanes on income §16,687 15,062 18,358
Ta rales!

L5 slahifacy rabe 210% o 210
Irtemational opsraticns!'! 5.2} a1 (5.0}
LLE. lax gefflamanis 1a (3. —_
LS taxes on irernaticnsl mcome™ {26} 0.3) {11}
LS. stale tanes 15 10 K
Tax bensfits on share-based compantaton {06} [o.8) [1.4)
Al athar L1 1.7 1.6
Effoctve Raoba 157 % ns 154
" interational cperatons raflect the impacts of operations in jurisdictions with stafutiory b rabes diffarent than the U5, padiculary Irsland. 5, tand. and Delgiom. which ma

Toermbie impact on the officive tas rabe as companed with tha U5, stahulony rabe
T Inchudas e rol impact of the GILTI k. the Forsgn-Daivod Intangibin incoma deduction and ofhar forign incoma tal i taxablo unced tho U 5. tar code a8 wall o malaied
Ioresgn tax credits.
The Bzl year 2024 affective 1ax rale increased 4. 2% as compared 1o the fiscal year 2023 effective tax rate. The primary divers of this change are discussed
below,

In Facad vear 2024, The Company had mane incame i highed tax jurisdeSons companed to Escal year 2023, primanty in the U S, whene the Company reconded a
charge of appromimately 551 billian in the fiscal year of 2024 versus approximately 57,0 bilkon in the fSscal year of 2023, bolh for the taic matiers in tha Linited
Siabes. Eoth charges were recorded at an effective U.S. tax rabe of approxmaiely 21% (for fusther informabon see Nole 19 1o the Consolidated Financial
Statamants).

Adumonaly in the fscal vear 2024, the effecines tax rate was unfdworably impached Dy legesiative changes that went into eflect for Fillar Two in somae of the
Company's toreign jurisdictions which are reflected in Inlemabonad operations on the Company's effectie tax rabe reconciliation. Alsc in fscal year 2024, the
Company genemaied incremental LS. foregn tax credils related bo income scunced and taxed oulside the United States and ks refiectad in U5 @ees on
irternabional income on the Company's effectroe tax rate reconcikation, in 2024, the Company fnalized multi-year ranster pricing agreemants with the U5
Intermal Revenue Service {IRS) and certain other foreign jurisdictions. The LLS portion of the agresments were partially offsst by the relsied tax adjustmants in
the foreign jurisdictions which are reflecied in U5 tax seftliements and infernational operations, respectavely, on the Company's effective mte reconciliabon.

The fscal year 2023 effective fax raie d d 3.5% as comp %o the fiscal year 2022 effoctive tax rate as the Company recorded certain non-recuming
favorable inx ibems in fscal year 2023 when compared {o the pror fiscal year

I tha fiscal fourth quarter of 2023, the Company seified the Ul 5. internal Revenue Service audit for tax years 7013 through 2016 which resufied in a favorabie
impact 1o the rate of 3,0%, This selllement was partially offset by ®e Company recording a $0.4 bilion decreass in expected U5, loreign tax credits, an
untavorable offective rate impact of 2 6%, which has been refleciod as a curent tax expense in U . taxes on ntemational mcome on the Company's affective tax
rabe reconciliabion

In the fiscal year 2023, the Company had certan non-recuring impacts as a resul of legsiative tax ekeclicns made in certain intemational subsidianes which
regutiad in @ change N the Company’s fax bass @ cataln assels resulting in delemed ax re-measuramants. The ret impact of Bess non-recurring itams is & rat
berefit of 3.4% io the Company’s annual efective tax rate, comprised of the fallowing items:

= nppeoomately $0.3 billion of tnx banedl on local defermed ax assets bo record the it o the | d bax basis, s benelit nos been reflected as
Inernational aperations on the Company's aMactive tax rale reconcllation. This banelit was o¥set by approximately $0.1 bilion of U5, delerred tax axpense on
Ahe GILTI cerfermed tax liability resufting from the remeasunemant of these deferred tax assets, Ths has bean eflgcied o the “U.S tax on infernational incomse”
on the Company's effective tox e reconciiation

&8 Jdahnsondohnson
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= approdmately $0.3 billion of US. deferred tax beneft on the GILT) defered tax related (o an election made by an intemational subsidiary resulting in &
decreass in local defemed tax assets. This has been refiecled in the U 5. taxes on intemational income an the Company’s effective tax rate reconciliation.

The Company alan had lowsr incoma in higher 1ax urisdictions va Sscal year 2022, primardy in the U.S. whene fie Company reconded an Sppnocimaiely
57.0 bélign change related o talc matiers in fe Uniled States ol an effective tax rabte of 21.1% (for further infermation see Nobe 19 to the Consoddated Financial
Slabemsnis).

Temporary diflecences and carylorvands a1 (he end of iscal years 2024 and 2023 were a8 fallows:

2024 Daferred Tax 20X) Deterred Tax
[Dollars in Milliors] Assel Liability Annel L sabiiety
Emplayee related chigahons 5372 1]
Stock based compensation nr &8
Depreciation of propenty, planl &hd equipment (B33} (802
Goodwill and nlang@les (3,281) {1.252)
RAD capitakred for Lax 4308 3,585
Reserces & latilties 4o 1816
Inverlory relaled an 59
Cperatng loss carmylarwnsds 2298 2,145
Lindistnbuted foreign eamings 1,631 11,482} 1,801 {1,655)
Gilcbal inangble low-laxad neome [1,585) (2.731)
R i al 133 B3t
hiusi itk U5 i _— 4
Todal defered income laxes 16,826 [T.175) 13,819 (B,584)
\niualion alowances {1,838} i1,148)
Tﬂ-lﬂ deferred mcome taxes net of valuation alowanoes 165,188 (T.1TE) 1il?ﬂ |6, 584)

The Company has wholly-owned mbemafional subsidiaries that have cumulatnee net osses. The Company believes that # is mare likely than not that thess
subsidiciies will ganerabs fulehe lacebie income Sufhcasnt 1o parialy ulilive theds deferred L sstats. In certain urisdictions, valuation allswances have been
recorded egaingl defenred tax assats for ioss carmylorwards that ane not more Hcely than not fo be real@ed. The net operating kss camyfonsands Tor these
irternational subsidieries that do not have an indefinite camylorware peniod will begin o expire in 2025 for various amounts

The foliowng table summarizes tha activty ralated 1o valuation allpwances for continuing opevations:

[Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023
Bagnning of year 51,140 715
Prowision 451 355
Liikzation —_ 1118}
Foeeign currency translation [ i) 25
Mes acquisitions | {dmpositionafiquidations) 84 110
End of year £1,838 51,148

2024 Anhual Repant Ea
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[Dwllare in Millioms) 024 i ] M2
Baginning of year 52485 ane a2
Ineiaases rélated 1o cUrTen year ax posbans 178 523
Increases related 1o pror penod 1ax posisons 128 143
Decreasss relabed 10 prior pefiod tax posiions {147} 7B (i48}
Saltements (583} (86a) (1]
Lapss ol stalide of limRations {40} 153} i)
End of year 52,020 2,488 3,718

A5 of Dacombar 29, 2024 the Company had apprecimately 52.0 bilon of unmecognized tax benefits. The Company conducts business and files tax returns In
rumerous coundies and currently has tax audits im progress with a number of e authonities. Wikh respect 1o the United Stales. the Inlernal Revenus Service
{IRS} has complebed its audil dor the tax years through 2018 and has commenced the audil for tax years 2017 through 2020, The Company recently fnalized

it year transler pricing agreements ‘wilh the IRS and cerlain other foralgn [urisdictions in the Racal fouith quaner of 2024,

In cther major jurisdictions whene the Company conducts business, the years that reman open o lax audits go back o the year 2013 The Company bebeves it s
poasibie (hat some tax audits may be completed aver the nexl baehve monlis by tasing authorfties in scme jrisdictions. The Company anSicipates a thange in
ungartain 18y peations of approximately $200 millan in cartam junsdicBons in the next taalve mantihe dus 1o the sxpected axpiration of the staiuie of imtations.
Hewever, generally the Gompary kS nol able b provide a reasonably reliabie estmate af the liming of any alfer fulure 1ax payments, sudt semamams, or

changes in uncestain tax positions

The Company dassifies kahikbes for unrecognized tax benafits and related inferest and panafies as longHerm labdties Inferest expense and panaties related o
unrecognioed tax benefts are classified as ncome fax gxpense. The Company recognized after tax imlerest sxpense of $217 mition, $99 million and $134 millign
in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respeciwely. The fokal amount of accrued imerest was $274 milion and 5264 milion in fiscal years 2024 and

2023, respectively

9. Employee related obligations
AL the end of fiscal 2024 and fiscal 2023, empioyee related cbigations recorded on the Consobdated Batance Sheets were:

[Diollars in Milliors) 24 2023
Pansion benefits 57068 319
Pastrefremaent bannfts 1,520 1,883
Pasbemployment berafits 2910 2517
Delerred cumpenation i il
Tedal employes abligatons T.hR4T TBRT
Less cument benefits payabls agz 534
Employes related chigabions — non-curfent BT.285 f.."l-.l-'l

Prepaid employes related chigations of 56,045 milion and 34 992 milkon for 2024 ang 2027, respectyely, aie included in Qther assats on the Consolidated

Balance Sheots.

70 Jdahnson&dohnson
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10. Pensions and cther benefit plans

Tht Company sparsons variaus reliemaent and pension pians, includng defined banefit, defined contribution and Sermination indemniy plans. which cover most
emgployees worldwide. The Company also provides post-refiremenl benefits, primariy healthcare, o all eligible U5, relired employees and ther dependerls.

Many intamational smplayees are covered by govemmant-sponsared programs and the cost o the Company s nat significant

In e U.5., non-union pension benefits for empioyess hired before January 1, 2015 are primarily based on the employes’s compensabon during the last five
years bafore retirement and (he number of years of service (lhe Final Average Pay formula), U8, pansion benefts for employess hined after 2014, are colculaled
using a diffierent formula based an employes compensation over total years of service (the Retinement Valuve Tomula)

In Jansary 2021, the Company announced that, efective on January 1, 2026, sl eligiole U.5. nonsunion employees, negardiess of hire date, will sam benefits
under e Retiemant Valiss fafmila. This amendment doed not allect 1he Banelitd accrusd under Ihe Final Avarage Pay formula tof sédvice balase Januady 1,
2026.

Inbermational subtidianies have plans undar which funde are deposited with trustess, annuites sie purchased under group coniracts, of ressrves are provided.
The Company does nod fund retiree healthcare benefits in advance and has the right io madify these plans in the futune,

In 2034 and 2023 the Company used December 31, 2024 and Decembar 31, 2023, respedively, as the measuremant date for all U.5 and international
retemment and olher bena®l pans

Med pencdic benefit costs far the Company's defined benefit retirement plans and other benefit plans for 2024, 2023 and 2022 include the folowing components:

Retiremend Pans Other Benefit Plam
[Dollars in Millioms) 4 2023 2022 204 2023 2022
Serdice cosl E04B B3 1,318 m 264 30
Irtenesd cost 1,402 1,437 as 200 214 104
Expeciad relun on phan assets [2.560) (2.716) {2.758) (L] (W] (8}
Amomiralion of prior service cost (184} [184) {164 {2) 2 5]
Recognired schuaral lodses | gaing] 174 [189) B50 53 23 122
Curtaiments and sattiemants {2) 23 1 = (1] ==
Met periodic banefit cost (crecd) $[2az) [ {&2) Ba daT [0

The serdce cost componant of nel periadic benelft cost i pressnbed in e samss ne items. on the Consolidated Statement of Earmings whare other emplayes
compansation costs ame reporied, includng Cost of products soid, Ressarch and developmaent expense, Seling, marketing and administrative expenses, and Met
eamings from discontinued operations, nel of laxes if related to e separabon of Kermue. All olher componenits of nel periodic benefil cosl ade presanted as part
of Other {income) expense, nel on the Consalidated Statement of Earnings, with the exceplion of certain amounts for curtsiiments and seffiements, which ane
reporied in Met sarmangs fram discontinued operabons, nel of xes i relabed 1o the separaton of Kervis (a8 noded abave)

Ursecognized gains and losses fof the LS. pension plans are amarized owver the average remaining future senice for each plan. For plans with no active
employess, they are amorized cver the svarsge ife expedtancy. The amorizaton of gaing and loeses for the cther US. benedt plans s determined by using a

10% comidar of the greater of the market value of assets or the accumulated postresrement benedi chligation. Total unamortzed gains and losses in excess of
ther cormdor ae amortized ovar the average remaining fulure seivice.

Prior service costebanafits for iba U S, pansion plans are amartized oeer the suerage mmaining fuhre service of plan parScipanis at tha time of the plan
amendmand, Prior service costhensfi for the other U S, beneflt plans s amorized over the average remaining servics to full eligibilty age of plan particpants al
the tima of the plan amendment.

2034 Annual Repant |
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The followng lable represents the weighted-aversge actuarial assumplion:

~ Emﬂl i {HMI Bmﬂt_llhu -
Wocldwide Barefit Plans . 022 =24 I
oo LSS EZ) 2022 . wa
Sardice cotl cacoun| raks 4.3 % i 65 248 508 540 258
Irledesd coml dimcaunt rake 485 % 525 280 5.12 543 264
Rate of incresss in compensation evels 370 % 3T 4.02 422 22 4.2
Expecied ong-lern rake of feham on plan assets T.Z25 % T.21 7.25
Banefil Obiigatian
[)imll‘ﬁ 485 % 458 501 554 =1 542
Rasw ol inciense in componsiton kvwls AT % 36D 4.00 422 4322 421

The Company's discount rates are determined by consdaring current yield curees repressnbing high quality, ong-ierm Rxed income instrumanés. The resufting
discount rates are consigient with the dusation of plan liabdilies. The Company's methodology in detemmining servics and inleres! cost Uses dura®on specis spol
rabes along thal yield curve to the plans” Nabilty cash Nows

The expecied rabes of relum on plan 85581 asUMpions fepresent the Company's ASsessment of Iong-leim retums on diversiied nvesimant portiolios globally.
The assessmant is determinad using propachons from external fmancal sources. long-term historical averages. achual retums by asset tlass and the vanous
assel (lass alocalions by market.

Tha Following 1able displays the asaumed heallhcare cost trond rales, for oll indriduais.

Healthcare Plans 024 023
Heatthcare cosi rend rale assumed for next year 933 % 1390 %
Raswe bo which the cost trend rate is assumed 1o decling (uimate rend) 407 % 4.00 %
Year the rate reaches the uiimate tend rale 2048 2048

Tha following tabla sats forth formaton related to the benedt chigaton and the fair valua of plan assess at fiscal year-snd 2024 and 2033 for the Company's
defined benefit refirement plans and other post-retiremant plans:

Ristirement Plars Other Benelit Plans
{Dinllars in Millin) 2034 2023 2024 2023
Change in Benefit Obligation
Pregected benalit ablighbon — Baginning of year 531,744 25,383 4108 4162
Service cost 248 253 1l 264
Irilerest cost 1,402 1437 200 24
Plan participant sontibutiens 75 73 — —
Armendments - [1:1] —_ —_
Actuaral (gains} osses' " {1.245) z068 a8 469
Divesbtures & scquisitions™ - (352} — 1
Curtaimaents. setlements & restuciuing 121) (238) - 332y
Benefits paid fram plan™ {1.801) (2,122 (554 (o2}
Effectof exchange rates (035) go1 (1) 2
Propected beneit obligabon — end of year 30,317 31,744 4,425 4,108

T2 Adohnsendohnson
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Change in Flan Assels

Plan assets at lai valus — beginning of year $33,607 31,496 88 T8
Achial relurn (088 ) on plan sSsats 2113 385 15 18
Coenpany contnbutans 220 268 548 fid
Flan participant contributions 5 73 = -
Saltements 1114) (178} = =
Divestiures & acquisiions™ — {509 — —
Banefits paid from plan assets™ (1.801) (2920 [554) [702)
Efect of exchange rales [F14) B2E — —
Plan assets at fair value — erd of yoar $33,395 11,607 23 86
Funced status — and of year £3,078 1,863 {4.322) 14.022)
Amounis Recognized in ihe Company’s Balonce Sheel consist of the following:

hon=cunent asssts 86 D46 4,502 = =
Cusrerd habiities {134) {119 {453 (418
Noncunentisbites _@83) 0w 38T (3600)
Todal recogniged in the consolidated balante sheel — end of year 53,078 1,863 {4.332) 14.022)
Amounts Recognired in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income consist of the following:

et actuaral keks 3.5203 4862 a1 a5
Prior senvice cost [oredit) (1A% (1.234) [ 6]
Linrecogrized nirl transiton cbligation — - -

Todal before tax effects 2,852 AT28 Ba7 348
Accumulated Benelit Obligations — end of year $73,583 30,139

" Tre actuanal (gansiosses for releemen] plans in 2024 and 20E3 woeh) prmariy driven by dranges o e discount rates
T Drven by th Korvue sopamion

T The fiscal yoars 2024 and 207 includes appeoximately 54600 milion and 3830 milkon, rescectively, fransdermod o o group annuity confrac msued by @ Sindparty nsar for e
LB, Ealanad Pesrdian Plan.

Ruthiement Plars Other Benefit Marm

[Dallars in Millicrs) 2024 2013 2024 033
Amounts Recognized in Net Periodic Benefil Cost and Other Comprehensive Income
e pencdc banefit cost (credi) S2IE) [67E) 530 467
Met actuarial pain) loss [807) ™m 389 138
Amortization of nel aciuarial loss (172) 198 {53 22)
Priosr senvice cosd (oredil) — 12 — —
Amortization of price senice (ol credil 184 185 F 2
EMect of exchange rates (il 103 1 —
Toal s/ (incoma ) recognized in other comprehanshe income. befone tax Bav4) 1,195 233 118
Total recognized in nel petiodic benelit cost and cther comprehsrsae income $(1,006) 519 863 603

2024 Annual Repan 73

341/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

Thet Company plans to continue tofund its LS. Qualified Plars fo comply wilth the Pension Prolection Act of 2006, Inlemabional Plans are funded in sccordance
with lecal regulations. Additional cscreticnany contrbufons are made when desmsd appropriate o meed th long-term obigalions of the plans. For cenain plans,
funding is not a common practos, as funding provices no economic banafit. Consequantly, the Company has. several pansion pians. thal are nol funded,

In 2024, the Company contribubed 5122 milkon and £107 milllon to Rs U.S. and inlemational pension plans, respecthialy.

Tha foliowing lable displays the Tunded slatus of the Company's U5, Qualfied & Non-Ouaified pansion plans ang mtematanal funded and unfunded pansion
plans at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respecively:

ULS. Plans. Imternational Plans
Cunlified Plars Hen-Oualifed Plars Funded Plans Unfunded Plans

[Dallars in Milliom) 2034 e 2024 2023 2024 023 2024 2023
Plan Assets 522250 22208 — == 145 11,308 = =
Projected Berafit Obligation 10,148 19,152 1,080 2007 10,088 10,420 12 124
Accurrilated Benett Obigation 1772 18,557 1,048 1,882 8,115 8,458 ) 102
Qver (Under] Funded Status

Projected Bereht Chligation $4.104 3,046 (1590} (2037 1078 878 (12 (124)
Accuruinted Benef Obigation 4534 3,741 11,048) (1,982) 2030 1811 53 [102)

Pians with actumulated bensti chligations in excess of plan assets have an accumdlated beneft obbgation, projected benem cbligation and plan assels of 5.8
bifion, $6.1 billion and 532 billion, respectaety, at the end of 2024, and 55 A bilbon, 561 billion and 53.1 billion, respectively, al the end of 2023

The Fllowing 1akie displays the prosacted hutune banedil payments fiom the Company's retrement and other Deness plans:

[Dollars in Milliors] 2028 oo ] Fire] 0 098 2030-2034
Projected fulure benefit payments

FResrement plars %1 480 1,503 1,604 1,702 1787 10,401
Cthes banafil plans 5464 478 432 445 a2 2.537

Thee foliowing table displays the progected futuhe minimum contibutions to the unfunded refifement plans. These amouants do nol indude any dscretaonany
contribations thal the Company may elect o make in the future

[Dollars in Millloms) racrs ] 2028 2027 ze oy 2030-2034
Projected hvlure contributions 333 135 140 145 150 815

Each pension plan & aversesn by & local commiies of boand that is responsibie for the overall adminisiralion and investment of the pengion plans. In deleamining
imvesiment policies, stralegies and goals, each commiltes or board considens facion incliding, beal pension rules and regulatons; focal tax regulations;
availabiity of irvestmant vehicles (separsle scodurs, commingled accounts, insurancs funds, sl funded status of (he plana; ralic of acltives o felinees;
durabion of liabikties; and ciher relevant factors including: diversfication, liquidity of local markets and lguidity of base csrenoy. A& majornty of the Company's
persan funds ane open b2 new entrants and ane expecied o be on-going plans. Permitied investiments ane primarity liquid andior Isted, wish littie nokance on
iliquid and nortraditional imvestments such as hedge funds.

74 JdohnsonSdohnson
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Thie Company's relinement plan asse! allocation at the end of 2024 and 2023 and target allocations for 2025 are as folows

Paeat ol Target
T A iy T
Worldwide Retaersen! Pland 2024 023 26
Exquity securities 55 % 58 % 54 %
Tolal plan assets 100 % 100 % 100 %

Determination of fair value of plan assets

Tha Plan has an estabished and wel-documenled procedqs for delesmining fair values, Falr value s based upon quobed maroel press, whene avalabie. Il lsled
prices or queles are not avalable. far value is based upon models (hat primanly use, as inputs, market-based or independently sourced market paramaters,
including yield curves, inbarest rates, volatiites, equity or debl prices, foreign exchange rates and credi cunves.

¥ihile the Plan believes (s vallaton metheds ane appropriabe and conssstent with other marked partcparts, e ves of difedent methodologses or assumplions 1o
daterming the fair value of cerain tnancial instruments could resall in @ cdterent estimate of 1ar valae al the reponting daie.

Valuation hierarchy

The muthoriiatnie lilerahire astablishas o threedavel hierarchy 1o prianfioe the inputs used in measuring fair value. The levels withn Bhe hierarchy are described in
tha tabile balow with Leval 1 having ke highest pranity and Level 3 hawing ta lowest.

Thee Med Asset Valus [MAY) B based on the value of the undedflying sasls owned By He fund, minus e iabites, and then divided By the number of shafes
outstanding.

A Enancial instrument’s calegorization within the valisation hisranchy is based upon the lowest level of input that = significant fo the fair value measumemend
Foliorwing & a description of ihe valuation methadalogies used for the invesiments measuned at fair value,

Shortsferm investment funds — Cash and quoted short-benm msiruments are valued at the closing price or the smount heid on deposit by the cusicdian bank:
Other irvelments ame Bimugh Imeestment weshicles valissd using 1he MAW provided By the administator of the fund The MAY is 2 quoted price i o market that
8 ol active and classified a8 Lave| 2.

Govemment and agency securibes — A lirrted number of these nvesiments are valued al the closing price reported on the major market on which the
indivicual secirities Are traded. Where quoted pricas ane avalabie in 8n active markel, the investmants are cassifisd within Lewel 1 of the valualion hierarchy.
I quspbed marked pices are nod available Tor the speclc secuiily, hen lal values are asimabed by using pricang models, guobed prices of securiies wilh simdar
characteristics or discounted cash flows, When guoted marel prices for a seourity are nat available in an acivne market, they ane cossifed as Lovel 2.

Debif instruments — A& bniled rimber of thess invesiments are valued af he desng price reporied on the major markel on which the individual securifes ame
traded, Whene queted prices ano available In an active market, the imesiments ane cossified es Lovel 1. H quoted market prices ane not availokie for the
specific security, then fair values are sstimated by uting pricing modiels, quoted prices of securiies with similar characieritics or discounted cash fiows and
are elasaified s Level 2 Level 3 dabl instrufmenls ane priced baded on drobservable inputs

Equity socunties = Equity securities are valued a the dosing price reported on the major marked on which (he individual securities are traded. Substantiailly all
aquily securities are classfad wihin Level 1 of the valuabon resranchy.

Comminglad funds — These investment valisiee are valusd usirg the MAV provided by e fund adminisialor Aseets in Be Level 2 cabegory have 8 susted
market prce.

Othar ageals — Oher aseete are repredentsd prenadily by Imiled parirerchips. Thess irvesiment vehicles are valued using the MAY provided by the fund
Adménistralor Other assets that are exchangs lislad and acivaly Iraded are Cassiied as Lewel 1, while inactively iraded assets ame dassiiied & Level 2

2024 Annual Repon b
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Quated Prices Sajiificinl
i Betivi Othiet Sigailicant it ALt
Markets loe Dbservabde Unobservabile Measured a1 Hel
Iderical Assets Inputs Inguurts!" Ansel Value
(Lavel 1) Ll 2) vl 3] Total Assets
[Dioilars in Millions] 024 023 o] w2 2024 iz For 2023 2024 2023
Shioet-1ermn imvastment funds — 12 an v i = i - 51 &1
Government and agency
BaCairlies. - - 7,885 5,885 — - - - 7,685 5.965
Dabl irstrumants - - 2,321 3,500 - - - - 23N 3809
Equity socurities 7,144 7.4 — — — — . — 7044 7764
Commingled funds — - 5.004 4,967 v 43 K1 65672 1,33 11,682
Cther assels + — -] 40 128 L 4,087 3.205 4303 3436
Inwestments al fair value 7044 7778 156,800 16,720 166 135 10,277 BAGT H.:'I:I I3.607

A% The pctvlty for & Level 3 assets i nol egnib

o @l oy pr

The Company's Dther Bened Plans ane unlunded except for U S, commingled funds (Level 2) of 553 millon and 336 milion at December 31, 2024 and

Detominer 31, 1013, respechvely,

The Eair valus of Johnsan & Johneon Common Slock dirscly Reid in plan assets was 513 milion a1 Decamber 31, 2024 and 514 million at December 31, 2023

11. Savings plan

The Company has veluntary 401(k) savings plans designed bo enhance the axisling rebrement programs sovedng elighle employess. The Company matzhes a
percentage of each employes's conlrbubons consistent with Bhe provisions of the plan for which [he employes is eligible. Total Company matching contributions

ta the plans woere 382 milkon, $262 milion and S25T milkon in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively

TB Jahnson Sdohnaon
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Balance al January 2, 2073

Empioyes companiation and sleck oplion plang
Repurchase of comman slock

Balance ot January 1, 2023
Employee compensation end siock option plans
Repurchase of comiman slock

Keme shie exchange (Nole 21)

Balance al December 31, 2023

Empiayes compancation and sliock oplion plans
Repurchase of comman stack

Balanoe a1 Decamber 20, 7034

Towasuay Stack
430,878 s30.000
(20,007} (3440}

38,375 €035
508245 41504
{15,521) (2528)

31,085 5078

180,655 418

Tiz.res 75,802
{15,027} 12389

15,183 2407
2821 575,660

Aggregate shares of cammaon slock issued were approsimately 3,118,843 D00 shares &t the end of fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022,
Cash dridends paid were $4.91 per share in fiscal year 2024, compared with dridends of $4.70 pes share in fiscal year 2023, and 54.45 per share in fiscal year

2022

On January 2, 7025, the Board of Direcioss declamed  regular cash dividend of 51.24 per shase, payable on March 4, 2025 to shareholders of record as of

Februany 16, 2025,

On Seplember 14, 2022, the Company announced thaf its Baard of Directars approved a share repurchase program, authonzing the Company 1o puichase up o
$5.0 billion of the Company®s shares of common stock. The repurchase program was completed during the fiscal firsl quarter of 2023,

13. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Components of ofher comprehensie income (koss) consist of Ihe following

Tistal

Gainf Bccumulated

Fareign Baind (Loss) Bn Cther

Cuirency [Loss) On Empioyee Derivatives Comprehensive

Ootre I NeReRe) Timewlarion et T i Eaom Incom [}
January 2, 2022 10017y {3 12,702 {336} (13.058)
Jual oo cigte. (1.706) 124 1,05 e "
Jansary 1, 2023 11813 Fa] (89T} {230) (t2.867)
MNat 2023 changes (3.z1) % 11,299} {147} 4741
Kil'h'l-lr Wmﬂ ) 4 B85 - 20l = 5.:| l:‘
December 31, 2023 110149) {1} | 2,000) {377} (12,527}
Not 2024 changes 1.708 i 449 {1.373) res
Decembar 28 2024 5(8.441) 1 11.551) 11,750) {11,741)
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Amours in accumidated olher compeehensive inbome are presered net of the related tax mpact Foreign curency transiobon is not adjusted for income aes
wihene (| relales 1o permanenl invesimens in inbemational subsidiaries. For addilional details o0 comprehensive income see the Consolidaled Salements of
Comprahensive Incoma,

Dietails on reciassifications oul of Accumulaled Other Comprehenshe Hoome:
GanfLota) On Secuntss - reclassifications released to Oiher (income) ExpEnge, el
Employes Beneft Plans - reclassifcations are ncluded in net perodic benefit cost. See MNote 10 for additionad details.

Gainf{Loss) On Devatives & Hedges - eclassifications fo earmings are recorded in tha same account as the hedged ransacton. Sea Mote & for additonal
delasls,
* I mpac of i and sattiemeris n connecion with separaton from Kemass

14, International currency translation

Fof tranalation af s subsidianes aperating in non-LLUS. Dolar curmendes, the Comparny has debermined that te iacal curencies of s ntemational subssdianes
ane e furctional currencies axcepl thoss in highly inflabonary econcmies, which are defined as these which have had compound cumulative rales af inflaton of
100% or mone curing the past three years. or where & substantial portion of iis cash Mows ane nol in the lecal cummency, For tha majedty of the Company's
subslranies 1he local clamency |8 Ihe Runclional currengy.

In consoidating internadional subsidianes, balance shest cumency eflects are recorded Be @ componant of accumulated olber comprehensive ncome. The othar
cument and non-cumrani assets ine within the Staement of Cash Aows ncludes the impact of foregn cumency ransiaton. This equity acoount ncludes the resuts
of branslating certain balance shee! assels and labiites at cument exchange rales and some accounts at historical ra%es. except for those bcated in highly
inflationary economies (Argentna, Turkey and enezssla). Beginning in the fiscal fourth quatter of 2024, the Comopany also accounied for operations in Egypt as
ighly mflationary, The irarslation of balance shesl accounts for haghly inflabenary economies ane refiscled in e operating rasults.

A rollforward ef the changes during fissal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 for fareign currency Fanslabon adjustrants is inciuded in Nele 13

Med currengy transacion gains and losses included in Qther (income) axpenss were losses of 5214 milion, 53646 million and 5256 milion in fiscal years 2024,
2023 and 2022, respactinsly

78 dohnson&Jdohnson
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15. Earnings per share

The fallawng & & recantiliabon of basic rel samings per thafe 1o dilubed nel samings per share for the fecal years ended Dacember 20 2024, December 31,
2023 and January 1, 2023

[in Millions Except Per Share Amaunts) 024 2023 2022
Basic il aarnings per share fram conlinuing operalicns $5.84 5.3 823
Basic nil sarmings por ahare trom discontinued coeralions - a8.62 Q.60
Total net eamings per share - basic 554 1388 B 83
#vrerage shares outstanding = basic 24073 2505 28252
Paolenbal shares exercaable undes slock opfon plars 7T 841 1401
Lass: shasss rapurchased under veasury siock methad _se @7z o
Adjusted average shares cutstanding — diuted 24204 25804 26639
Diluted riot oamings per share from conbruing operafons BTG 53 614
Dilubed rat eamings per share from discontinuing operations - 852 058
Total nat samings per share - diluted TEsTe 1372 R
[Shaies im Mlona)

The diuded nel earmings per share calculation excluded the following number of shares refated o slock
oplions, as the exercise price of these oplions was greater than the average market value of the Company's
shock, Lol 430 oo

16. Common stock, stock option plans and stock compensation agreements

Al December 29, 2024, 1he Company Mad one st slock-based compandation plan, the 2022 Lang-Term Incentye Flan. The shares oulslanding @ for
conracts under the Companys 2012 Lomg- Teim Incendive Fan and 2022 Lomg-Term Incentie Plan The 2012 Loag-Term incentive Flan expired on April 26,
2022 ANl awards istock options, restriched shares unils and performance share wnits | granted subsequert ko that date were under the 2022 Long-Term Incentive
Pian. Under the 2022 Long-Term Incendie Flan. the Company may lsue up bo 150 milken shares of common siock, of which up 1o 110 million shares of common
slock may be ssued sublect 10 siock options or siock appreceation fights and up 10 40 milkion shares of comman slock may be issuea subkect 1 full vaiee swards.
Aards will generally be courrled on a 1-for-1 bass agains! he share reserve, provided thal if mare than 40 million ful value swards are granted, each full valus
award i excass of 40 milion wil be counled on a 5-for-1 basts againet the share reserve. Shares available for fulire grants under ine 2022 Long-Term Incenlive
Fian wara 111 milion at the and of Escal year 2024.

The compensaton cost thal has been charged against income for these plans was 81,176 million, §1,087 milion and §1,028 milion for fiscal years 2024, 2023
and 2022, respecively. Tha tolsl incomea (8x banefil recogrized in the income slabament Tor shase-based compensalion costd was 5251 millon, 5221 millon and
17T milion for fiscal years 2024, 2003 and 2022, respectively. The Company also recognized additicnal incomee tax berefils of S84 milion, $128 milkon and
5267 milion for fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectivaly. for which oplions were esercised or restricted shares wore vesbed. The iotal unrecogrized
compensabion cost was 51,002 million, $307 million and S866 million for fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The weighled average period Tor this cost
to be recognised was 161 years, 180 years and 150 years for fiscal years 2024, 2007, and 2002 respectivaly. Share-based cempensation costs capilaiized as
part of irventary wire nsigricant in al periods.

The Company seies empioyee banell quily [BSuBnoEs wilh easury shares. Treasury shares ane repienished through markel purchases hioughoul the year fod
the number of shares used 1o seffe employes benelil equily iBsuances.

2014 Annual Report 79
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Siock options expire 10 vears from (he data of grant and vest over service pencds thal range from & months 1o 4 years. Opbons granted under the 2012 Long-
Term Incentive Plan were granied af ihe average of the high and low prices of (he Company's Common Stock on the Mew York Stock Exchange on the date of
grant. Options granted undar tho 2022 Long-Term incEntve Plan were granted at the closing price of the Company's Comman Stock on the Mew York Slock

Exchange on the date of grant

Thee Fair valus of each option award was estimaled on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valsation model that wses the assumptions noled inthe
fallawing takie. For 2024, 3023, and 2022 grants, expected volaslily represents a Blended rabe of 10-year wenkly historical owerall volatiity rate, and a S-week
average implied volatilty rabe bassd on s1the-meney raded Johnson & Johnson options with & e of 2 yesrs. For all grants, hstoncal dala is usad i determine
e eapached fife of (ke option. Th risk-dree rale was based on Bie US Treasury yield curve in effect at the bme of grand.

The avecage fair value of ophcns granted was 337 67, 527 85 and $23.23, in fscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respéciively. The far value was estimaled based

on the weighled sverage sssumplons af

] 023 o022
Fik-froe rate 495 % AT % 198 %
Expacied volatiity 1785 % 176D % 1600 %
Expecied ifa {in years] o 7.0 Ta
Expecied dividend yield 3,90 % 290 % LT0 %
A gummary of opion activity under the Plan as of Decomber 20, 2024, i presented below:
Aggregain
Weighted Intringic
Dutatsnding Awninge Exercise Wadus
[Shares im Thousands) Shares Price [Dollars e Millioes]
Shores af December 31, 2023 112238 13968 22229
e oo R e
Cptions sxergssd (10.771) 107,06
Cptions canceledforieted {2 755 162 45
Shares al December 29, 2034 112,628 $144.69 31,119

T bolal intrirsic value of opbons exercised was 5380 milion, 3729 million and 31,228 milon in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respecively.

BO Johnsendohnson
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Thie followng table summarizes slock options outstanding and exercisabie al December 29, 2024

[Shares im Thousands] Outstanding Exercizabie
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exrercise Price Range Dptions yerage Lide™ Exercise Price Cptions Exercise Price
5100.08 - $101.87 1306 <R ] 510120 12,098 $101.29
51154751295 18,252 6 122.4% 18,352 123249
513194 - 518141 25424 4.8 14287 25,824 142 &7
516702 - 516,75 26,33 K] 160.33 4,208 162,78
S1604 42 - 16580 20,348 6.8 16520 13,522 184 84
112,628 5.3 544,69 T4,683 $138.72

1% Awarags contrastul [ romanng i yam,

Slock oplons outstanding at December 31, 2023 and Januaty 1, 2023 wene 112 238 and an average life of 5.5 years and 115,872 and an averags e of
5.8 yean, respeciively. Stock oplions exercisable sl Decamber 31, 2023 and January 1, 2023 were 66,098 &l an average price of 5123.30 and £3,661 at an
average price of 5113.06, respectvely

Restricted share units and performance share units

The Company grants restricted shane units which vest over senvice penods that range from 6 months to 3 years. The Company also grants performance shase
units, which are paid in shares of Johrson & Jahnson Comman Stock afler the end of a ihree-year perfarmance pariod. Pesh e shares we'e granied wilh
e equally-waighted goals that directly align with or felp drive Iong-term tatsl shavehodder roturn: adiusied cparatonal samings per share and relabyve tetal
shareholder rehsm  The number of shares actuplly earmed at the end of e three-year pariod wil vary, based only on achual perfomance, from 0% in 200% of the
‘tanged numper of parfoomance shane UnRE granbag.

A sumenary of the resincied share unis and periermance share units activity under e Plans as of Decamber 29, 2024 s presented below:

Gutstanding Catstandirg
[Shared im Thousands) Restricted Shane Unita Pertormancs 5has Unis
Shares at December 31, 2023 12.938 2,007
Granied &35 =l ]
lssued [5.454) (808}
CAncemcro TN, L B 122}
Shares ot December 29, 2024 LERC 2013

The average tair value of the resinded share wnits granted was $147.51, $152.83 and $153.87 in fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 respeclively, using the fair
masked value at the date of grant. The fair value of resiricied share units was discounted for dividends, which are nof paid on the resincied share units during the
vesling perod. The fair value of resricted shase units issued was 5233 million, $505 milion and $5§1 miliion in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectivaly

The weighted average far value of the perlormance shame units granied was 313376, 514517 and 317046 in Tecal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, calculated using
the waighied average fair maried value for each of the component poals at the date of grard,

Troe fair values hor the samings per share goals of each perlormance share uril ware estimabed on the dale of granl using the e madke! value of he shares s
tha tima of the sward discounted for dividends, which are not paid on the perfcrmance shase units dunng the vasting paricd, The fair value for she relatve total
sharoholder retum goal of each perdormance share wnit was estmaled on fha daie of grant using e Mante Carno valuation modal. Tha fair value of performancs
share units issued was 5146 millian, £140 million and $84 million in fiscal years 30234, 2023 and 2022, respeciively.
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17. Segments of business and geographic areas

Folierwing Bie separaiion of e Cordumer Health budiness in the fiscal third quaiter of 2023, e Company | Bow organised inlo two feportabls segmants:
Innovase Medicine and MedTech, The segmend results have been recast for all periods |o reflect ibe conlinuing cperations of the Company

The Company's chief oparaing decision maker (CODM) i the Chie! Exsculive Oficer (Princpal Executive Officer). For the Innovative Medicine and MedTech
segments, the CODM uses segment income before tax 1o Alocate resouces (noludng employess, financial ard capital rescurces) Tor each segment
predaminanly in e annual leecastng process. The CODM consders planning-t-aclual vaniances on & guanerly bass 1o assess perfoemance and make
decisions oboul aliooabng resources (o the segments.

Sales 1o Cuslomers s Change
[Ballare in Milliars) 2024 2023 2 ‘M v, 23 1 we. 22
INHOVATIVE MEDICINE
Irnumiwnclogy
us 591,355 11,538 11,036 (1.6)% 46
Imder ratiaral 8473 6,513 5,690 (G) 104
Vicrdwide 17828 18,052 16,035 (1.2} BE
REMICADE
us 1,008 1,143 1417 (1.7 (193
U5 Exponts ] 147 204 {330} (28.0)
Inderrational 4a7 540 T2 (5] (239}
Wiatldaide 1608 1,630 2343 {128 (21.8)
SRMPCR 7 SIMPONILARE,
us 1.082 1,124 1,188 [3.A8) (3.8}
Inderratianal 1,108 1,073 1,017 33 54
Warldaide 2100 2197 2184 (L H] 06
STELARA
us 674 6,966 5,358 [35) 90
Inderraticnal ER-Th ] ez 3335 (6.4) 16.7
Whatldaide 10,381 10,858 8723 (485 T
IBEMFYA
us. 2443 2147 1,844 137 185
Interratianal 1.227 a9 B2d 28 212
Wiorichwide AET0 3,147 2,868 156 1Te
DOTHER IMMUSMCEL OGY
us 3 1" 1T 741 (33.8)
Inderrational 1} o 1] — —
Wiardwice 3 " 17 {r41) (33.8)
Infectiows Discases
us 1,354 1,500 1,680 [ 1-H] (10.T)y
Inderratianal 2042 2918 3,760 [30.0) (22.6)
Vot dadde 3306 4418 5440 {231} (18.9)
LOVID- 10 VACCINE
us o o 120 - "
Inerratianal 186 17 2,059 {B24) (45.8)
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Sales te Custamens % Change
[Dollars in Millioms) T4 2023 EE ‘qave, 23 ‘23 we, 22
Weorcwide ta8 1147 2478 {B2.4) (488}
ERURANT [ rignaing
us ki 35 36 {10.0) [am
Indnrrational 1,41 1,115 7z 1.2 148
Wearhcwide 1,272 1.150 1,008 1008 14.1
BREZIZTA PREICOBIX /
REZOLSTA ! SYMTUZA
us 1311 1446 1494 [3.4) 3.2}
Indernational 401 408 448 (1.7 m2)
Wiorlcaide 1,712 1854 1,043 7.Th [£.6)
OTHER INFECTIOUS DISEASES
us. 1" 19 30 410§ (34 5)
Irderrational ik ] 273 -] (26.7) [38)
Warlcwice 214 287 gl {27.6) 6.7
Neurosckence
us. 4,398 4085 1570 a2 138
Inderrational 2118 a07a 3,323 [11.8) 7.5
Wiarcwide T.115 T.140 6,883 [0.4§ 34
COMCERTA ! mathylphanidats
us 134 230 151 (LA 525
Indernational sar G54 49% (B.d) 122
Worldwide B4 783 E44 18.1) 214
INVEGA SUSTENNA XEPLION | INVEGA TRINIA S
IREVICTA
us. 3125 2E0T 2,14 e 6.7
Irderratianal 1,097 1218 1426 [@.8) [REH-)]
Weallgwide 4222 4,115 4,140 28 (a8
SPRAVATS
uE e 584 28 578 Tar
Imerrational 148 100 46 482 o
Worlcwide 1.077 589 T4 564 B4.1
STHER HEVRQSCIENCE
us 210 349 376 {30.8) 7.3y
Interrational a5 1204 1,358 {13.8) (1.3
Waricwide 1,175 1,553 1,734 {24.3) {104}
Oncology
us. 10,854 B462 6,830 283 21
Imerrational 926 LRE ) 9052 e 16
Warlswide 2o Tat 1T BE1 15,683 177 105
CARVYKT]
us BED 469 133 B5.2
Inderrational 64 kL] — L

2024 Annual Repart B3
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Sales to Custemers % Change

[Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 2z ‘24vs. 23 23w ‘22
Warlcwide 53 500 133 27 .
DARZALEX
us. 6588 217 4,210 248 54
Inderrational 5,083 4487 3767 138 188
Woarlcwide 11,670 - ¥ ¥ TATT 188 222
EELEADS
us. 1,782 1,085 968 203 100
Inderratianal 1,717 1322 #3 208 448
Worlcwide 2900 2387 1,881 258 069
IBRLNICA
(VR 1,020 1,051 1,390 [3.0) (244
Indrnational 2018 2214 2394 (8.8) (7.5)
Warldwide 3,008 3284 3784 6,80 {13.7)
TECWAYLE
us 418 334 12 283 *
Irderratianal 131 B1 3 * =
Worlcwide S0 a85 15 a8
EYTIEA ipbaralerone acetals
.5 k2 50 T {32.2) {321)
Inernational sar 83T 1,698 {28.6) {507}
Viorowide %1 BaT 1,770 (Z28.8) {49.9)
DTHER ONCOLOGY
Us, [k 215 144 . 5.3
Inderrational 88 268 280 T (3.9)
Wearicwide Lal] 484 423 925 14.4

Pulmonary Hyperiension
us 3,143 2607 2,346 165 150
Interrational 1,140 117 1071 20 43
Warlcwide 4,202 =111 3417 123 148
DPSUMIT
W5 1,520 1282 1,432 7.7 14.1
Inernaticnal BE4 881 851 [2.4) 448
Viardwide 2084 1973 1,783 mwr 1o h
LPTRA
ua. Lsn 1326 1,104 129 m
Imerrational wWar 255 B 201 173
Viarigwide 1E1T 1582 1322 148 197
DIHER PULMONARY HYPERTENSION
us 1z ] 10 418 {28.6)
Irderrational 169 182 202 [8.9) {103
Veardwice e} 250 13 e (RN
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Sales bo Cusiomers % Change
{Dollars in Milliorrs) 2024 623 022 e, B3 ‘23 ve, ‘22
Cardiovascular | Metabaliam [ Other
us. 2866 28906 3042 (14) .59
inderrational 506 TE5 845 (1511 [a.4)
Woricwice 3562 s 3887 (30 [55)
EARELTO
us 2amn 2,365 2473 0.3 [+.4)
Irderrational = = - — —
Watlcwide 2373 2,355 2473 0.3 )
RIHER
us 404 541 569 (B.8) [5.0)
irderratianal 606 785 845 {B.1) [LET)
Warlcwic 1189 1.306 1.4 (8.9 (T.5)
TOTAL INNOVATIVE MEDICINE
us. 33070 31,160 28,5604 o LT
Irderrational 22004 23 500 23,050 (2.5 {1.5)
Witldwide 50,904 54,758 52,563 40 42
MEDTECH
Cardipvascular
us, 4513 3Ea3 AT 4.2 1]
Irderratianal 3104 277 FRES] 176 w5
Watigwide T.707 8,350 4,300 24 4Ty
ELECTROPHYSIOLOGY
U5 2,733 2458 2,038 114 207
Irderratianal 2529 2,730 1,901 134 173
Wi ichwice 5267 4,658 3937 123 19.1
ABIDMEDS
us 1,212 1,066 ul 17
Inderrational 284 240 —_ 182
Weoricwide 1406 1,306 a 145
EHOCHWAVE™
us. 442 - = . -
irderrational 122 — — . .
Warldwide 564 — i . .
DTHER CARDIOVASCULAR™
us 120 106 162 0.7 8.7
Inderrational 280 M7 230 53 T3
Wtlchwice 380 158 112 BED TA
Orihopaedics
us 5,609 5,525 5,301 in 18
indernational 3470 34T 3,267 15 a6
Wallcwide 3153 8,042 8,567 24 IR

2024 Annual Repont BS
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Zales 1o Customers. % Change
[Dollars in Millions] 2024 2023 022 ‘24 vs, ‘23 23 ve. 22
HIFg
u.s. 1.057 Q96 B3 62 586
international 581 5a4 L an (L8]
Worlcwice 1,634 1,560 1514 50 g
EMEES
(VE: B2z 1] B51 3] 53
Inderratianal k] 558 508 13 102
Wiorlchwide 1.545 T.458 1,358 61 T
TRAUNS
us 1013 1,948 1,882 a3 s
Interrational 1,038 1,030 ] L] a1
Wiaricwide 3049 28m13 28T 23 38
SPINE. SPORTS & QTHER
s, 1,655 1,684 1,645 or 24
Indesratianal 123 1,263 1.198 2.8y 54
Worncwide 2026 2847 2843 2.7y 37
Sufgery
8. 4,003 403 3897 2.7y 34
Indernational 5842 §.006 5793 (A ar
Wiarcwice 9845 10037 2690 .8 16
ADVARCED
us 1,828 1833 1.784 02 28
Inderratianal 2850 23T 2,785 8.8y I8
Winrdwide 4 468 46T & 560 {3.9) 22
BEHERAL
us 165 2188 2113 {1.5) a0
Indernational i 3168 3,008 na 53
Wenricwice 5358 5388 LR 10.2) 48
Vision
us. i@ 2088 1,990 20 48
Internatignal 3m8 2986 2850 1.1 45
Wiloridwide 5 148 5072 LR E] 15 A8
EONTACT LENSES { GTHER
us 16684 1.8 1522 38 8.4
Interratanal 20449 2076 2022 1.3y 27
Wiarlcwide 173 3702 3,543 o8 45
SURGIGAL
ws, 44 4E0 488 {3.4) {1.8)
Inderrational B8 Q10 aar ] Bg
Wiorichwide: 1413 1A% 1,308 a2 48
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Sales 1o Cusbamers e Change

[Dollars in Millions) 2024 2023 2022 ‘24 vs. 23 23 we. ‘22
TOTAL MEDTECH

W5 16,332 15,275 13377 =4} 142

Inerrational 15525 15,125 14,050 26 T

Weoricwide 31 857 30,400 araar 48 108
WORLDWIDE

us 50,302 45444 41,881 83 10.6

Indernational 2510 wns 38,009 0.5 e

Worldwide SE8EM BE, 159 a0 13% 85
* pononiage groalor than 100% or mat meaning'ul
i Previcoaly referred 1o g Inferientional Soktons
@ Asquired on Desember 22, 2022
™ Acguined on May 31, 2034

Ineesme Bolore Tax by Ssgment
{Dollars in Millions) 20247 2023 W 2022 ™
Imnovative Inmvalive Innavative
M cig MedTech Taotal WAedicing MadTech Todal Madkeinig WedTech Todal
Sales o cusicmens 556,954 anasr 54 750 30,400 52,562 av4aar
Cos of products sclg 14,038 13,345 13Ms 12722 14,088 10,397
Saling, marketing and
aiminisiratve 10,906 10812 9,842 I0A4TE @714 8537
Ressarch and developmant
BpENER 13529 3703 11863 a2z 11,642 2483
D6hes sagment e 1Y (48] 2587 %3 {584} 1404 553
Segmont moome before tax 518,919 1740 22,858 18,248 4588 225 15847 4447 20054
Loss: Expansa nat alocated i
segments & Lt Lo 135
Worldwide tetal 516,687 15,062 18,3583
identifiable Assets

ED"II‘ n Millions) o . 023
Innavative Medicine £57.070 58304
MedTech H.}I_i' '."-II__‘F'_‘IIZI
Total 141,392 133,004
Ganeral cosparabe 38,712 34524
Worldwide total $180,104 167,588

2024 Annual Heport a7
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Addilions 1o Propedty, Depiscialian
Plant & Equipsmient Amorization
[Rollars in Millions) 024 2023 2022 024 o] 2022
Innovatee Medcne §1.710 1,653 1374 53,760 3T 3887
MedTech 2443 2312 2.120 3aar 2,943 2.302
Sagments total 4153 8098 1404 BosT 790 5 088
Discortinued operations — 162 303 = 383 &d1
Ganeral cofporabe Fral 356 212 342 313 340
Waorldwide total 4,424 4,543 4,009 $7.339 7486 6370
Hales to Cuntomen Long-Lived Asasty @
[Dollars in Milliers] 0 2023 e froor w2
United States $50.302 46,4584 41,681 ST0.GT0 54832
Eurape 20212 20,410 20,884 27 28T 3818
Weslen Hemisphere excluding US. 4,714 4,548 4,108 1,728 1481
Asa Pacitc Atica a5 s waw 1454 1,500
Sagments total B8.AZ1 BS, 150 79,990 101,119 BO.439
Ganeral comporate 12T 1082
Cithesr nen long-ned asseis 77 TR Te 8y
Waorldwide latal ) fEa. A 85,150 79,090 S180,104 167,558

Soe Nale 1 for a description of the segments in whidh the Company cperales.

Export sales are nol sigrificant. |n fscal year 2024, the Company ulilized three whotesalens distnibuting products Tor both segments that represented

approximately 20.5%, 15 6% and 12 3% of he total gross reveries. In fiacal year 2023, the Company had three wholssalers distrbuling prodacts for bath

SEgmens tat represantad approaimately 18.2%, 15.1% ane 14.2% of the b2l gross revenues. In fiscal year 2022, me Company had thies wholesalers

distributing progucts far all three segments ihal represented approxmately 18.9%. 15.0%, and 13 8% of Be total gross revenues,

M Oiher sogmest exponses for nach mportablo segmant inchude changes relaind 1o e mcomo and eipanses. mestnaciuting activibes and mpaimant chages relabed o in-
process ressarch and developmend

@ Amounts not aliocated fo segments include imterest (inooma Yoxoenss and goneral corporaie (income fexponse. The fecal yeam 2024 and 2023 incude charges for talc maers
of npprasiraialy 551 bl aed §7 bilian. Asspactvaly (Soa Neto 18, Lepal prossadings, Tor sadienal deisls]. Tha feesl yasr 2024 mcioses n las of apeensimatesy S0 4 Bllan
nelaled io e deltt o equily exchaegs of e C EL g shaes of K Common Siock. Thie fiscal year 2023 indudes the undoversbie changs in the (ar valuo of the
retznod stakn i Kanvus of approwimatedy 30 4 bilion

B Innovatve Medicing sepment incorrs balons L irckides

+  Reouird ing L pmant aupenss of §1.25 bdlon o socure the ghonal ighls o B NUZE bscscilic antibody (Yalow Jomsey scqusition)

+  Monsizaten of royalty nghts of 303 baion

+  Legation exponss of $3.3 bilion ¥ redabed to Rispendal G

= An inlangitd m:..'m..m W chamgs of app by 0.2 bl iatend wilh tha M710 (biosimiar] assol acqueed o panl of e acquisiten of Momaenta
Frammaceuticals ]

* A nostruching relatoed change of 5001 bilon

= Oretire COWVID. 18 Yaoone mamdacturing et relaied costs of $0.1 bilon

* Favorable changod in the fai value of securites of 30,1 bikon

MadTech tegment incomas Bofons bax inclades:

»  Aenuisition ard inlegration reisbed cost of 51,0 bilion primarily related bs e sequaSien of Ehatiomave

BB Jdohnsongdohnson
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= Acquind in- and pvoloprant of 50.5 bilen from the \Wave aogulsition
= gain ol $0 2 bilion solafed fo e Acclnen] dvestion
= A Madical Devios Regulation change of 502 billion
& restractuing relsted chargs of 50.2 billes
1 Innevadig Madicing segmant insema bafons b inchadion:
= Drectore COVID-18 Vaczine manulssiunng exl relaled conls of 307 bilen
* A restnachming relsted chags of $0.5 bilon
*  Unfgvorabis changes in w ke volue of socerfies of 304 bilion
+ Fovanbls Migation rolased iloms of 5001 Bilien
s Loss on divesiiune of $0.2 bilion

= Aninlangitde peset imparend chargo of approsmately $0.2 bilee rolated 1o markel dyramics assecaled wi a nor-sirstegc assel (M7 10) acqured a8 part of the
acquiston of Momonls Phamaceeticals in 2020

MedTech segment inoome before tan mchedes:

s Acquined Peprocesa research and devdopment axperass of 504 bilon reloted o the Lerrinar scquaiion in 2003
= & resiracharing relsted charge of $0.1 b#lon

o Meguisiten and inlegration rdaled couis of 507 balion arenanly relsted (o N soqusiion of Akomied

= A Medcal Dovics Regulation charge of 303 bilen

*  Ingar o [igabon satilenends of 501 bilon

Innovatie Madkane segrrant insomd balen (i Bhudey

o Dea-fma COVID-16 Vaczing masmdschuning nuf relnied cowin of 515 bilen

+ An intangitie nssot impairment charge of approcomatoly S0 8 bdlion related 10 an N-OCESS TOSHAN Snd Covoiopmant osset, bermmeimab (- TT4T4462) on irvestgabional
drug fer the insatment of Alcpis Dermatis (AD) and Hidradanits Scppurstva (HE) acquired with the scquisition o MBistech. Inc. in the facal year 2020, Additonal risrasten
regardng offcacy ol the AD and HE ndications becamao available which kod $he Company o the decision o teiminate fe cevolopment of barmelomab for AD and HE

+ Liigation sxpones of 501 bilicn
* Unfavernbis changes in S U vabe of s0currios of 307 bilion
* A redirschusing mlsed chags of 50.1 bilan
ModTech sogment intems bofore ba nchados:
»  Ligation exponse of $008 billen primarily for palvic mosh related cosle
= A rediraciunng felsted chags of 30.3 bilon
+ mcquisitson and infegrabon relabed cosis of 50,3 blion prenariy relsted bo the acqusnion ol Abiomed
+ A Madical Duvice Roegulation charge of 503 bilion
1 Gerwral corporate inciudes cash, cash eguvalont b and ot 1o ossots
11 Lorgnved assets includs property, plank sed ook for fiacal years 2004, and 2023 of $20 518 and 515 888, respoctvely and intanghls asssts and goodwil, ned for

fncal yoats 2004 avd 2003 oF 381,818 and 570,733, respecivuly

Eil
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18. Acquisitions and divestitures

Subsequent bo the iscal year snd 2024, the Company anmounted A has enlered inlo & definiive agresment 1o acquire inlra-Cellulas Therapies, Ine. (Masdag:
ITCI}, & biopharmaceutical company focused on the developmant and commercialization of Merapedtics for ceniral nervous sysiem (CNS) dsomders, for 5132.00
par share in cash for @ botad equity value of approximately §14.6 billion, The Company axpecin to fund he iransaciicn through a cembinalion of cash on hand and
debl The closing of the fransaction is expeciad io occur iater this year subject io applicable regulatary approwals, approwal by Intra-Cellular Tharapies”
stockhaolders and other customary closing conditicns: for a transaclion of this type, The resulls of operalions will be induded in the innovative Medicine segment
begnning on Fie acquisition date,

Business combinations

Asqustions of & busness are sccounted fof &5 business combsnaGons applying the acquisiton method of accounting. Under this mefnod, he Bsssts Boquired

and linbdiies assumed are recorded ot their respective tair values & of the scquisiton date in the Company’s conscidated financial stlements. The excess of
the purchase price aver fe fair value of fhe acquired nel assats, whene applicable, s reconded as goodwall. Tha results of of of thesa acgui w have
been incuded in the Company's fmancial stalements from their respective dates of scquesition

During the fiscal year 2024, certain businesses were acguired for $15.1 bilion, net of cash acquired, The fiscal yeor 2024 scquisitions prmarily included; Ambra
Biopharma, Inc . Shockwase Medical Ino, and Profeciogia. Inc. The mmaining aoquisitions were nol maserial

DnJurrliﬂ 2034, the Company compiesed the acquisiticn of Proleologin, Inc., a privabely hedd biatechnalogy company fecused on bispecific antbodies for

diated di for ely 08 bilion et of cash acquired, with potensal for an additional milast The its of operations ane
inchudes in the nndavaiie Hbdﬂm:agmmlﬂmﬂ'n spquislion date The tair value of the scquision was mmmmamm of 1.2 bilion, prienasily
nor-amaonizabie intangible assets, indusive of purchased IPRA&D, for 50,9 bilion, goodwil for 50.3 bilkon, and $0.3 bilion of Eabdiies assumed which inchndad
S01 bllion relabad 1 & conbingent considaralion. The prelimingry purthads phice Bllocalion is mmuwmmmlmmmum wiilhirh 1
maeasuwrement period, A probability of success facior mnging from 30% 1o 45% was used in the fair value calculation (o reflect i I+ y and el
risk of the IPRED. The dscount rate appbed was approxmately 16% . The goodwill & primary atirbutable 1o Syrergies expected 12 anse from the busingss
scquisition and is not expecied o be deduchbls for \nx purposes. Acguisition related costs bafare Eax for the fscal 2024 were not maternial

On May 31, 203, the Company comaleted fhe acquisilicn of Shockwave Madical Ine (SWAVShockwave), a leading, ireldo-market provider of innouathe
intravascular | thotripsy (WL ) technology lor the ireatment of calcified coronary aftery (CAD) and perp | mitery di {PaD} in an all.cash memger
trangaction. The Company acquired all the cutstanding shares of Shockwane's comman slock fer 333500 per share thaough a merger of Shockwave with &
subsidany af the Company. The reauls of operations were included in the MedTech segment as of Fe acquisition dats.

80 Jahnsongohngon

358/416



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

Dietails of the fair value amounts recograped for assels acquined and labiities assumed as of he purchase date and a1 lhe end of fiscal year 2024, which includes
measwement pericd adjustments. are induded in the table below. As the acquisstion occumed in May 2024, the Company s stll finalizing the allccation of the
purchase price o ibe individual assels acquived and liabdilies assumed. The allocaton of the purchase price included in the current period balance shest it based
an the best estimale of managemant and |s. prelminary and subjest to change

[Dollars in Billicas) Mary 31, 2024 December 29, 2024
Assels acquired:

Cath 511 $11
Goodwil 75 78
Armotzable nlsngbles 53 53
IPRAD 06 o8
irvarteny 05 o5
Cihes assets 8] L]
Tolal ss¢als acquired 5155 5155
Labilies assumad;

Deterre tanes 515 515
Motes payable® 10 10
Aecned kabilfiea* 04 04
Total liabities assumed 528 518
Net 55815 acquired 5126 5128
Met assels soquired as of May 31, 2024 $128

Less: Cash acquined 11

Equity awards seisied a8

Saltiement of Nole payabie® 10

Total enterprese valie as of June 30, 2024 5131

*  Represamts the comvertbio debl which was subsecuenthy paid in the fiscal sooond guarter of 2024,
= includos 3002 balice of aquity mvards

The goodwill it primarily atirbutable to synengies expected ta arise from the business scquisition and is nat expected to be deductible for lax puiposes.
Asgiussition related costs befafe ta for the fiscal 2024 wede 30.9 bilkah of which 3004 bllion was relaled bo e Fir valee of the Ifverdony Shep-up and was
recarded in Cosl of products sokl and 50.5 billan primarily related (o equlty swards and was recorded in Other (income| expense. The amorizable inbangible
aspals ware primarity comprised of aready in-market CAD and PAD VL products with the average welighted lives of 14 years. The IPRAD assets ware valusd for
technology programs for unapproved products. The value of the IPRAD was calculated using a probaniity-adjusied cash fiow projection discounted for the risk
inherent in swuch projects with the weighted average probabiity of success faciors of appromimately 50%. The discount rale applied was 5.0,

On March 7. 2024, the Company completed the acquisSion of Ambee Biopharma, Inz , (Ambmn), a dinical-stage blopharmaceutical company with a progristary
syrihelic biotogy technalogy platform 1o design and dewedop nesd-genesation antibedy drug confugates (ADCS), In an all-cash merger bransaction Tor a tatal equity
whue of approximabely 32 0 bilion, o §1.6 billion fel of cash acquired. The Cempany actuinsd all of the cutstanding shanes ol Ambacs comman stock fod 32800
per ahare tirough 8 menger of Arbo with & subsidiany of the Company. The resu®s of operations wens incheded in the Inncvative Medicine segmen & of the
acqusition dase. The tair value of the acquistion was alocated to assets acquired of 53,3 bilion, primarity non-amortizable mlangole assets, Inchesive of
purchased IPRAD, for $1.0 bilion, goodwil for 50 3 bdlion ard liabities assumad of $0.5 billion, which includes deformed tawes of 50.4 bilkon. The peeliminery
purchass price alocation is subfec o any subsequent valuation adjustments within the maasuement pencd. & probabiiy of success fador mnging from 40% o

2024 Annual Repan a1
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T0% was vsed in the falr value eabeulalion bo reflact inherent regulaiany and commeselal Ask of the IPRAD. The discounl rate appled was approddmately 17%. The
@oodwil |5 primarily atiibutable io synengles expecied o aise rom the Business acgquisiion and |s nal expected to be deductibie for 183 PURECSES. ACquUiston
relatad costs before ta for the fiscal year 2024 ware nal maserial

Dunrg the fiscal year 023, the Company &d not make &Ny acquissons That guakfied 55 8 DusNess combmation,

During the fiscal year 2022, cerain busireases ware acguined for 517.7 bilien, ret of cash acquired. The fiscal year 2022 scqussitons primarily included Abicmed,
Ine (Ablpmed) The remaining scquisibons were nol matartal

On Decamber 22, 2027, (he Company compheled thie acoguisition of Abiomed, a leading, frsl-lo-marksd provider of candiovascular medical lechnology with a Arst-
ir-kird padfoko for te ireatment of cofonory afery dasads and hear faiure which alss has an extensiee Innovation pipeline of HWe-saving lechnalogies. The
transaction broadens the Company's position as a growing cardiovascular innovator, advancing the slandard of care in hean failue and recovery, one of
heafthcane's kargest areas of unmatl need, The results of operations were included in the MedTech segment as of e dale of e acguisition. The acquisition was
compleled through a tender affer o+ all autslandirg shares. The carideration pasd in the acquisilion consisled of an uplroat payment of S380.00 per shara in
cash, amounbing o 517.1 billon, net of cash soquired, & well a4 & non-radeabls conlingant value nght ["CWR™) enliting the holder o recane up o $35.00 per
ahare in cash (which with respect to the CYRS ol appraxdmatety 51.6 bilion in the aggragate) if canain commenial and dinkcal milesones an adhieved The
comesponding enterprss valus {wilhout mking inte account the C\VR3) of spproximately $16.5 bilkon includes cash, cash equivalents and marketable sscuntes
Acqured

The milestones of the CVA consist of:

&, 51750 per share. payabie if nel sakes for Absomed products excesds 53.7 bilion during Jennson & Johneon's fecal second quarer of 2027 through Necal frst
quadtar of 2028, or if this threshold i nod met during this pencd and is subsaquently mel dunng any rlkng four quaner penod up 1o the end of Johnson &
Johrson's fiscal fist guartes of 2025, 3475 per share,

b. §7.50 per share payabie upen FOA premarket appication approval of the use of impeila® products in 5 T-slevated myocardsal mfarchon (STEMI) patients
without cardiogenic shock by January 1, 2028 and

. §10.00 per sham payabile upon the first publication of a Class | recommendation for the use of Impela®: preducts in high sk PCI or STEMI with or without
cardiogenic shock within four years from ther respective clinical sndpont publication dates, but in all cases no lster than Decambar 31, 2028

Duwring the fiscal fourth quarier of 2023, the Company finalized the purchase price aliocation. In fiscal 2023, there were purchase price allacadion adusiments
netEng to approximately $0.2 bilion with an ofiseting increase o goodwil. The fair vales of ihe scquisiSion was aliocaled to assets acquired of 3240, 1 billkan {net aff
H0.3 biflion cash acquired), primanty fo goodwil for $11.1 billon, amortizabie inangibie assels for $5.6 billion, IPRED for $1.1 billion, marketable securtees of
50 4 hiflion and liabiities attumed of 33.0 bilion, which indudes (e fair valus of (he confingent contideration mentionsd abowve for 30,7 hilion and deferred taxes
of $2.0 billion. The goodwill |s primariy attibutable io the commercial accelerafion and sxpansion of the portfola and &5 nol expecied o be deductibie for tax
purposes. The contngent consideration was recorded in Other Liabiltes and acuisied b fair valus through the fiscal year end 2024 on the Consciidated Salance
Shawet

The amorizatie Intangible assets were primadily comprised of aiready n-market praducts of Bhe impella® plationm with an average welghted iife of 14 years. The:
IPRAD assels wene valued for fechnology programs for Lnapproved products, The value of the IPRAD was calculaled usng probabdity-adjusted cash flow
projections discounted far the risk inberer in such projects. The probahilty of success factor ranged from 52% i T0%. The discount rale applied was 9.5%

In the fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded acquisition related costs belore tax of approximately $0.3 bilkon, $0 2 bition and 0.3 billon,
which was primarily recorded in Other (income expense

In sccordance with U5, GAAP standards related 1o busness combinabons, and goadwill and ofmer infangible assets, supplemental pro forma informatian for
fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022 i nol provided, as the impact of the aforementioned acquisifons did nol heve a maserial etfect on (he Company”s resulis of

operalions.
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Asset acquisitions
Aured In-process reseanch and developmeant (IPRAD) in an B5581 acqusiion |5 immedialely expensed &5 resaarch and davelapmen expensa in ihe

Company's conaclidated financinl stalemeants, Missione payments inourred prior o regulnfory approval are eapersed as ressarch and deselopment axpenss
wheen the missions event occurs.

The fscal year 2024 assel acquisilions sxpensed as ressarch and development inciuded Y-Wave Lid. and the giooal rights to the NA36 bispecific antbody
{Yellow Jemsey acquisition). The remaining activity was not malerial

On Qctober 8, 2024, the Company completed the acguistion of V-Wave Lid, a privately-heid company locused on developng innovatve treatment options for
pabents wilh heart faiure. for an upfront payment of 30,6 bilion, with the potential for additional regulatary and co il mrilestone payments up io
approvimately 511 bllion. The Company recorded an IPRLD chasge of sppraxmately $0.5 bilion, net of a gain recarded on the Company's existing imestnent in
W-Wiave and the reduits of operations are incuded in the MedTech sagment &5 of 1he acquisitson date.

O July 11, 2024, the Company completed the scquisiton of Yallow Jersey, & demesgad subsidiary of Numab Therapeutits AG, ta secine the glebal rights ta
MMZE, & novel, investigalional frst-in-class bispecdic antbody tirgeling two cincally proven palfways in alops dermatis (AD), in an all-cash Iransactan far
approwimately 51 25 bilan. The Company recordad an IPRED charge of approximately 51 25 balion. and the resuts of operabons are intudad in the Innavabve
Meditine sagment as of e acquisitan dale

The fiscal year 2023 asset acquisiions expensed as ressarch and development included Laminar ine. The remaining actvity was not material

Duing the fiscal year 2023, the Company complaled the acguistion of Laminar Inc., a privately-neld medical device company Tocused on elimnaling the lefl atrial
‘appardage (LAA} In patiants with non-valvular atrial fonllaticn (AFib). for an upfront paymant of S0.4 bilien, Tha Company recorded an IPRED charge of
approximately 50 4 bllion and the resuts of operations are induded in tha MadTech sagment as of tha acquisition dabe

There wire i significant sssel acquisiions in 2022,

Divestitures

Diuring the fiscal year 2024, the Company compiated the divestaure of Acciarsnl resulling in appresimately $0.3 bilian in procseds and the diveslie of Ponvedy
outsie of the U.S, resulting in approximately 30 2 bilion in proceseds, All ofher dvesbbures were not material,

Diuring the fiscal year X123, the Company executed divestitures resulting in approximabely 23 2 bilion in procesds resuling in gains or losses that were nat
manarial. Al fiscal year end 2023, ihe Company held gssels, primanty imangities, on iks Consoidated Balance Sheel of approximately 30.3 billion, primanly
releted o Acclarenl and Pofivory, [hal 'were subssquendy divested in facal 2024,

Diusting Niaeal paar 2072, the Company did nel make any matsisl diveastures

19. Legal proceedings

Johisan & Johfeon and cerian of s subsidiasies ane imvaived I vanous Envsuis and claime reganding produet liability, nlafectusl property, comimenzial;
indemnification and olher matlers; govemmental investigations, and ather legal pracesadings that arise fram lime to ime i the ordinary course of heif business.

The Company tecods accruals for inss conlingencies associated with Bess legal matiers when il is probable that & lishilty wil be incurred, and the amourd of
hi boss can be reasonably essmated. As of Decemirer 2B, 2024, the Company has deternined that te abiities associabed with certain itgation magers ans
probatle and can be reasenably estimaled. The Compary has sotrued for these maners end will conlinue 1o monibsr each relofod legal sawe and Ddust seeninis
as might be warranied based on new infarmation and further cevelopmenis in accordance with ASC 450-30-2%, For these and other litigation and regulatory
mafers discussed balcw for which a ioss is probable or reasonably pessicie, the Compary is unabile io estmale the possible loss or range of loss beyend e
amounls ascrnued. Amounts accreed for legal contingencies aften result from a complex senes of judgments sbout fubure events mnd uncertainties tat rely heaviy
of eslimates and assumplions including timing of relaled payments. The ability 1o make such ssbmates and judgments can be afected by vanous Teclors
inciuding, amang other things, whether damages sought in the procsedings 8re unsubstanisted of ndelermnale; scienite and legal discovery has not
commenced of 3 not complele; proctedings are in early $iages; matters present legal uncertanlies: there are significant facts in gispute; procecural or
Jurisdichonad lmsues: the uncastainty and unpredictablity of the mumbser of
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potential claims; abilty 1o acheeve comprebensive mulb-party setliaments; compiexity of relaled cross-claims and oounlesciaims; andior there are numenous
parties irvolved, To the exient adverse swards, judgments or verdicts have bean rendered agains! e Company, the Company does not record an accrual unil a
loms is determined to be probable and can be reasonably estmated.

In tha Company’s opinion, based on its examination of these matters, is expedence io dale and discussions with counsal, fe ultimate culcoms of legal
procesdings, net of Sabiities accrued in the Company's balance sheel, is net expected 1o have & matenal adverse effes on Me Company's inancial poaticn
Herwerver, ihve resolubicn of, of increass in aceruals for, ane of mede of these matlers in any reporing penod may have a material adverse afect on the Company's
results of cperations and cash fows Tor thal panod.

Matters conceming talc

A significant aumber of personal injury claims alleging that talc causes cancer have been asdeited agairt he Company and s aMiiabes aising sul of he use of
body pawders confaining kale, primariy JOHNZON'S Baby Poader.

In Ealc cases that hawve gore to frial, the Company has obtained a number of defense verdicts, bt there alss have been vendicts against the Company, many of
wiich have bean reversed on appeal Indure 2020, the Missowi Coun of Appeals reversed in par and aflirmed in part a July 2013 verded of 54 7 Dillon n
Inggham . Jehnsan & Johrson, &1 al Na ED 207476 (Ma. App. |, reduting the avarall award 16 52.1 bilion. An aoplicatian for bansfer of the case (o he Misscun
Supreme Coun was subssquently denied, and in June 2021, a pabitien for corlicran, saeking & review of e Ingham dedssion by the Unded Stales Suprame
Courl, was denied. In June 2021, the Company paid the award, which, including inferest, iotaled approximately 52.5 bilion, The facts and drcumsiances,
inciuding the tenms of the award, wene unique to e Ingham decisicn and nol representative of ofher dlaims orought agains! the Company. The Company
contnues io beleve thal it has strong legal grounds fo contest the other talc verdicts that it has appealed. Mokeid dng the Company's confi i the
safely of fs take products, in certain circumatances e Company has seitied cases.

In June 2014, the Mississipp Altorney General filed & complaint agains! the Campany alleging wolaban of the Matisaippi Consumer Pralection Act by 1ailing 1o
dsciose aleged haalth risks aseocialed with female consumers’ use of 18ic contained in JOHMNSON 3 Baby Powder and JOHNSON S Shawer 1o Showed (a
produet drasbed in 2012) The Company has reached an sgresment 1 retalve Fis matter

In January 2020, the State of New Mesics fled a consumer protecticn case adaging Ihat the Campany decepiively marketed and sold [t talcum powdar procucts
by making misrepresantalions aboul e safely of the products and e presence of carcinegens, incluing asbesios. The Company has reached an agreement 1o
resolve this matter

Festy-bwees states and the Distriel of Columbia cammanesd & jin investigatan nla the Company s markebing of its [aeum powdes praducts. In January 2024, the
Company reachad an agreement in principie with 1ha multi-slate group of state Aticmeys. General, subject to cngoing negodiation of non-monetary teems. 0 June
2024, the setiiemenrts were finalized

In Octobar 2021, Johrson & fohrson Consumer Ine. (Did LICT) implemantad a coporate estructuing (the 2021 Comporate Restruchuaing). As a resul of that
resinachuring, Oid JJCI ceased to exist and three new entibies were created: (a) LTL Management LLC, a North Caroling Bmitad labiity company (LTL or Dellor);
(b} Royaity A&M LLG, a North Cariina limited Sabilty company and & direct subsidiary of LTL (RusM ), and {cj the Debtor's direct pasent, Johnson & Johnson
Consumer In., o Mew Jorsey company (Mew JICI). The Debtor received catain of Oid JCTs assets and became solely respandible fof the lake-related labilites
of D6 JLICI, Including o liabikses related in any way to injury or damage, o alieged injury or damage_ suskained of incurred in Bhe purchass of use of, or
BXpoEure §o. talc. inchiding falc contaned imany produst, or W the sk of, or responsibdity sor. any 5uch damage or njury. except for any labiites for which e
anchusive remedy is provided under & workers' compensation slatute or act {the Talc-Relaled Liabdities).

In Dctobar 2021, mobwithelanding the Comaary’s conlidence in the galely of il tale produsts, the Debler filed a voluriany pattion with the Unied Stales
Banknuptcy Court for the Western District of Morih Carclina, Charote Division, sesking refded under Cnhapler 11 of the Banknuptcy Code (Ihe LTL Sanknuptcy
Case), All itigaton against LTL, Old JJCI, New JICI, the Company, cther of their corparate affiisles, identified retailers, insurance companies, and cevtain olber
parties {the Protected Parties] was stayed. The LTL Bankrupicy Cose was transferred o the Uniled States Bankrupicy Court far the District of Mew Jemsay.
Claimanis filed mobons to dismiss Be LTL Bankrupicy Case and, lollewirg a mulliple day hearing, the New Jemsey Bankrupley Cour denied those mobans in
March 2022

The claimanis subssquently filed notices of appeal a3 to the denial of the motions 1o diamiss the LTL Banktupbey Case ard the extension of the say lo the
Protected Pames. On January 30, 2023. the Third Gireull revarsed the Bankruptey Court's ruling and remanced o the Bankruptey Court 10 dimies the LTL
barkniphcy.
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inApeil 2023, the Mew Jersey Bankrupicy Courl demissed the LTL Bankrupbey Case, efectively ifting the stay as 1o all paries anc relumng the teic iSgation ia
the tart syatam. LTL re-fed in the United States Barkiupbey Caud for thi Distict of Mew Jersey sseking reliel undér Chaples 11 of the Bankiupley Code (the LTL
2 Bankruplcy Caso), As @ rosult of tha mow filing, all kalc claims against LTL wore again avlomatically stoyed pursuant to section 362 of the Bankoupicy Cogo
Addeonaly, the New Jersey Bankrupicy Courl ssusd a temporary restraning ceder staying all iagason as to LTL. Olg JICI, Mew JJGCI the Company, icentfied
ratailers, and cortain cther parties (the Now Prolected Partios)

Ais0 i April 2023, the New Jersey Bankrupbey Court issued 8 dedsion that gramed imied imjunctive relie! 1o e Company and e New Frotected Parties [The
LTL 3 Prehiminary Injunction]. The LTL 2 Preliminary injunciion remained in force untd Late August 2023, folowing the Banknupicy Court's extension of the iritial
LTL 2 Prefaminary Injurction in June 3023, Under the LTL 2 Preliminary Injunciion, except for those cases filed in (he federal counl ovarian cancer multi-distict
litigation, ciscovery in all persaral injury and wronghsl death matters was pammitied o proosed.

Furthesmaore, in Apil 2023, the Tale Claimants' Commities fed a motion jo dismiss the LTL 2 Bankruptcy folowed by simiar malions from ofher claimants,
Hearrigs o the mobions o dismiss occurred in June 2023, 14 July 2023, the courl dismissed the LTL 2 Bankrupley caae and, lhe same day, the Company slated
its irlent bo sppeal the decison and o contirue #s eflarts to oblain a resciution of the talc clainms. bn Seplember 2023, the Bannapley Court entered an cdder
granong LTL ieave o seek & direct appeal o the Third Circult Court of Appeals. In Ociober 2023, the Third Circud granted LTL's petiion for @ direcl appaal. In Juty
2024, the Third Circuil issued 8 non-precedential opinion affirming the Bankruptoy Cour's decision o damiss the LTL Bankrupboy case.

In Octobar 3023, the Company stated that it was pursuing tha following four paraliel and aernative patmways io achieve a comprehansive and fimal resobrtion of
e talc clams: (1) e sppeal of the LTL 2 dismissal dectsson (i) pursuing a consensual *prepackaged” bankiupicy case, as “sirongly encouraged” by the
Bankoruptcy Court in its damissal decision; (1§} aggressively Idigating the talk claims in the lort sysiem; and (iv) pursuing affimative claims against experts for false
and delanataey maratives regarding the Company's tale pawdar products |n Decamber 2073, LTL shamged s elate of farmation |o Texas and it name o LLT
Managemerl LLE {"LLT™).

Foliramng the dismussal of LTL 2. nerw lawsuits were fled, cases acrass the country thai had been siayed were reactivabed, and Fials have commenced. The
majatity of the cases are pencing in federal cour, ongareed in a mulb-district itgation (MOL) in the Unied States Distric! Couit for the District of Mew Jersey, in
the MOL, case-specic discovery proceeded. The MOL proceedngs have been stayed by coder of the bankiupbcy cowt in the Red River Bankiupicy case
discusned belovw, |n Mareh 2024, the court granted the Company's mokan 16e & renewad DEubadt heanng pror 1o e wial The brefing on the renswed Dauban
issuas was completed in Augus] 2024,

In May 204, the Company commenced a three-month solicitation pericd of is proposed consensual “prepackaged” Chapler 11 bankruptcy plan (e “Proposed
Pian”) for e compeehensive and final resclution of all cument and fulure claims relabed to cosmetic talg in the United States, excluding claims redated bo
mesalhelioma of Stale corsumer prolecton claims, in exchange far the payment By the Company of present value of approamately $8.475 billian payabie over
28 years {nominal value of approximatety $8.0 bilion, discounted at a rate of 4. 4%). The claima encompassed by the Proposed Plan constiute 28 T5% of
perding lvwilits against the Company relating to its ic powoer produsts.

I Augus 2024, LLT engaged in & restruciuning thal resufied in e creation of thiee new Texas liraed babilty compansss. (a) Red Rives Tai, LLC ("Red River);
(b} Pecos River Tals LLC ("Pecos River' and {3} New Holdeo (Taxas) LLC. As a result of his restruciuring, all claime related to ovarian and ofher gynecological
cancers wers separated and allocaled to Red River, and mesalhatioma, govarnmantal unit and cerdain ather claims were allocaied tn Pecos River

In Saplamber 2024, while relarabng e Campany's conlinued confdencs in the safsly of its tale praducts, Red River Bed & voluntary petibon with Be Uaited
States Bankngiey Court for (he Southem District of Texas, seaking reliaf under Chapter 11 of the Bankrupley Cede (fhe Red River Bankrupley Cass), in
furtherarce of the Company's corsensaal “prepackaged” Proposed Plan Red River also fied a mobion for 8 lemporary resiraining order, seeking o sxiend the
automatic stay to adcitonal non-debbor enlities. Prior io filing, the initial proposed plan was amended lo. among other things, increase the proposed resolution by
£1.75 bilien
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Shorly after Ried Rover fied its Chapler 11 petition, the ULE. Trestee's office fled a motion bo transfer venue in the Mew lersey Bankrupicy Courl, and thereafier, o
moson 1o Fanider verue and & modian 1o dismiss in the Texas Barkiptey Cowt A coalition of aix plainlill s firmd alss Med a motion to Fanstsr venue and &
mofon to dismiss in he Texas Bankrupbey Court. In Seplember 2024, the Texas Bankruplcy Courl enlered a termparany ardes enjoning the commencement of
prosecution of all claims agains! Red River and cariain non-deblor anlities, including the Company, untl Oclober 11 2024 The temporary order was axtended in
Ociober 2024 and again in December 2024, The commancement and prosecution of a8 claims againsi Red River and certamn non-debior entties are curnanty
enjoined until March 15, 2025, Also in Seplember 2034, e New Jersey Banknsptcy Courl denéed the LS. Trustes's metion o transfer vanue without peejudice. In
Octaber 2024, the Texas Bankrupley Counl denied the molion 1o transfer venue from Texas 1o Mew Jersey Bankrupioy Court. A consolidaled hearing lo address,
amang other things, e mations to dsmiss and plan confirmation is curmently schedubsd 1o begin an Febsuary 18, 2025,

Mesolhelioma and 5tale consumer protection claims are besng addressed oulside the Proposed Plan. The Company ssparalely has resolved 55% of the
masathaboma lawsuits filed o dabe and has resolved the State daims

To accounl far tvese salfements and the conlempialed comprahenase resolulien thiough e Propasad Plan, (he Compary recodded & cumulatve nerementsl
charge of appeomimately 5.0 billian, hiough the fourth Gscal guarier 2024, As of Decamber 29, 2024, (he Lolal gresent value of the reserve is applaximalely
511.6 billsan (o nominal value of appraximately 513.5 billon], net of payments made in fiscal 2024, Approximately en percent of the reserve is recorded a8 &
cumant liabilty. The recorded amount remaing the Compamy's best astmate of probable loss

In Febinuary 2010, tha Coepany's tale supphies, Imenss Tale Amarica, Ine. and bt of its a%iates Imerys Tale Vesmenl Ine. amd Imarys Tale Camada, ine
(colectvaly. Imerys) %ed o voluntary petiion for relef under Chapter 11 of the United States Code (the Banknuptey Cago) in the Uniod Siates Bankrupicy Court
for the District of Dalaware (imerys Bankrupicy). The Imerys Banbkrupboy relales ta Imerys's patential labilty for parsenal inury from sxposure to taloum powder
said by Imerys. in its bankrupicy, imerys alleges  has claims aganet the Company for ndemnification and fghts 1o joint nsurance proceeds. in its bankruptey,
Imesys proposed & Chaples 11 plan (the Imarys Plan] that contemplated all tal-related claims agairsi il being channeled to a ruad aleng with ita alaged
indemnification rights against the Company. Follawing cond 0 and consws i af the plan, She trust would pay laic claims pursisant bo proposed tust
dsinbution procadures (e TDF) and then seek indemnification from the Company.

In February 2021, Cyprus Mines Corporalion (Cyprus), which had owned carlain Imerys Bk mines. Tied a voluntary petition for reliel under Chapter 11 of the
Banknuptey Cote and Med fs Dadesurs Statement and Plan (Ihe Cypeus Plan). The Cyprus Plan comtermpiates & satiemant with Imerys and tak elaimants
where Cyprus would make a monslasy contribution 10 a trust established under the imanys Flan in exchange for an injunction against talc claims assered against
itand certain afliliated parties. Cyprus alsc assedts i has claims for indemnity against the Company arising cut of talg personal injury claims. Under the Cyprus
Pian, Cyonus weuld alss cortribute its aleged indemnrification rights to the bust

In Seplamber 2023, Imarys and Cyprus ded amanded plans of reprganization. The amended plans corempiale a simiar construct as the pror imerys and
Cyprus Plans, indluging il taic claims against imesys and Cyprus (and cedtain oiher profecied parties) being channeled fo a us! slong with imerys’s and
Cyprus's aleged indemailicatan righls sgsinsl e Company. The Company opposed both pland on the Basis that the plans infioled Imerys's and Cypeua’s labiity
for {ale caims and had the polental sfed of imposing those irllated iabiites on fe Company Frough the Company's aleged indemnification chlgations

In July 2024, the Company, imarys, and Cyprus and certain of their sfiiates (inciuding their panent entiies], and the tarl claimants’ commitiees and fubure
elairmants’ represerdntives appainted in their respedlive Chapler 11 sasss enlered ivto a glabal sefllemeant agreement (the Imarys Sellement Agresment) b
resolve their ongoing dsputes, inchuding dsputes raksed in the Imerys and Cyprus bankrupicies. In August 2024, Imerys and Cyprus flled amenced Chapler 11
Plans and disclosure statements incorporating the berms of te setfemant with the Company, In October 2024, the imenys Banknupicy Court enersd an ongder
approving the imerys Setement Agreement (the Setiement Order). The effectivensss of certain provisions of the sefflement, incuding mutual releases, are
subject bo certain conditians, including the Imerys and Cyprus Plars being accepled by & sufcient numbar and amaount of wating creditars 1o be confitmed under
the Bankrupity Code. Certain nsurers have appealed e Seflement Ovder and saught a siay of Tie order pending appeal, which the Court dened on January
13, 2025. The briefing of the appeal in the Dsdict Court is scheduled bo ba complated in Apeil 2025, On Janwary 5 2025, Imerys and Cyprus each ed a
cerfication of voting resulls. incicating that Sew respective plan had been accepled by each voling class of creditoes, A joint confirmation hearing for the plans is
schaduled for Apnl 2025
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In Febnuary 2018, a securities ciass achon wsuil was fiked agains the Compary and certain named oficers in the United Stales Datict Court for tha District of
Mesw Jersey, alleging thal the Company violaled e faderal sacurilies kaws by Blling 15 distloas llaged sbestas contamination in Body powders cenlaning lak
pirnarity JOMNSON'S Baby Powder, and that purchasers of the Company's shanes sufieced lossss as 8 result In Aprl 2019, the Company moved 1o dismiss the
caomplairk. In Decamber 2019, the Court denied, in part, the moton to dismiss. The cass was stayed In May 2022 pursuant io the LTL Bankruptey Casa and was
reapaned in May 2023 In December 2023, the Court granted PlaindiTs mobion for class carifcalion. in January 2024, Defendants fied a pebticn with ke Thirg
Circuil uncer Federal Ruse of Ciwl Procedure 281 far permission o appeal the Courl's odder granting class cerlificaton, ard in Febiuary 2024, the Third Cincuil
granted Defendants” pettion, In Febuary 3024, fact digoovery closed, the Court ordesed the parsies to mediate, and sioyed the case ponding mediation. In May
2034, the paties particpated in an unsuccessful modiation, in June 3024, at the parties’ request, the Courd ifled the stay for cortam limited discowery, but
olherase kapl the slay in place pending a decision from the Third Circuit on the 23(T) petition. Briefing on the 2T} petition was compieled in Seplember 2024. In
January 2025, the Third Circud listed the appeal for oral argument in March 2025

Matters conceming opioids

Beginning in 2014 and continuing to the present, the Company and Janssen Phamaceouicals, Inc. (JP1). along with other phamaceutical companies, have been
named in close to 3,500 awsuils refated ta the matketing of opioids, including DURAGESIC, NUCYMTA and MUCYNTA ER. Similar lrwsuils have also been filed
by private plaintiffs and organizations, including but nat limited to the folowing: individual plaintifs on behall of childeen born with Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome
{HAS), hoapilals; and health insureraipayoms.

To date, the Company and JP1 hase lfigated two of the cases to judgmart and have prevaded in both. either a1 trial or onappeal

In Julty 2021, Ihe Compary annaunced finakzalion of an agreement 1o ette the stale and subdivision caims for uo to 5.0 bllion. Approamately TO% of the ai-in
setiemant was paid by the end of fiscal fourth quarier 2024, A few government enlities opled cut of the settiement. in Seplember 2024, the Company reached an
agreement o resoive the hospdal cases,

The Company and J#| continue 1o defend the cases trought by the remaining govermment antity |figants as well as the cases brought by privale iganis. in tolal,
these are approximately 35 remaining opiod cases against the Company and JPI in varicus state courts, 380 remaining cases in the Ohio mull-district Higation
{MDL), and 4 add@onal cases in other federal courts

In addaon, the Province of Brbish Columbia filed suf against ihe Company and its Canadian affilate Janssen Inc., and many other indusiry members, in Canada.
That action was cerified as an opt in class action on behall of other provincialtermtorial and the federal governments in Canada in January 2025 Addiional
proposed class actions have been filed in Canada against the Company and Janssen inc.. and many cther ndustry members, by and on behall of pecple who
used opinids. {for pemaonal injuries), municipalities and Firsl Mabons bands. The propesed cdags action in Quabec on behal! of esidents dagnosed with opioid uss
disonder wias aulharized fo procesd against Janssen inc, and other industry members in Apri 2024; and leave lo appeal was denled in Oclober 2034,

Siarting in Novernber 2015, » saries of shareholder dervative complairis wnrlﬂidml.nlth Cnrnpln:; a6 the nominal defendant and cerain cuman and
formaer directors and officers as defendants in the Superior Courl of New Jersey. The complaint hes of fiduciary duties relabed to e markeling of

opioids, and thal he Company has suffered damages as a resull of 1hose alleged breaches, nurs-mww 2024, all the complains had been cismissed, and
&l sppeals axhausied,

Product liability

The Company and cerain of its subsidiasies ane invalved in numerncus product liabikty ciaims and [awsuils invehing mutiole praducts. Claimants in hese cases
segk substaniial comparsatary and, where avaiable, punitive damages. While the Company balisves il has substantial defenses, it s not feasdie fo predict the
ukimate guicome of litigation, From Bme fo time, even if it hos substantial defenses, the Company considers isolated seftiements based on a vanety of
circumstances. The Company has accrued for these matters and will continue to monitor sach related legal imsue and adjust accruals as might be wamanbed
based on new informabon and harther developmants in accordance with ASC 450-20-25, Contngencies. The Company accrues an esimaie of the kegal defense
cosis needed to oefend each matier when 1hase costs are probable and can be reasonably estimated, For certain of these matters, the Company has sccrued
additonal amounts such as estimated cosks assocated with seffemants, damoges and cther losses. Produd babiity acoruals con represent projected product
liaksiity for thoutande of claims around the world, sach in difesanl iligation envirormants and will diffisnent T patbers. Changes (o (e sotruils may be
requined in the fulure as sdoisonal informaton becomes avidabie
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The table below contsins e most significart of hese cases and provides te approximale number of plaintfs in the United States with direct claims in pencing
Iwiiits regarding injuries alagedty dus 1o the nslevant preducl of product eategary as of December 20, 2024;

Prodact of presdisct categey Hurmbed of plentifa
Bady powders containing tais, primarly JOHNSON 'S Baby Powder 62,830
DePuy ASR XL Acelabular System and DePuy ASR Hip Resurtacing System B0
FINNACLE Acststutar Cup System #10
Palvic meshes 5,950
ETHICOM PHYSIOMESH Flexible Composite Mash 130
RISFERDAL T
ELMIRON 2170

The rumiber of pending lawsuis is expected to Nuciuale as certain @wiuils ane sefied oo dismissed and acdiional lewsuis ane filed. There may be additional
claims that have not yet been filed.

MedTech

DePuy ASA XL Acetabular System and ASR Hip Resurtacing System

in Augiest 2010, DePuy Orhopsedics, Ine. (DePuy) announced a wordwide veluntary recall of ils ASR XL Acelabular System and DePuy ASR Hip Reswitacing
System (ASR Hip) used i hip replacemen! surgary. Claims far parsanal injury have been made agains) DePuy and the Company. Cases fied in federal couns in
1he Unifled Stabes have been organized &3 a muli-cdatrict Sigation in the United States Districl Coun for the Nerthern Distncl of Ohia. Liligatian hes also been filed
in couniries outside of the United States, primanly in the Uniled Kingdom, keland, india and Haly, In Ngvember 2013, DaPuy reached an agreemant with a Courl-
appanied commisies of lawyers mpresenting ASH Hip plaintils (o establsh a program 1o setie claims with ebgible ASR Hip patents n the Uneed Stales. This
setliement program has resolved more than 10,000 ciams. thereby bringing to resciution significant ASR Hip itigation sctivity in the Uiniled States. However,
lavesuils in the Uiniled Stakes rermain, and the seltiement program does not address | Higation culside of the United Stales. The Company confinues to receins
informalicn with respect o polental additional costs asspciated with his recall on a wodldwide basis. The Company has eatabiished sccrusts fof the cosls
associnied with the United S2abes setliement program and ASR Hip-related product Babiity litigation

DePuy FINNACLE Acetabular Cup System

Clair for perscnal mjury have also besn made against DePuy Orhcpasdics, Inc. and the Company (collectvaly, DePuy) retating to the PINNACLE Acatabular
Cup Sysiem used in hip replacement surgery. Product labiity lessulls continue o be fied, and the Company condinues to receive information with resped o
potential costs and the anticipated number of cases. Most cases fled in federal courts in the United Stales have been onganized as a muti-disirict litigation in the
Uirstesdd Shates District Court for the Morharn Datrict of Texas (Texss MDL). Beagnning cn June 1, 2022, ihe Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Liligation ceassd
transfer of new Chsed nlo Ihe Texas MOL, and thede are now cases pencng in fedensl coun culside the Texas MOL. Liigabion a0 has been fled in s1abe cours
and in courlries oulsice of the Urdled States. During thve Brst quanier of 2019, DePuy established a United Slades selfiament program 1o resolve hise cases. As
part of the seffemant program, sdverse verdicts have been seliled. The Company has ssiablshed an sccnusl for product Eabilly Rigstion assocabed wilth the
PINNACLE Acetabutar Cup Sysbem and e related selilement program

Eihicon Pelvic Mesh

Cloima for personal injury have been made against Eshicon, ing, {(ETicen) and the Company ansing out of Elhicon’s pefvic mesh devices used 10 treal stress:
unrnary inconbrience and pehec argan pralapse. The Company contirues o recehe mfcrmabion with respect o pofential costs and addiional cases. Cases fled n
federal courts in the Linited Stales had been organied as a multi-district isgation (ML) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of West
Wirgirea. n March 2021, the MDL Courl enbered am order clasing 1he MDL. The MOL Courl has remanded cases for trial 1o the jurisdictions where the case was
afiginally Med and additional pelvie medh lpweuds have baan flsd, ard remain, sulgice of he MOL The Campany Ras selfed of aiharwios redahed the majedity
ol ha Uniled States cases and the estimaled cosis assoclated wilh these sedllemeants and the remaning cases are reflechad in the Company’s accruals, In
addition, class actions and individual perscnal injury cases o claims seeking camages for alleged injury resulting from Efhicon's pehic mesh devices have been
commaenced in
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wanous couniries cutside of the United Stales, induding claims and cases n the Unied Kirgdam, the Nethedands, and Irelanc. and dass actions in lsrael,
Ausiraia, Canada and South Africa. The vasl majority of these aclions are now resclved. The Company has established accuals with respect to producdt liabslity
Iitigation associated with Ethicon's petidc mesh products.

Ethicon Physiomesh

Foliowing a June 2016 workdwide market withdrawal of Ethicon Physicmesh Flexible Composiie Mesh (Physiomesh ), claims for perscnad injury have bean made
agains| Ethicon, Inc. [Ethicon} and the Company alleging pevsanal injury artsing oul of the use of Bis hernia mesh device, Cases fled in jederal courts in the
Ursbed States have been argaaized as a mulli-giatric igatien (MDL) in the United Slates District Court for the Modtharn Districl of Geasgia. A mull-counly
tigation (ML} alsa has besn farmed in New Jercey sfabe court and assigned io Atlantic County for cases pending in Mew Jemsey In addian 1o the matters in the
MOL anc MCL, thete ane addiianal |Bwilsts pendng in the Urited Stales Distnet Court for the Southem Distncd of Ohoo, which are part of the MDL for
polyprogylens mesh devices manufactured by © R Bard, inc.. and wswils pending in tao Nikw Jersey MCLs formed for Procesd Procesd Ventad Patch and
Prolene Hemia systems. and lawsaits pending culside the Unied Stales, in Moy 2021, Ethécon ard lead counsed for the plaintifls entered info a term sheet to
resotve approximately 3,800 Physsomesh cases (covering approximately 4, 300 plaintiffs) pending in the MOL and MCL al that Gme. A masier settiement
agresmant (MSA) was enbered inlo in Seplember 2021 and includes 3,720 cases in the MOL and MCL. Other than a small number of cases 1l pending in the
MOL_ all Physomeash malbers i the Uniled States have bean msalved of are undergaing formal review for purpases af selfemeant

Claims have alss bean fied againal Elhicon and the Company afleging personal injuies arsng from the PROCEED Mesh and PROCEED Vential Patch hernia
medh products, in March 2018, the New Jersey Suprems Courl entered an order consolidating these cases pending i New Jersey Bs an MCL in Afanbe County
Supernior Cowt AdoRional cases have besan e in vanous feceral and slate courts in the United States, and in jurtsdictions culside the Unded Stales.

Ethicon and 1he Comparty alse have been subject to claims for personal inures arising kom Be PROLENE Palyprepylers Hemia System. in January 2020, fe
Mesw Jarsay Suprems Court creatad an MCL in ARante Counly Supanar Court 1o handle such cases. Cases Imsalving this praduct have a'so been filad in athar
federal and state courls in the Linted States

In Octobar 2022, mn agreement in principle, subjoct to various conditions, wos reachad io S0t tha magority of the ponding cases inveding Proceed, Procood
‘Veniral Patch, Prolere Hemia Systemn and relates muB-layered mesh products, as well as a number of unfiled daims. All litigabon activilies in the fvo Now
Jersey MCLS ane stayed pending effectuaton of the proposed setiement. Fulune cases that ane filed in the MNew Jarsey MCLs wil be subject 1o docket conlrol
oiders requiring early expert reparis and discovery requirements.

The Company has established accreals with respect o product kabdity Iibgabon associabed with Ethican Physiomesh Flaxible Composite Mesh, PROCEED Mesh
and PROCEED Veniral Paich, and PROLENE Polypropyiens Hesmsa System products,

Innavative Medicine

RISPERDAL

Claims for personal mjury have been made agains! Janssen Phamaceutcals, ino. and the Company ansing out of tha usoe of RISPERDAL, and retated
compaunds, indicated for the theabment of achirophrenia, scule manks of Mied spiades stiacialad with bipotar | dasider and krlablity asancaled wilh aubsm
Lawsuits primarly have bean fled in state counts in Pennsylvania, Calforn@a, and Misscun. Other actions are pending in varicus couns in the Linited S1ates and
Canada. The Company conlires 1o defend RESPERDAL produect lability lawsuits, and corinuas & evaluales palential costs relaled 1o thoss claims. The
Company has successfuly dofonded a number of thesas cases but there have baan vordicts against the Company, including & verdict in Octobar 2018 of

£8.0 taflion of punitive damages relabed 1o ane plaintiff, which the irial judge reduced ta 5.8 million in January 2030, in September 2021, the Company entered
inte & setlement in principie with e counsel fepresenting plainifts in this maber and n substantaly all of the cutstanding cases in the Uinited States, The cosls
associaied wilh this and other setilarments are refieched in the Company's soonials.

ELMIRON

Claims for personal mjury have baen mads agained a number of Johneon & Johnson companies, including 1 Prarmaceuticals, Ino. and the Company,
aiising oul of the use of ELMIRON, a prescriplion medicalion indicated far [he reliel of bladder pain or ciscomfor associabed with intersiilial cysiitis. Thess
lawauits, which allege thal ELMIRON contribuies o the developmeant of permanent refinal injury and vision loss, have been fled in both slate and federal couns
atross (ke Unded Stales. In December 2020, Wwiuils Bled in fedaral courts in ke Unded States, including pulatie class acton cases saeking medical
manitoring, ware organized as & muft-district Migabicn in the Lindted States Disinct Court for the Distict of Hew
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Jersey (MOL). In acdilion, cases have been filed in vanous state courls of New Jersey, which have been cooerdinated n a mulli-county [iigation in Bergen County,
a6 well &% the Counl of Common Plead in Philsdelphia, which have been codndinalad shd granisd madd 100 deaphation. In addition, thies class BeUoR IBwalts
have been filed in Canada, The Company continues ko delend ELMIRON product liabiity lawsuits and conlinues fo svaluats palential costs rslated ta those
clams, All LS, based ELMIRDN matbers have been resalved or are undergoing formal review for purpeses of settiement The Company has eslablahed arcruals
for defense ard indemnity costs associated with ELMIRON milaled product linbiity Eigation

Intellectual property

Cestain subsicianes of 1he Company are subject, from time 1o ime, o agal proceedings and claims related to palent, trademark and ather inbellectual propeary
mafiars afgng out of ther busireseas. Many of ihese matienm irvolve challengas to the scaps and'ar validity of patants that relabe b various products and
alegations that certain of the Company's products. infringe the intellectual property rghts of thind partes. Although these subsidanes believe thal hey have
substantal defenses to these challenges and allegations with respect to al signflican! patents, there can be no assurance as to the outcome of these maters, &
losa in any of these cases could adversely affect the abilfty of thess subsidiaries to sell their products, result in loss of sales dus 1o loss of market exchushaty,
require the paymant of pasi damages and future royalties, and may result in @ non-cash impaiment charge for any associated intangible assal.

Innovative Medicine - litigation against filers of abbreviated new drug applications (ANDAs)

The Company's subsidianes have brought lawsuts agains! genenc companies thatl have filed ANDAS with the LS, FDA (o similar lawsuils outsde of the United
Slabes) saeking 1o generic wersions of products sold by vanous subsidianes of the Company prior o expiration of the applicable patents covering those
products. These lawsuls typically incude allsgations of non-infingement and'or invalidity of patents listed in FDA's publication “Approved Drug Products wilh
Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluationa” (commanly known s ihe Crange Book]. in each of these lawsuils, the Company's subsidsanes are sesking an order
enjoining the defendan from marketing 8 gerere varsion of & product befors he expiration of Ihe relevant patents (Orange Bock Listed Fatents). In the ewent tha
Company’s subshianes s not successhl in an action, o ary Bulcematic stalubory stay expires before the court rulings ane cbilaned, e generc companes
imalved would have the ability, upon regulalory approval, o inroduce genenc versions of thelr products (o the markel, resulling in the polential for subslantial
masked share and revenus losses for the opplicable products, and which may resull in a non-cash impairment chasge in any associated irangible asset. in
addton, from time fo me, the Company's subsidanes may seitle thess types of actiors and such settiements can nvolve the iMmnoduction of generic versions of
the products at ssue o the market preor 1o the expiation of the reevant pabents

Thee bnber Parbes Review {IPR} process with the Uniled Stabes Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO), created under the 3011 America Invents Acl, = also being
ubed % limes by genedic Companies in conjuntion aith ANDAS and lawsuits o chalenge the apphcable palents.

XARELTO

Beginning in March 2021, Janssen Phamaceuticals, inc | Bayer Pharma AG: Bayer AG: and Bayes inteleciual Property GmbH filed patent infingement lawsuils
in Uniled States district courts against generic manutaciurers who have fled ANDAs. seeking approval to marke! genesic versions of XARELTO before expiration
of certain Crange Book Listed Patems. The foliowing entties sne namad defendants: Dr. Reddy’s Laborrtories, Ine.; Dr. Reddy's Laberatories, Lid., Lupsn Limiled,
Lupin Pharmaceuticals. Ing.; Taro Pharmaceutical indusiries Lid ; Tare Pharmaceuticals US A Inc; Teva Pharmaceutizals USA, Inz.) Mylan Fharmaceuticals
Inc.; Miylan bnc.; Mankind Phasma Limited; Apolex inc; Apolex Corp.: Auson Pharmaceutcals Ing.; Shanghal Auson Pharmaceuticals Co. Lid: Cipla Lid.; Cipla
USA Inc; InvaGen Phamacsuticals, Ing,; Prinsion Pharmacsuticaly, Inc,; Ascent Phammaceulicals, inc ; and Helero Labs Limited. In Oclober 2024, the Company
entered inio a confidential setiement agreament with Auson Pharmaceuticals inc. and Shanghal Auscn Pharmaceutca’s Co,, Lid, and the caso was dismissed., In
MNorvismiber 2024, the Company ardered info confidential settiemen agreements with Ascent Pharmaceiticals bnc. $hat resuled in demissal of [Higation againsl
Agcan] Fharmaceuticas, Inc. and Helero Labs Limited. In Januany 2025, the Company eniered into a conlidental sefiement agresmant with Frinston
Pharmacautical, Ind, (88 to LS. Patent No. 8 538.218), Tha falawing U5, patents are ncluded in one of more cases 8,530,218 and 10,828,310,

LLE, Patent Mo, 10,828,310 wak also under consderation by the USPTC in an IPR precesding. I July 2023, the USPTO meded & finad wrilben decisicn Bnding
the claims of the palent imvalic. In Seplember 2023, Bayer Pramma AG filed an appeal o the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fedeeal Cireuil

INVEGA SUSTENNA
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Beginning in January 2018, Janssen Pharmaceutica NV and Janssen Phamaceuticals, inc. fled patent infingement lawsuits in United States dsirict courts
against generic manufaciurers who have fled ANDAS seeking approval io market generic versions of INVEGA SUSTENNA betore expiration of e Orange Book
Lizted Palenl. The lollewing entities are : Teva P ticals LIEA, Inc.; Mylan Laboralodnes Limited, Pharmascience inc., Malinckrodt PLC]
Spacgy LLC; Todmar, Ing ; Accord Healthcare, Inc ; Gilu Pharmaceutical Co. Lid.; and Qilu Pharma Inc. The faliowing U S, patent is included in ane or mone
cases 9439 008 In Qctober 2020, the dstrict cowrt lsued B decision in 1he case against Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Ing., fnding that Linited S1ates Patent Mo,
9,438,906 |s nat invalid, Teva previousty stpulated 1o infringement, Teva appaaled the decision, and, in Aprl 2024, the United States Court of Appeals for the
Fedoral Circull vacaled and remanded the case to the distric court for fusther procesdings. In Movember 2024, the district court sued ils decision on remand,
finding that Uniled States Palent Mo, 9,438,906 is pot snalid. Teva appealed to (he Courl of Appeats fof the Federal Circuit, and ofad argument is schedulad o
Apnd 2025 In Febiuary 2024, Te disiricl courl isswed a decision in Be case agairs Tolmar e, finding thal Uniled Siates Pabent Na. 9 438 808 is nol fvaid
Teimar previously slipulaled to infingement. Tolmar has appealed the decison.

Bagrning in Febsuary 2013, Janssen inc. and Janssen Phamaceulca MY infialed a Stalement of Cladm under Saclion B of 1ha FPalentsd Medicnes (Nolice of
Complance ) Regulalions aganst generic manulacturers wha have fled ANDSs seeking approval 1o markel geners varsions of INVEGA SUSTENNA before
axpirabon of i Eabed patend. The Raliewing omfties are romed delendants: Pharmascionca inc. and Apabes Ing. The folowing Canadion pabent & included in ane
of mone cases: 2 655 135 In June 2024, the Sup Court dismissed the Apoiex case. I September 2024, the Supreme Couwt granded Pharmascience's
madon to appeal the Federal Courl's dedison thal the 2,855 235 Patend is not invalid.

INVEGA TRINZA

Baginning in Seplember 2020, Janssen Pramacauticals, inc.. Jarssen Prarmaceutica WY, and Janssen Research & Development LLC fed patent infringemsent
lavwsuits in United Stales districl courls against genenc manufaciurers who have filed ANDAS seaking approval to market genaeric versions of INVEGA TRINZA
before expirabon of the Orange Book Listed Patent. The loliowing entities are named defendants; Mylan Labormiories Limited, Mylan Phamaceuticals Ing, | and
Nylan fnsttutional LLC. The following U.5. patent is ncluded in one of more cases: 10,143,893, In May 2023, the District Court isswed a decision finding (hal
Mylar's propossd generis prodiet ifringes the asssmed patert and thal the patent ia not invabd Mylan has appeslad the decislon. Oesd argument betors the
Court of Appeals for he Federal Cicuil was hedd in February 2025,

SYMTUZA

Beginning in Movember 2021, Janssen Products, L P, Janssen Scences Ineland Unlimited Comparry, Gilead Scences, Inc, and Gilead Sceences reland U fied
pabent miringement laywawns in Lirfed Stabes distnict cours agans! genaric manufaciurers who have fled ANDAS seeking approval o markal generic vedsions of
SYMTUZA before expiration of cefain Drange Book Lated Patents. The falknwing entiies afe named delendants: Lupin Limited, Lupin Pharmacesuticals. nd;
MSH Laberatorios Private Lid ; MSN Lite Scionces Private Lid | MSN Pharmacouticals ine; Apolex Inc.; and Apelex Comp. The following LS. patenis ane
included i one of mone cases: 10,038 718 and 10,788 518 Adrial is scheduled 1o begin in February 2025

ERLEADA

Begimning in May 2022, Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Janssen Bolech, inc. (colactively, Janssen), Sloan Ketlering Instilube for Cancar Resaarch (3KI1) and The
Regents of the Universidy of Califormia fled patent infringsment lawsuits in United States disinict courts agaéinsl ganenc manufackurers wha have filed ANDAs
seoking approval bo market genesic wersions of ERLEADA belore sxpiration of certain Orarge Book Lisied Patents. The foligwing entities are named defendants:
Zycus Worldwide DMCC, Zydus Phamacsuticals (USA), inc . Zydus Lifesciences Limiled, Helero Labs Limited Unfl ¥, and Hetero USA, Inc. The foellowing ULS.
pabents are noluded n ohe oF mofe cases! 0,481,663, 0,634,054, 10,052,314 [which reisswed as RE4D,353); 10,702,508, 10,640 8848; 8 445.507; 8 602 6806,
9,388.159; 9,887,261, RE4D.353; and 11,863,952 In Oclobar 2024, Janssen, The Regents af the Linivensity of California, SKI, Hetero Labs Limited Linit 'V, and
Hedero US4, Inc. emered Inbd a confidendal semameant, and e case was dsmissed. [n November 2024, Janssen, The Regents of the Liniversity of Calfarmia,
Lycus Wordwide DMCC, Zydus Phammaceuticals (USA), inc.. and Zydus Lifesciences Limbed entered into confidential setlements. and the cases were
diEmissed,

SPRAVATO

Beginning in May 2023, Janssen Pharmacsuticals, Inc. and Janssen Pharmacsutica Ny filed patent imlringsment lawsidts in Linited States disticl courts agains
gunerc mandiaciurees who hove fled ANDAS seeking approval lo markel generic varslons of SPRAVATO befcre axpiration of coriain Orange Book Lisled
Palents. The folowing enliies are namsd defendants: Sandaz
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Ine.; Hikma Phamaceuticals [ne, LS, Hikma Pharmaceuticals PLC: and Alkermn Laboratornes Lid, The following LS. patents are noluded 0 one or mone cases
10,889,884, 11,175,134, 10,311,500, and 11 848 X0,

IHWVOEANA

Beginning in Jlanuary 2024, Janssen inc. and Misubishi Tanabe Pharma Corporabion indaied Siatermants of Claim under Secbion & of the P, Madicl
{Netce of Compliance) Regulatons against genaric manudacturers who filed ANDSs seeling approval io marked genoric versions of INVORANA bafors sxpiration
of e Eksted paterts, The follawing entities are named cefendants: Jamp Pharma Corporation and Apotex inc. The following Canadian patents ane included in ane
of mone catea: 2, 534,024 and 2 871,.357. Tnal in the Jamp action is scheduled for Seplamber 2025, and Irial in e Apotex action is scheduled for December
2025.

MedTech

In March 2018, Ablomed. Inc. (&biomed) filed a dedaratory judgment action against Maquet Candiovascular LLE (Magued) in U.5. Distact Court for the Distrid of
Massachuselts seeking a declaration thal the impela does not infringe certain Mague! palents, curmently U5, Patend Mos. 7,022,100 (1100}, 8, 888, 728;

9,327 068, 9,545 468, 9,561, 314, and B, 587 437, Maquel counlerclaimed Tor mfringament of each of ose pabents, After cdaim construction, Maqus! alleged
infringement of onky the 100 patent. In Septermber 2021, the courl granted Abismed's mation for summary judgment of non-inkingement af the “100 patent, and in
Seplembar 2023, the district cour antered final judgment in favor of Abiomaed on all patenis-in-suil. Maguet appealed,

Gevernment proceedings

Lié ciher companies in the phamaceutical and medcad lechnoliogies industries, thia Company and certain of &5 subdsdianies are subject 1o axbendive negulaticn
by naticnal, state and local govemmen agencies in the Unitec Stales and olher counlries in which they operate. Such regulation has been the basis of
govemmeant investigatons and (itigations. The most sgnificant iigation brought by, Bhd ivestigatons conduciad by, povermment agencies afe listed below. s
possibie {hat criminal charges and substantial fines andior civil penalties or damages could resul from gowemmend investigations or litigation,

MedTech

In Juty 2018, the Publc Prosecution Sendce in Rio 0 Jangine and representades from Ehe Brazilian antirust authonty CADE nspectad the oftas of more than
30 companies intluding Johnson & Johnson do Brask Indisiria ¢ Comércio de Produtos para Sadde Lida. The authoiBes appear to be Imvestigating aSagations
ol passitle anti-competitive behavior and possible improper payments in the medical device industry, The Company continues fo respond 1o inquines regarding
the Fomeign Comup Pradtioes Act from the Unibed Stales Department of Justice (00U} and the Unided States Securitios and Exchanges Commission, The
Company has been informed DOJ has clased (s nveaiigaion

In Juty 2023, the 00J isaued Civl Investigative Demands 1o the Company, Johnson & Johnson Surgical Yision, Inc., and Johnson & Johnson Vision Care, Inc
{eolleckvely. JBJ Vidion) oh conmection wilh 8 eidl ivesligation under the Falie Claims Ad rolaling to Wes of discounted miFaocula’ ehses and equipmenl uied in
&ye surgery, sich as phacosmulsfication and later systems. J8. Vidion has begun producing documeants and infermation respensive b the Chil Investgative
Demands. J&J Wiston 1 in cngoing discusskns with e DOJ regarnding its inguiry.

Innovative Medicine

In July 2016, the Compary and Janssen Products, LP wena served with o qui lam complaint pursuant to the Falee Claims Act fied in the United Stales Daslrict
Comirt far the District of Maw Jerssy aleging the offSabed promoton of feo HIW products, PREZISTA and INTELENCE, and anti-kickhack vialabions in connéction
with the pramation of these prodwsts. The complant was filed under seal in Decamiier 2012 The federal and siale govemments have decined (o inlervene, and
e lawvsuil is being proseculed by the relaloes. The Courl denied surmmary judgment on all claims. in December 2011, Dauben mobons wene granbed in part and
doréed in part in Januory 2022, and trinl commenced in Moy 2024, On June 13, 2024, a jury found no liability regarding the anti-kickback vielations bl lound
liaksfity for & partion of the off-label pramabion claims. The Company |s pursuing post-irial briefing challenging the verdict om the off-label daims

In March 2017, Janssen Biglech, inc, {J81) received a il investigative Demand from the United States Department of Justce regarding a False Claims Act
imresligation conceming management and advisory serices provided fo rheumatclogy and gestroenierciogy practices that purchased REMICADE or SIMPONI
ARV 0 August 2019, e Unitesd Siates Department of Juitice noled JBI that | was dosing the investigalion. Subsequertly. the Linted States Diatricl Courl for
the Thalnict of Massachusetis wrsealed & qui tam False Claims Act complant which was senved an the Company. The Department of Justcs
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‘had declned 1o inbervgne in the qui 1am lxasuil mAugust 2019, The Company filed a motion to dismiss, which was granied in part and denied in pait, Discowery
I8 LvEBMWEY.

General litigation

The Company or its subsiciarses ares alsa parties o varous procoedings brought undar the Comprabensive Emvironmantal Response, Compoensaticn, and Liabilty
Adl, commenly knawn as Superfund. and comparable state, Iocal or foreign laws in which the primary relief soughd is the Company's agreemaent (o implemaent
remediaion aclivities al designated hazardous wesle stes or 1o reimburse the government or thrd partes for the costs they have incumed in pesfaming
romedinion a8 such sibes,

In Qetober 2017, cedtain Uniled Stales senvice members and heir famibes brought 8 compiaint againsd o number of pharmaceutical and medical dévices
companies, noduding Johnson & Johnson and ceran of s subsidiaries in United States Datrict Coun far the Distict of Columibna, affeging that the defendants
wvickaled the United States Ank-Temrorism At The complaint alleges Bhad the defendants provided funding for bermarist arganizations theough their sales practions
pursuant io prarmaceutical and madical device coniracts with the Iragl Ministry of Health In July 2020 the Distnct Cowrt dismissed the complaint. In lanuary
2032, the United States Courl of Appeals for the District of Colimbia Creutt ieversed the Disiricl Courls decsion, in June 3023, defendants filed a petition fof a
wiil of certioran to the Uniled Stabes Supreme Cowrt. In Jure 2004, the Supreme Court vacated the 0.0, Circuit's decision and remanded 1he case b the D.C
Circanl. Oral argamard wad hetd in Nevember 2024

In February 2024, a putative class aclion was Ned against the Company, the Pension & Benefils Commitiee of Johnson & Johnson [Commitiee), and cerain
namad cMicars and employees, in United States District Court for the District of Mew Jemay In May 2024, the plaint# filed an smended complainl against the
Company and the Commities, The complaint alages that delendants breached Aduciary dutses under tha Empioyee Retirement Income Securty Act (ERISA) by
alegedly mismanaging the Compary's prescripbon-dreg berafits program. The compleent seeks damages and clher relet. In January 2025, the Court granted in
part and denled in part defendants’ moSon to dismiss

MedTech

In Qetober 2020, Fortis Advisors LLC [Foris), in its capacily &8 representatve of the larmer sleckholoers of Auris Health Inc. (Aurs), Sed a complaint againad he
Ceompany, Elhveon ne.. and cenain named olicers and employees (collectively, Ethean) in the Court of Chancery of ine Slate of Delaware. The complaint aleges
breach of conlract. fraud. and ofher causes of action against Eicon in connaction with Efhicen's acguisiticn of Auris in 20719, The complaint seeks damages and
olher reliel. in December 3021, the Court granted in parl and denied in part defendants’ mobion lo dismiss certain causes of action. All claims against the
individwal defend: were dismi i. The trial occwired in January 2024, In Seplomber 2024, the couwrt found liakility with respect 1o certain claims and ro
liabidity with respect 1o olher claims, The Company has appealed the decision.

In Qctober 2019, innovaive Heatth, LLC fied a complaint againsd Biosense Webster, Inc (BWI) in the Unibed Stales District Courl for the Central District of
Califamia. The complair! alleges thal caiain of BWTs butinbas plachcss and conlivitiss] lefma violate the anlitrust laws of the United States and the Slate ol
Califarnia by reslricting compelition in the sale of High Derity Mapping Cathelsrs and Ulirasound Cathetes Trial is scheduled for Apdl 2025,

Innovative Medicine

In June 2019, the Unied Stales Foceral Trade Commesson (FTC) ssued a Cral Imestigatare Demand to the Company and Janssen Biolach, ing. (colleciivsiy.
J it tham with ils irvestigation of whelher Jarsser's REMICADE conlracing prackces violale faderal anlilrust laws. The Compary has prodused
documents ard irfermalion responsho ta the Chil Investigative Demand. Janasan is in ongoing decussians with the FTC stall regatding its inguiry.

In Febnuaty 2022, the United Siates Federal Trade Commissicn [FTC) isswed Cawvil Investigalive Demands to Johnson & Johnson and Janssen Biotech, Inc.
(codectvely, Janssan) in connectizn with its nvestgation of whaiher advertising praclces for REMICADE viciale federal law. Janssen has produced gocuments
and infornation respanshie 1o tha Chal Investigsive Dermance. In January 2025, he FTC Bureau of Consumar Prolastion informed Janssen thal il was claging s
Irvestigation,
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In October 2018, two separate putalive class aclions were fled aganst Actebon Pharmaceubical Lid., Actelion Phamaceuticals U5 inc.. and Actefion Clinical
Ressarch, Inc. (collectively Acielion) in Unibed Slales District Courl for the Districl of Maryland and Uniled States Distnct Court for the Dislricl of Columbia. The
complairts allege that Actelion viclated state and ‘federal antitrusi and urdair compatitcn laws: by allegedly refusing io supply genanic pharmaceutical
manutacturers wih samples of TRACLEER. TRACLEER 15 supjedt io a Risk Evaluabion and Mitigation Strategy required by the .5 Food and Diug
Administration, which imposes restrictions on distrbution of the product. In January 2018, the plaintiffs dismissed the District of Columbia case and filed o
consoldated complaint in the United States. District Cowr for the District of Marytand. In Seplamiber 2024, the diskict cowt granded plaintiffs motion for class
carsfication, Tral is scheduled for March 2006

In Decamber 2023, o putalive class action imweuil was filed sgained the Company ond Joneson Blotech Ing. (colloctvely Jarsson) in ik Unibed Slates Diskniet
Cour for the Easlem Distnct af Virginia. The complaint afleges thal Janssen violaked federal and s1ale anbirus! laws and othes siate lews by delaying biosimias
campedton with STELARA through Janssen's enforcerment of patent rights covering STELARA. The complainl seeks damages and other relie’ In Fetruary 2024,
plainfifs fied an amended complaim, which Janssen meved to digmiss im March 2024, In Augus! 2024, the cour granbed im par and denled in part Janssen's
moson o dismiss.

In December 2018, Janssen Bickech, Ino., Jarssen Oncology, bno., Janssen Ressarch & Development, LLE, and Johason & Jahnsen (collechvely, Jandasn) were
serond with a qui tam comglaint on behall of the United Stales, cortain states, and the District of Calumbia, The complaint alleges that lanssen violabed the
federal False Claims Acl and state law when provading prdng information for ZYTIGA lo the gavernment in conneclion with direct sales and reimbursement
programs. Ad this time, the federal and state govemments have decined (o intervens. in Decamber 2001, the United Stades District Courd for the Distict of New
Jersey denked Janssen's molion to dismiss

20. Restructuring

In Bscadl 2023, the Compary commenced restruciurng achions within is innovatye Mecicing and MoedTech segments, The amounts and details of the curent year
programs. ane included below,

In Escal 2023, the Company compeled & priomtization of it research and development (RED] investmen! wilhin 18 nnevalive Medcine ssgment & fcis on the
Mo promising medicings with the greatest benefil to patents. This resulied in the exit of certain pregrams within cerlain (harapeutic arsas. The RE&D program
s are prmanly in nlectious disenses ond vacenet InGludng i daLsninuabon of i epEsIery syncyinl viris (REV) adull vatcing pragram, hepaltis and
HIN developmant Pre-tax Restiuctunng sxpenses of $0.1 bilion in tha fscal year 2024, includsd the termination of parinensd and non-parnered devalopment
plogram cosls, assel impairments and assel dvestments. Pre-las Restucluing sxpenses of $0.5 Wlon in the Nscal yeas 2023, inchuded e beiminalion of
parinned and non-oarnered development program cosls and adsel imparments. Tolal project couts of approximately 50 6 bilbon have been recorded since the
rmwuam.mammmlmhm Ll mmquﬂﬁﬂﬂ 2024,

In fiscal 2023, the Company initinted a restructuning program of its Orthopaedics franchise within the MedTech asgment to streamiine operations by exiling cestain
markeds, produc] lines and distribustion neteork arrangements. The pre-tax restruciuring expenss of 50 2 billian in the fical year 2024 primardy included costs
related to market and product exits, The pre-tax restruchuring expense of 50,3 billicn |n the fiscad year 2023 p ly included ¥ and instrumend charges
related o market and product exits, Tofal project oosts of approximalely $0.8 bilion have been recorded since the resiructuring was announced. The estimated
cosis of the folal program are betwesn 507 bélion - $0 2 bilion and is exsecied to be completed by the end of fiscal year 2025

The foliowing 1adle summarnizes the restructuring experses fae the fscal years 3024 and 2023:

[Pre-tax Dollars in Milliors) 024 2023
Innervative Medcine Segrnent ! 02 4
MadTech Segmant™ 167 ek 1]
Total Frograms o] srea

M Thes fscal yoar of 3024 induded $102 milkon in Resinoiuing on = Corsobdalnd Simtemend of Exmings. The fscal year of 2023 induded $848 millon n Restrechiing and
530 miflen in Cot of pracucis sold o e Cormoldalsd Sistemect of Eamings

@ T Ancal yoar of 2004 incloded 5132 rilion n Restruchuring @nd $35 milion n Cost of producks sold on the Consaldated Staiomont of Exmings. Tha fecal yeer of 2023
Inciudad 540 millen i Resrusiuning snd S0 sillon A Coll of product sehd on ha Conssllenies Subsmant of Eamngs

Rettruchaing reserss as of December 79, 2024 and Decembad 31, 2023 ware irtignificanl

104 Jdohnson&Jdohnson

372/416

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

21. Kenvue separation and discontinued operations

The results of the Consumer Healh business (pleviously reporled 4% & separale business segmenty have been reflected as disconlinued cperatians in the
Compan’s consalidated statements of eamings s Met sasmings from discontinued coerations, net of axes through Augist 23, 2023, the date of the sxthangs

effer, Price pariods have Deen necast o reflect this presantation

On May 15, 2024, the Company isswed 336 bilion agoregale pincipal amount of commencial paper and recated 53,6 biion of nel cash procesds 1o be wied for
geraral comporate purposes. On May 17, 2024, the Coenpany compialed & Dabl-for-Equily Exchangs of #s remaining 182,320,550 shares of Karvue Camman
Siock for the outstanding Commerdial Papar. Upon complation of the Debt-for-Equity Exchange, the Commaerdal Paper was satisfied and discharged and the
Company no longer owns any shares of Kenvee Commen Stwock. This axchange resulted n 2 ioss of approxmaiely 304 bdlion recordad in Other {incoma
EEpEnsE

On May 8. 2023 Kenyue, completad an inilial pubdic offering (ihe BPO) resuting in the ssuance of 188,734 444 shares of i3 comman siock. par value 50 01 par
share (Ihe “Henvue Camman Siock'], #1 &n nkial public ofering of 52200 per dhare Tor net proceeds of 34 2 billan. The éxceds of the nel pracesds lram the PO
over the ned book walue of the Johnson & Johnson divested inbarest was §2.5 bilion and was recorded to addibonal paid-in capital As of the cosing of the IPO,
Johrson & Johrson ewned appromimately B9 6% of the ol outsianding shares of Kermue Comiman Stock and al July 2, 2023, the non-contralling imedest of
51.3 billion assoc@ted with Kenvue was reflected in aquiy ainbutabés o non-coninolling interests in the consciicaled balance sheat in the Ascal second quarter of
2023

On August 23, 2023, Jobnscn & Johnson complated the disposition of an addtdonal 80 1% ownenship of Kermue Common Stock through an exchange affier,
which resulled in Johnson & Johnsan acquirng 190,955 436 shares of he Company's commen stack in exchange for 1,533,830,450 shares of Kenvue Cammon
Siock. The $31.4 billion of Jobnson & Johnson common stock recefved in She oxichange offer is recorded in Treasury siock. Following the exchange offer, the
Company owred 9.5% of the fotal culstanding shares of Kenvue Commen Stock fiat was recorded in olfver assets within conbrnuing operations al the: fair market
wakie of 54.3 bilion as of August 23, 2023, Subsequeni changes are refiected in other income/expenss and amounted 1o 30 4 bilich expense through December
31,2023

Jahmesn & Johnson divested nel assets of 511.6 bilion &s of August 23, 2023, and 1he accumulaed ofhar comprehansie Ioaa aitribulabie o the Consurmar
Heallh hissinieds al thal dals was $4.3 bilion. Additionally, 51 the dale of the exchange offer. Johnsan & Johidon detessed the non-contialing wilenest by
£1.2 bilion o record the deconsoldation of Kenvue, This rneswuited i a non-cash gain on the cachange offer of §21.0 biticn that was. recorded in Met samings
from discontinued cperaions. ned of axes in the consoidabed statements of samings for the fiscal third quarer of 2023, This one-9me gain includes a gain of
£2.8 bitlion on the Kemaus Comman Stock netained by Jehnson & Jehnson. The gain on the exchange offer qualifies as o lax-fres ransaction for U5, lederal
Imcame tax purposes.

Asn in connection with the s&parabion, Jahnsan & Johnson and Kenmve ent i o sef N mgr tand alsa &nb nio variows othes agreements that
pravide for cenain lransaclions bo effect ihe ransfer of e asssts and habiilies of the Corsumer Health business lo Kenvue and o gaven various interim and
angaing relationships betwian Kenvue and Johnton & Johnaon fallowing the completion of the Kenvus BP0, inchiding ransition senvices agresments (TSAS)
transition marufachring agresments (TMAs|, trademark agresmenis. inlelieciual property agresments, an employes mafiers agreamant, and a tax mafiers
agreemsant. Under the T5As, Johnson & Johnson will provide Kenvue vanious servoes and, simslasly, Kenviue will provice Johnson & Johnson various senvices
The provision of services under the TSAe genarally will b bz wethin 24 fhs foligwing The Kenvue IPO. AddSionaly, Johneon & Johnson and Kervue
anbefad rlo TMAL purdiant b whith Johfdah & Johfdan will marifscure and supply 1o Kenvse cefain products and, simiarly, Kanwe will msnfactise and
supply to Johnson & Jahnson cenain products. The ferms of {be THUAS. rangs in initial duration from 3 months io 5 years

Amourds related o ibe TSAs and TMAs induded in the consabdated statements of sarnings wese mmaberial for both Sccal years 2024 and 2023 Adctonaly, the
amaunts due 1o and from Kenyvue for the abowe agresments was not malerial as of December 31, 2023

The results of the Consumer Health busingss [previously reporied as a separale business segmenty, as wed as the associaied gan. have been reflecled as
drsoninued operalions mn the Company’s consoldabed slatemants of eamings as Nel sarnings om discontinued cparations. nel of taned. A & resull of the
separation of Kenvue, Johnson & Joknson incumed separation costs of 5145 malion in the fscal year 2024, whith was ncluded n Met Eamings and noirmed
separalion costs of $286 malien and 51,088 milion in the fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively, which were included in Het eamings from discontinued
operalions, nat of toes. These cosls were primarty relabed o sextamal advisory, legal, accounting, conracior and cthar
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incremental costs directly retated bo separation activites, In the fscal 2022, as part of the planned separation of the Company's Consumer Heallh business, the

Company recognized appraximately $0.5 billion in net incremental {ax costs.
Diedails of Mat Eamings from Decontinusd Oparations, not of taxes are as follows;

[Dallars in Millioas) ol M2
Sales 0 cutloment 510,038 14,953
Cost of products seld 4369 BB
Gross profl 5BET BABD
Saling, markeling and admirksiralive expenses 3,085 4519
Research and development epanse 258 L]
Irtesest Income AL kST -
Irilefes] expenss, el of porion cagiaized 184 -
Cther |income) expense. net 1.092 1.080
(Gain) am separalion af Kemwue (20.684) —
Restruciuing - 46
Eamings frem Discantinued Oporabions Befora Provisan for Taxes o Income. 22134 2368
Provaion for taces on income 3T o8
Met sarnings from Disconlinued Operations 521,827 1,671

N The Company coasod aonaoldating e reulis of the Consumes Healih Busines on Augusd 73 2023, tha daro of the sacharge offer. bul condnued lo reflect any separafion

ety o part of dise f throeuge e e of the fiscal fourt eearies.

Tha foligwing table presanis dopreciation, amorlization and capital expendiures of the discontinued operations related io Kenvue:

[Daollars in Millioss) 0t 022
Depréclation and Amanization £383 B4
Capiial expenditures 582 303
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Management's report on internal control over financial reporting

Undor Soction 404 of the Sarbanes-Odey Act of 2002, management i requined to #5053 The ofectivensss of the Company's internal conirol over financia
reporiing as of the end of each fiscal year ard roport, based an that assessmaent. whather the Company's intemal condral ower financial reporting is effective

Managemant of the Company |s responsie for estabishing and maintaining adequate internal contral cver financial mpoding. The Company’s ntemal contol
over firancial repariing s dessgned to provide reasonable assurance as o the reliobiity of the Company's fimancial reporting and e preparation of exernal

financial slatements in accordance with generally acospied accounting principhes.

Intesrial conircls gver Snancial reporting, ro matter bow well designed, have inhverend imitations, Therefone, intemal control over financial reporing desermined 1o
be effective can pravide only reasonable assurance with respeat bo financial stsferment proparation and may not prevent or deted oll misstoberments. Moreovor,
projpchons of any evalustion of effectrrensss 1o flure pediods ae subject o the ik that conbrods may becoms nadequate becauns of changes n conddions. o
that ihe degres of compliance wilh the palisies or procedures may catenorals.

The Company's managenent has assessed the effectvensss of the Company's intemal control aver financial reparting 0a of December 28, 2024, In making Bis
assessment, the Campany used the erileria established by the Commiltes af Spansaring Crganizalions of the Treadway Commissian (COS0) in “Internal Contral-
Integrated Framarsvors [2013).° These critena ane in the areas of contral environmaent, risk assessmaent. control Bciivibes, information and communication, and

focing. The Company's included ex & documenting, evaluating and testing the design and cperating effectiveness of its inlemal controls
ovar financial reparing

The Company acquired Shockware Medical, inc. (Shackwave), in a business combenaton in May 2024, Shockwave's iolal assels. excluding intang bhe assets
and goodwill, and totol sales represented less than 1% of each of the related consolicated nancial stxiement amounts as of ond for the fisoal year ended
December 28, 2034, As the acquisiion occurnmed in the fscal yeas 2024, the soope of the Company's assessment of the design and sfectivensss of inlemal
cantral over financial reparing for the fiscal year 2024 excluded the above mentioned acquisition, This exclusion is in accordance with the SEC's general
guidancs that an sssessment of & rmornily Bcquired busness mary be omited from the scops in the year of scouistion,

Based on the wr'l proCasses and assessment, a8 described above, management has conchided that, as of Decamber 29 024, Hﬂﬂ'ﬂpﬂﬂﬂ meimal
contrst aver finoncinl repening wos ofleciive.

The sffecinentss of he Company s Rlemal control over Shansial reparting as of Decamber 29, 2024 hias bean avdied by PricewabemouseCoopers LLP, an
indepandent registened public accourting firm, as stated in their repart, which appsars herein

is! J. Dusabo I8l . . Wolk
Joaguin Duato Josaph J. Wolk
Chaimman, Board of Dineclors Exmcutive Vice President, Chied Financial Officer

Chis! Exscutins Oficar
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(Lupin

(Taro Pharmaceutical

(Taro Pharmaceuticals U.S.A_,

Inc.) (Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.)

(Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.)

(Mankind Pharma Limited)

(Apotex Corp.) (Cipla Ltd.)
(InvaGen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
10,828,310
10,828,310 USPTO
USPTO

2025
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(Mylan Inc.)
(Apotex Inc.)

(Cipla USA Inc.)
9,539,218

2023
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INVEGA SUSTENNA
2018 (Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)
INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA
(Mylan Laboratories Limited)
(Pharmascience Inc.) (Mallinckrodt PLC)

(Specgx LLC) (Tolmar, Inc.) (Accord Healthcare,
Inc.) (Qilu Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.)
(Qilu Pharma Inc.) 9,439,906

2020 10
9,439,906
2024
2024 11
9,439,906
2025 2024
9,439,906
2018
INVEGA SUSTENNA ANDS
( )
2,655,335
2024 2024

2,655,335
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INVEGA TRINZA

2020
(Janssen Research & Development, LLC)
INVEGA TRINZA ANDA
(Mylan Institutional LLC) 10,143,693
2023
2025
SYMTUZA
2021 11 (Janssen Products, L.P.)
(Janssen Sciences Ireland Unlimited Company)
(Gilead Sciences, Inc.) (Gilead
Sciences lIreland UC) SYMTUZA
ANDA
(MSN Laboratories Private Ltd.)
(MSN Life Sciences Private Ltd.)
(MSN Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
10,039,718 10,786,518 2025
ERLEADA
2025 (Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
( )
(Sloan-Kettering Institute for Cancer Research)( SK1 )
3,008,345 ( 345 ) 2,875,767 ( 767 )
2,885,415 ( 415 ) 3,128,331 ( 331 )
ERLEADA ANDS (Sandoz
Canada Inc.)( ) ( )

SKI ERLEADA
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SPRAVATO
2023
SPRAVATO ANDA
(Sandoz Inc.)
(Hikma Pharmaceuticals Inc. USA) (Hikma
Pharmaceuticals PLC) (Alkem Laboratories Ltd)
10,869,844 11,173,134 11,311,500 11,446,260
INVOKANA
2024 INVOKANA
ANDS (
)
(Jamp Pharma Corporation) 2,534,024 2,671,357
2025
2025 12
CAPLYTA
2024 (Intra-Cellular Therapies, Inc.)(
) CAPLYTA
ANDA
(Aurobindo Pharma Ltd.) (Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc.)
(Hetero USA, Inc.)
V(Hetero Labs Ltd. Unit-V) (Hetero Labs Ltd.)
(
) (Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA) Inc.)
(Zydus Lifesciences Ltd.) US RE48,825 RE48,839 8,648,077 9,168,258
9,199,995 9,616,061 9,956,227 10,117,867 10,464,938 10,960,009
11,026,951 11,753,419 11,980,617 12,070,459 12,090,155 12,122,792

12,128,043 2025
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2016 (Abiomed, Inc.)
(Maquet Cardiovascular LLC)(
) Inpella ( 7,022,100 ( 100
) 8,888,728 9,327,068 )
(Abiomed Europe
GmbH) R&D (Abiomed R&D, Inc.)( )
9,545,468 9,561,314
9,597,437 100
2021 100
2023
2017 11 Impella 9,789,238 ( 238
) R&D
( )
10,238,783 ( 783
)
2025 21 238

783
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2023 DOJ( )
(False Claims Act)
(Johnson &
Johnson Surgical Vision, Inc.) (Johnson &
Johnson Vision Care, Inc.)( J&J ) J&J
DOJ
2016 HIV PREZISTA INTELENCE
2012 12
2021 12 2022
2024 2024 13
2025 28
2017 (Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI )

REMICADE SIMPONI ARIA
2019
JBI
2019
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(Superfund)
(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act)
(
)
2017 10
(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)
2020
2022
2023 2024
2024 11
2024 (
)
(Employee Retirement Income Security Act)(ERISA)
2025
2025
2020 10 (Fortis Advisors LLC)(
) (Auris Health Inc.)( )
( )
2019
2021 12
2024 2024
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2019 10

BWI )

2025

2019 ( FTC

FTC
2018 10
Pharmaceuticals Ltd.)
Pharmaceuticals U.S., Inc.)

Research, Inc.)(

TRACLEER
TRACLEER

2023 12

STELARA

2024

2024

2018 12
Inc.)
( )

2021 12
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(Innovative Health, LLC)

(Biosense Webster, Inc)(

2019

BWI
) (
REMICADE
(Actelion
(Actelion
(Actelion Clinical
)
2024
2026
( )
STELARA
( )
2024

(Janssen Oncology,

ZYTIGA
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johnson & Johnson

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Johnson & Johnson and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as
of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, of comprehensive income,
of equity and of cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 29, 2024, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements’). We also have audited the Company's internal control over
financia reporting as of December 29, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three fiscal yearsin the period ended December 29, 2024 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financia reporting as of December 29, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basisfor Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financia statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility isto express
opinions on the Company’s consolidated financia statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting
based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federa
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financia reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the consolidated
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financia reporting, assessing the
risk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinions.
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As described in Management' s report on internal control over financia reporting, management has excluded Shockwave

Medical, Inc., (“Shockwave’) from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 29, 2024 because

it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2024. We have a so excluded Shockwave from our

audit of internal control over financial reporting. Shockwave is awholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and total sales

excluded from management’ s assessment and our audit of internal control over financia reporting represent less than 1% of

each of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2024.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financia Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statementsin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (i) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

U.S. Innovative Medicine Rebate Reserves — Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid

Asdescribed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue from product sales when
obligations under the terms of a contract with the customer are satisfied. Rebates and discounts provided to customers are
accounted for as variable consideration and recorded as areduction in sales. The liability for such rebates and discountsis
recognized within Accrued rebates, returns, and promotions on the consolidated balance sheet. A significant portion of the
liahility related to rebatesis from the sale of pharmaceutical products within the U.S., primarily the Managed Care, Medicare
and Medicaid programs, which amounted to $12.3 hillion as of December 29, 2024. For significant rebate programs, which
include the U.S. Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid rebate programs, rebates and discounts estimated by management are
based on contractual terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis, and projected market conditionsin the
various markets served.
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The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to U.S. Innovative Medicine rebate
reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid is acritical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management due
to the significant measurement uncertainty when developing the estimate of these reserves and (ii) a high degree of auditor
judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating the assumptions related to contractual terms,
historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis, and projected market conditions in the U.S. pharmaceutical market.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to
management’ s estimate of the U.S. Innovative Medicine rebate reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid, including
controls over the assumptions used to estimate these rebates. These procedures also included, among others (i) developing an
independent estimate of the rebates by utilizing third party information on price and market conditionsin the U.S.
pharmaceutical market, the terms of the specific rebate programs, and the historical experience and trend analysis of actual
rebate claims paid; (ii) testing, on a sample basis, rebate claims processed by the Company, including evaluating those claims
for consistency with the contractual and mandated terms of the Company’s rebate arrangements; and (iii) comparing the
independent estimates to management’ s estimates to eval uate the reasonabl eness of management’ s estimates.

Litigation Contingencies— Talc

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss contingencies
associated with legal matters, including talc, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse awards, judgments, or verdicts have been rendered against the Company,
management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be reasonably estimated. For these
matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of 1oss beyond the amounts accrued. Amounts accrued for
legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties that rely heavily on
estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability to make such estimates and judgments can be
affected by various factors, including, among other things, whether damages sought in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or
indeterminate; scientific and legal discovery has not commenced or is not complete; proceedings are in early stages; matters
present legal uncertainties; there are significant facts in dispute; procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and
unpredictability of the number of potential claims; ability to achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of
related cross-claims and counterclaims; and/or there are numerous parties involved. Management continues to believe that the
Company has strong legal grounds to contest the talc verdicts it has appeal ed. Notwithstanding management’ s confidence in
the safety of the Company’s talc products, in certain circumstances the Company has settled cases. In May 2024, the Company
proposed a consensual “prepackaged” Chapter 11 bankruptcy plan (the “ Proposed Plan”) for the final resolution of al current
and future claims related to cosmetic talc in the United States, excluding claims related to mesothelioma or State consumer
protection claims. In September 2024, the Company’s subsidiary Red River Talc, LLC filed avoluntary petition, seeking relief
under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, in furtherance of the Company’s consensual “prepackaged” Proposed Plan. As of
December 29, 2024, the total present value of the reserve to resolve the talc claims is approximately $11.6 billion, of which
approximately ten percent is recorded as a current liability. The recorded amount remains the Company's best estimate of
probable loss. The Company is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of 1oss beyond the amounts accrued.
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The principa considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the litigation contingencies - talcisa
critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of aloss being incurred for
the remaining unresolved talc claims, when determining whether a reasonable estimate of the loss or range of loss for the
remaining unresolved talc claims can be made, and when determining the timing of settlement payments for the remaining
unresolved talc claims, and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and
evaluating audit evidence related to management’ s assessment of the loss contingencies associated with the talc litigation.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controlsrelating to
management’ s assessment of the litigation contingencies — talc, including controls over determining whether alossis probable
and whether the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, as well asfinancia statement disclosures. These procedures also
included, among others (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’s process around the accounting and reporting for the talc
litigation; (ii) obtaining and evaluating certain executed settlement agreements related to the talc litigation; (iii) discussing the
status of significant known actual and potential litigation and settlements activity with the Company’s in-house legal counsel,
aswell as external counsel when deemed necessary; (iv) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and
external legal counsel related to the talc litigation; (v) evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assessment regarding
whether an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (vi) evaluating the
sufficiency of the Company’s litigation contingencies disclosures.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham Park, New Jersey
February 13, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since at least 1920. We have not been able to determine the specific year we began
serving as auditor of the Company.
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